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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan

Independent non-executive Directors'

Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan? (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY?

Mr. BAI Kun
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AEXE

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung has resigned as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 15 December 2023 as
he wished to devote more time to his personal commitments.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 December 2023.

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 15 December 2023.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 December 2023.

Ms. NG Ka Man has resigned as a joint company secretary
of the Company due to other work arrangements with effect
from 15 December 2023. Upon the resignation of Ms. NG, Mr.
BAIl Kun acts as the sole company secretary of the Company.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 December 2023.
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun* (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHU Lin (Chairman)
Mr. YU Miao
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan® (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. YU Miao (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Lin
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan® (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Lin
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan’ (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

4. Mr. BAI has been appointed as an authorised representative of
the Company (the “Authorised Representative”) pursuant to
Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules and an authorised representative
under the Companies Ordinance for acceptance of service of
process and notices on behalf of the Company (the “Process
Agent”) in Hong Kong with effect from 15 December 2023.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 December 2023.

5 Upon the resignation of Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, his
vacancy in the Audit Committee has been filled by Ms. ZHANG
Feiyan. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 December 2023.

6. Upon the resignation of Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, his
vacancy in the Remuneration Committee has been filled by Ms.
ZHANG Feiyan. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 15 December 2023.

7. Upon the resignation of Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung, his
vacancy in the Nomination Committee has been filled by Ms.
ZHANG Feiyan. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 15 December 2023.
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Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC
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109 Jinghaisanlu

Beijing Economic-Technological Development Area
The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31st Floor

Tower Two

Times Square

1 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

International Corporation Services Ltd.
P.O. Box 472

2nd Floor, Harbour Place

108 South Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISER

As to Hong Kong law:
Taylor Wessing

21st Floor

8 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1986

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Dongguang Branch)
Bank of China (Dongguang Branch)

East West Bank

DBS Bank (Tianjin Branch)

INVESTOR ENQUIRIES

Website: www.tsaker.com
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Financial Highlights
B RE

2023 2022
—EBE-=H —F-—
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFTT
(Audited) (Audited)
For the year ended 31 December BE+-—A=+-HLEFE (RER) (ER)
REVENUE % 2,065,474 2,122,318
GROSS PROFIT EF 318,636 568,453
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F 5 45,193 254,232
Profit attributable to: FEAE A -
Owners of the parent JRREAA 29,061 242,035
Earnings per Share attributable to BAREBE=ERA
Ordinary equity holders of the parent: EIEERAT
AR%¥RMB ARBERMB
- Basic and diluted — BEANES 0.03 0.247C

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,065.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB56.8 million or approximately 2.7%
as compared with that in the same period of 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB318.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB249.9 million or approximately
44.0% as compared with that in the same period of 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, net profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB45.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB209.0 million or approximately
82.2% as compared with that in the same period of 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, basic and diluted earnings
per Share attributable to ordinary equity owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB0.03, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB0.21 or approximately 87.5% as compared with
that in the same period of 2022.

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.038 per ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December
2023, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.
Assuming the final dividend is approved at the AGM, together
with the interim dividend of RMB0.029 per ordinary Share for the
six months ended 30 June 2023, the dividends in aggregate for
the year ended 31 December 2023 will amount to RMB0.067 per
ordinary Share.
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HHAEANRE2 065588 BT = —FREH
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MNOBARKE318.6BETL BT _FRHKRD
HARME249. 0B BT A44.0% ©
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HFEIEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BL%E

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
B -—T--fF -—ZE-—F -—E-TE —T-NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Operating results - Summary REEE-HE
Revenue Wz 2,065,474 2122318 1,781,106 1275274 1,818,347
Gross profit EF 318,636 568,453 540,296 445335 1,040,957
Profit for the year FREF 45,193 254,232 227,238 144,599 518,284
Profit attributable to: iR H
Owners of the parent [SYNGIEZ=PN 29,061 242,035 226,239 144,875 517,927
Balance sheet - Summary BEBEXR -HE
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,986,172 2,007,329 1655987  1,695556 1,724,977
Current assets MEBEE 1,467,524 1,187,910 912,494 647,532 856,423
Total assets LEBE 3,453,696  3,195239 2568481 2,343,088 2,581,400
Current liabilities mEaE 1,140,162 1,034,468 637,073 597,606 745,937
Non-current liabilities FnEaE 258,703 60,812 39,982 66,190 69,022
Net assets EEFHE 2,054,831 2,099,959 1891426 1,679,292 1,766,441
Financial ratio BiFgLL &
Gross profit margin M= 15.4% 26.8% 30.3% 34.9% 57.3%
Net profit margin = 2.2% 12.0% 12.8% 11.3% 28.5%
Return on equity(” RA R RO 2.2% 12.7% 12.7% 8.4% 33.6%
Current ratio® MENLL K@ 1.29 1.15 1.43 1.08 1.15
Net debt to equity ratio® EEBBLEO 15.4% 14.3% 16.7% 20.8% 17.8%
Inventory turnover days® FEREXEY 58 62 64 98 112
Trade and notes receivables 2 5 WEIE R
turnover days® EREERAEREHO 122 81 52 71 54
Trade and bills payables turnover BHEAFER
days® NS EERS G 88 67 54 100 146
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Notes:

Return on equity is derived by dividing net profit by total
equity, where total equity is the average beginning and ending
balances of total equity for the given period.

Current ratio is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities at the end of a given period.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as dividing interest-
bearing loans and other financial liabilities at the end of the
period by the total equity.

Inventory turnover days for a certain period is derived by
dividing the average inventory (the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of inventory of a given period)
by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days in the
relevant period.

Trade and notes receivables turnover days for a certain period
is derived by dividing the average trade and notes receivables
(the arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of
trade and notes receivables of a given period) by revenue and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.

Trade and bills payables turnover days for a certain period is
derived by dividing the average trade and bills payables (the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of trade
and bills payables of a given period) by cost of sales and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby report the results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

In 2023, both domestic and overseas economies sustained
their recovery. The domestic consumer market picked up, and
the global economy maintained certain resilience against high
inflation and interest rates. Various traditional business segments
of the Group adopted aggressive market strategies, which
achieved recovery growth in sales volume. In 2023, the domestic
and overseas new energy industries continued to develop rapidly
with continuous growth in the market demand for lithium battery
products. However, as the expansion of the production capacity
of upstream battery materials outpaced the growth of end-user
demand, the market supply and demand pattern was imbalanced,
and thus upstream battery material suppliers recorded losses in
general. In face of market changes, we grasped development
opportunities in the traditional markets, swiftly adjusted our
market strategies for the battery materials segment, controlled risk
exposures and continued to deepen our diversified development
strategies, thus striving to safeguard the sustainable development
of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, under the complex economic situation where
opportunities and challenges coexisted, the Group achieved
overall sales revenue of approximately RMB2,065.5 million (2022:
approximately RMB2,122.3 million), which basically remained
stable as compared with that in 2022.

In particular, as affected by the recovery in the consumer market,
both sales volume and revenue of the dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates segment of the Group increased as
compared with that in the same period of 2022. The pigment
intermediates and new materials segment also developed steadily
with significant improvement in profitability. As affected by the
growth in market demand and the intensified competition, the
battery materials segment recorded an increase in sales volume
but a significant decline in profitability.

Chairman’s Report
FEHRE

HMEMUEERR

EABURRAAFESFSEERFETEE_T—
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BASNTEERERERERERR  MEHEEHE
M FESRFFEIL R - AT AR EHEBMEERR
BREESNRHFRIGE  MHHEFRBLE
EHREBMBHERERERSER BHMHE
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M RHRR TS RES - ZHER - BER(CZ T
BRRE  BAREARENFERR -

£ e

ZEZ-F AMERAKBYTNERKCERD
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MBIMSEFE - HERTHERNIEE S KR T
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As affected by the decline in profitability in the battery materials
segment, in 2023, the gross profit of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB318.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 44.0% or RMB249.9 million as compared with
that in the same period of 2022. The net profit amounted to
approximately RMB45.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 82.2% or RMB209.0 million as compared with that
in the same period of 2022.

FOCUS ON INVESTMENT IN RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, AND CONTINUOUS RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PROCESSES AND NEW
PRODUCTS

The Group has always attached great importance to investment in
research and development. We constantly upgrade our existing
production processes and products, supplementing the results
of process transformation. In 2023, we continued to optimise
our production processes for iron phosphate battery materials
and the new material polymerised monomer BPDA, so as to
improve our production quality and lower our production cost.
We continued to optimise and improve the production processes
and product quality of traditional dye, pigment and agricultural
chemical intermediates products to consolidate our technological
advantages and cut costs and increase efficiency on an ongoing
basis.

At the same time, we are also actively developing new products
and continuously enriching our product range to meet the diverse
needs of our customers and enhance customer engagement. In
2023, we successfully developed the entire process of recycling
technology for lithium iron phosphate, and recycled major
elements such as lithium, iron and phosphate. We continued
to carry out the research and development of new lithium iron
manganese phosphate and sodium-ion battery materials to seize
market opportunities, further expand the Group’s product range
and enhance the Group’s overall strength.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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CAPITAL MARKET EXPANSION

In 2023, we successfully completed the introduction of the first
round of independent investors to Shandong TNM Group. 10
independent investors, including Sinopec Group Capital Co.,
Ltd.* (FEIAILEEEABRAT), were introduced to Shandong
TNM Group. Independent investors made cash contribution of
RMB229,000,000 in aggregate to Shandong TNM in exchange for
approximately 9.84% equity interest in the enlarged registered
capital of Shandong TNM in aggregate. Meanwhile, in order to
diversify the shareholder structure and promote the corporate
profile and reputation of Tsaker Technology, Tsaker Hong Kong
completed the transfer of approximately 6.12% equity interest
in Tsaker Technology to three independent investors, including
Hebei Industrial Investment, at an aggregate consideration of
approximately RMB55,000,000. We continued to facilitate the
works in relation to the transfer of the listing of Tsaker Technology
to the BSE as well as the preparation for the separate listing of
Shandong TNM Group on a stock exchange recognised by the
PRC, so as to further enhance the Group’s popularity in the capital
market and broaden its financing channels, thereby facilitating the
long-term and stable development of the Group.

OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT

In 2024, in face of an overall slowdown in growth, we will continue
to adopt active and steady overall strategy, actively respond
to market changes, and maintain steady financial strategy. We
will make evaluation of and decision on fixed asset investment
projects in a more prudent way. We will continue to focus on
research and development and continuously accumulate new
products and processes to enhance the overall competitiveness of
the Group. We will continue to facilitate the transfer of the listing
of the shares of Tsaker Technology to the BSE as well as the
preparation for the listing of Shandong TNM Group, and continue
to broaden the Group'’s financing channels.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
support and trust in the management of the Group, and to the
management team and all staff members for their dedication and
efforts to achieve better results for the Group and create value for
the Shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi
18 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SPEERECINR

BUSINESS REVIEW E e
Operating segment results REDHEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-ZE-=F+-A=+—HLFE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials intermediates materials Total
FHRR B
BE(Em R
Bt Rl HREE RATHH At
Revenue (RMB000) Wz (AREFT) 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Cost of sales (RMB'000) HEKAN (ARETFT) 571,307 941,353 234,178 1,746,838
Sales volume (fonnes) HEH = (1F) 44,700 78,416 11,613 134,729
Gross profit margin FEFH= -14.6% 20.9% 37.9% 15.4%
Average unit selling price BRI EE
(RMB/tonne) (ARHT.H) 11,155 15,174 32,460 15,331
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BEZZ-_—_F+-A=T—HLHFE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials intermediates materials Total
FE R EaR
RECEm H g
TwhH GilolL REHH At
Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (ARETFT) 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2,122,318
Cost of sales (RMB'000) HEKAN (AEETT) 438,746 867,484 247,635 1,553,865
Sales volume (tonnes) HEEE (W) 33,722 61,679 9,675 105,076
Gross profit margin FEH = 36.4% 19.1% 31.3% 26.8%
Average unit selling price BAUFHERE
(RMB/tonne) (AR#T, 1E) 20,447 17,384 37,268 20,198

The Group is mainly engaged in the production and sales of HREBETIZHREFETHME - 2RNREZ(ERDH
products such as battery materials, dye and agricultural chemical 8 - ZER P RIEE R IR S 2 18 B Y A 22 RSN E o
intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED E SRR ERA A



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, there were no material changes in the
main operations of the Group. The traditional business segments
continue to enjoy a prominent position in the market, and revenue
from the top five largest customers accounted for approximately
37.0% (2022: approximately 38.6%) of the Group’s revenue for the
year.

The Group has a well-established sales network, which covers
areas including Asia, Europe, North America and South America.
For the Review Year, by regional distribution, revenue derived
from Chinese Mainland accounted for approximately 82.2% (2022:
approximately 81.1%) of the Group’s total revenue, and export
revenue accounted for approximately 17.8% (2022: approximately
18.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Review Year, the total revenue of the Group decreased
by approximately 2.7% to approximately RMB2,065.5 million
(2022: approximately RMB2,122.3 million) as compared with that
in the same period of 2022. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to the significant year-on-year decline in the average unit
selling price of iron phosphate, the major product of the Group’s
battery materials segment, as a result of market fluctuation during
the Review Year.

In 2023, due to a significant decrease in the average unit selling
price of iron phosphate, the major battery material product of the
Group, the gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
44.0% to approximately RMB318.6 million (2022: approximately
RMB568.5 million) as compared with that in 2022. The overall
gross profit margin of the Group decreased to approximately
15.4% in 2023 from approximately 26.8% in 2022. The net profit
of the Group for the year 2023 decreased by approximately
82.2% to approximately RMB45.2 million (2022: approximately
RMB254.2 million); net profit margin was approximately 2.2%
(2022: approximately 12.0%); and basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB0.03 (2022: approximately RMB0.24).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Battery materials — accounting for approximately 24.1%
(2022: approximately 32.5%) of the Group’s total revenue

The Group is one of the major iron phosphate producers in China.
Iron phosphate is mainly used in the production of lithium iron
phosphate, which is the mainstream cathode material for the
production of power lithium batteries and energy storage lithium
batteries.

In 2023, the domestic and overseas new energy vehicle and
electrochemical energy storage industries sustained rapid growth
with continuous growth in demand for lithium battery products and
upstream lithium battery materials. The Group gradually launched
iron phosphate products produced from its new production line
with annual production capacity of 50,000 tonnes. During the
Review Year, the Group maintained close cooperation with lithium
iron phosphate manufacturers such as Hefei Guoxuan Battery
Materials Co., Ltd.* (AIEREEFEMBMEHRAF]), Changzhou
Liyuan New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (BEMERIeEREHTA
R A 8]), Hefei Rongjie Energy Materials Co., Ltd.* (& IEgkEEBE IR
EBBR A R]), Jiangxi Zhili Technology Co., Ltd.* (T A% BRI LD
ABRAR]) and Fujian Zijin Lithium Material Technology Co., Ltd.*
(BERESETMHRRERAR).

Against the backdrop of the rapid development of the market,
domestic iron phosphate suppliers were actively expanding their
production capacity, and the expansion rate of which was faster
than the growth rate of end-use demand during the Review Year.
The imbalance in supply and demand pattern of the market
had resulted in a significant decline in the market price of iron
phosphate as compared with that in the same period of 2022.

As a result of the combined effects of the above factors, the
sales volume of the Group’s iron phosphate products increased
significantly with a significant decrease in the average unit selling
price during the Review Year, and the revenue from the battery
materials segment of the Group decreased by approximately
27.7% over that in 2022 to approximately RMB498.6 million (2022:
approximately RMB689.5 million), accounting for approximately
24.1% (2022: approximately 32.5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the Review Year, the gross loss of this segment
was approximately RMB72.7 million (2022: a gross profit of
approximately RMB250.8 million), and the gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 51.0 percentage points to
approximately -14.6% (2022: approximately 36.4%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dye and agricultural chemical intermediates — accounting
for approximately 57.6% (2022: approximately 50.5%) of the
Group’s total revenue

The Group is the world’s largest manufacturer of DSD Acid.
DSD Acid is mainly used in the production of optical brightening
agents, and its end applications include brightening of paper and
detergents, and brightening elements of bleach for textile.

The Group is one of the world’'s three largest mononitrotoluene
manufacturers. PNT, ONT and MNT are collectively referred
to as mononitrotoluene. PNT is the major raw material in the
production of DSD Acid. By commencing its own production of
mononitrotoluene, the Group is able to stabilise the upstream
supply of raw materials. ONT and OT are major raw materials in
the production of herbicides as agricultural chemicals.

During the Review Year, the end-user demand for the dye
intermediate products of the Group gradually recovered,
resulting in a significant increase in the sales volume of DSD
Acid as compared with that in the same period in 2022. The tight
market supply of DSD Acid during the same period of 2022 has
resulted in higher average unit selling price of DSD Acid at that
time. During the Review Year, the average unit selling price of
DSD Acid was lower as compared with that in the same period
of 2022. The combined effect of these two factors led to an
increase of approximately 38.0% in revenue of dye intermediate
products of the Group to approximately RMB529.1 million (2022:
approximately RMB383.4 million) as compared with that in 2022,
accounting for approximately 25.6% (2022: approximately 18.1%)
of the Group’s total revenue.

During the Review Year, the agricultural chemical intermediate
products of the Group maintained steady operations with
revenue of approximately RMB660.7 million (2022: approximately
RMB688.8 million), accounting for approximately 32.0% (2022:
approximately 32.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

BEER R DT

R EELLERPHEE - HARAEERBRED
57.6% (ZZE == : #50.5%)

AEERBEIREANWDSDE A ER - DSDEFEA
REEHIB AR EE ?giﬁgﬁﬁ:ﬁf@ﬁ@ﬁiﬁ i
FRAMsm#RIEAKD

REBAREK =K —MWEFRELEEE 2L — - PNT -
ONTEMNT#:HE A —fEF K - PNTRAEEDSDE
NEBEMH  AEEATEE—HERXRAEBE

EHBEME ZHE - ONTROTRAEERELERR
RN EBEME -

EIEEF A - 2N 5 B 8 b ) B8 22 M A9 480 5 SR BT
W1E - FEBDSDBMEER T - —FRIPKAIEIR
Feo R T - —FRHDSDE TG HEREHE
R DSDEE BN FHEBR R © BEBEFADSDEE
UFEHEBR-_S-_—_FRHTHE SEMEAX
HRAFE  AEBANTHEERRSR - -
FINNAIZ8.0% EHNARBE2I1FEEL(ZT ==
F:HARMEISIAFERL)  HAEEREB KD
25.6% (ZE__4F : £918.1%) ©

BETAN AEBERECEFPHEEREBRE
2 O BRUWSEHARKEG0.7TAEL (T =
F:HARKES88EEL)  hANEEBEUZEL
32.0% (ZEZ—4F : 4932.4%) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE K&

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the total revenue of this segment
increased by approximately RMB117.6 million or approximately
11.0% as compared with that in 2022, and accounted for
approximately 57.6% (2022: approximately 50.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

During the Review Year, the total gross profit of this segment
increased by approximately 21.3% to approximately RMB248.5
million (2022: approximately RMB204.8 million), and the gross
profit margin increased by approximately 1.8 percentage points to
approximately 20.9% (2022: approximately 19.1%). In particular,
the gross profit margin of dye intermediates decreased by
approximately 1.9 percentage points to approximately 12.9%
(2022: approximately 14.8%), and the gross profit margin of
agricultural chemical intermediates increased by approximately
5.8 percentage points to approximately 27.3% (2022:
approximately 21.5%).

Pigment intermediates and new materials — accounting for
approximately 18.3% (2022: approximately 17.0%) of the
Group’s total revenue

The Group is the world’s largest manufacturer and distributor of
the high-performance pigment intermediate DMSS. The Group is
also a main manufacturer of DMAS, a food additive intermediate,
and DIPS, a high-performance pigment intermediate, in the world.
The above high-performance intermediate products are mainly
used in the production of end products such as printing inks, food
additives, automobile paints and coatings. BPDA, a new product
of the Group, is an important monomer for the production of new
material polyimide.

During the Review Year, the sales volume of pigment
intermediates products increased as compared with that in the
same period of 2022. The new material monomer BPDA products
were gradually launched in the market and started contributing
to the Group’s revenue. The average unit selling price of the
products of this segment decreased as compared with that in
the same period of 2022 due to changes in the structure of types
of products sold. Due to the combined effect of the above two
factors, revenue of this segment increased by approximately
4.5% over that in 2022 to approximately RMB377.0 million (2022:
approximately RMB360.6 million), accounting for approximately
18.3% (2022: approximately 17.0%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the profitability of this segment greatly
improved. The total gross profit of this segment increased
by approximately 26.5% to approximately RMB142.8 million
(2022: approximately RMB112.9 million), and the gross profit
margin increased by approximately 6.6 percentage points to
approximately 37.9% (2022: approximately 31.3%).

EXPORT

In 2023, the export revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB368.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB33.2 million or approximately 8.3% as
compared with the export revenue of approximately RMB401.5
million in 2022. The decrease in export revenue of the Group
was mainly due to the combined effects of the decrease in the
export volume of products of the dye and agricultural chemical
intermediate segment as affected by the international market
environment and the decrease in the average selling price of
products of the pigment intermediate and new materials segment
as a result of the changes in the structure of types of export
products sold.

In 2023, the export revenue of the Group accounted for
approximately 17.8% (2022: approximately 18.9%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has always regarded research and development and
technological innovation as the fundamental source of power for
the Group’s development. We continue to research and develop
new products, improve and enhance the production process and
product quality of existing products, and enhance the overall
competitiveness of our products in the market.

During the Review Year, we continuously optimised our
production process for iron phosphate battery material products,
and successfully developed high-capacity long-cycle lithium
iron phosphate precursor and high-pressure solid lithium iron
phosphate precursor, which improved the quality level of
the products in the existing production line. We successfully
developed the entire process of recycling technology for lithium
iron phosphate, and recycled major elements such as lithium, iron
and phosphorus as resources. We continued to carry out research
and development of new lithium iron manganese phosphate and
sodium-ion battery materials to seize market opportunities and
expand our business categories.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, we continuously optimised our production
process for the new material polymerised monomer BPDA. We
were committed to improving the production efficiency, and
reducing the overall production cost of BPDA. The BPDA products
produced by the Group’s first-phase production line gradually
entered the market and started to make revenue contribution. We
continuously improved and enhanced the production process
and product quality of our traditional intermediate products to
consolidate our technological advantages, cut costs and increase
efficiency on an ongoing basis.

Adhering to the belief that technology is our core competence,
we will continue to invest in research and development and make
unremitting efforts to maintain the competitive edge of our existing
products in the market and actively explore new business growth
opportunities and direction.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2023, the global economy maintained certain resilience against
high inflation and interest rates. China’s economy showed a
steady recovery. The domestic consumer market continued to pick
up, which was the key driver of economic growth. The new energy
industry chain maintained a relatively high growth rate, while the
market penetration of new energy vehicles continued to rise and
the electrochemical energy storage market also achieved rapid
growth. However, high interest rates, high inflation and geopolitical
conflicts continued to weigh on global economic growth, and
the US dollar interest rate hikes continued to undermine global
financial stability, thus undermining investors’ confidence and
leading to a weak trade growth. Under the complex economic
circumstances, the Group adhered to a proactive and steady
development strategy to actively respond to market fluctuations
and changes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the battery materials segment developed
amid drastic changes. Although the domestic and overseas new
energy vehicle and electrochemical energy storage industries
sustained rapid growth, the market prices of the two core raw
materials of lithium iron phosphate, namely lithium carbonate
and iron phosphate, dropped significantly as a result of higher
upstream raw material production capacity expansion over
downstream demand growth, thus having a material adverse
effect on the profitability of the Group’s battery materials
segment. In order to cope with market changes and realise
steady development, the Company had proactively adjusted its
development plan for this segment by postponing the construction
plan to build a new production line with production capacity of
80,000 tonnes/year and the expansion plan to expand the existing
production line with production capacity of 30,000 tonnes/
year to 60,000 tonnes/year from the planned completion by the
end of 2023 to by the end of 2024 or in due course. The plans
may be further adjusted in light of the actual market situation.
Despite the above changes and adjustments, the Group is still
full of confidence in the long-term development of the battery
materials segment in the future. With the continuous development
of the domestic and overseas new energy vehicle industry and
electrochemical energy storage industry, along with the elimination
of outdated production capacity and the improvement in the
supply and demand gap amid the market restructuring process,
the Group will continue to invest in the promising lithium battery
materials market by leveraging its technological advantages
accumulated over the years since entering the lithium iron
phosphate market, and its first-mover advantages in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, in order to diversify the shareholder
structure of Shandong TNM, expand its capital strength and
facilitate its business development, in March and April 2023,
Shandong TNM entered into capital increase agreements with
ten independent investors including Sinopec Group Capital Co.,
Ltd.* (FBIA{LEEEAREBRAR]). The independent investors
agreed to make cash capital contribution of RMB229,000,000 in
aggregate to Shandong TNM in exchange for approximately 9.84%
equity interest in the enlarged registered capital of Shandong
TNM in aggregate. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 10 March 2023, 17 April 2023 and 26 May
2023. In addition, affected by the market environment, the Group’s
planned spin-off and separate listing of Shandong TNM Group on
a stock exchange recognised by the PRC (the “Proposed Spin-
off”) have been postponed. We will reactivate the Proposed Spin-
off in due course depending on market conditions and make
further announcement(s) as and when appropriate in accordance
with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.

During the Review Year, the Group’s pigment intermediates and
new materials segment had further improvement in profitability.
New material monomer BPDA products were gradually introduced
to the market and made revenue contribution. Besides, we
continued to make progress regarding the proposed transfer
of listing of Tsaker Technology to the BSE (the “Proposed
BSE Listing”). In order to diversify the shareholder structure
and promote the corporate profile and reputation of Tsaker
Technology, in June 2023, Tsaker Hong Kong entered into a share
transfer agreement with Hebei Industrial Investment Strategically
New Industry Development Centre (Limited Partnership)* (a4t
ERBFEEEEDO(BRAE)), Hebei Structural Reform Fund
(Limited Partnership)* (ib&BHABES(ARAEE)) and Cang
County Cangfu Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership)* (&
FRARBAEREES(BRAEH)) (collectively, the “Purchasers”),
pursuant to which Tsaker Hong Kong disposed of an aggregate
of approximately 6.12% equity interest in Tsaker Technology to
the Purchasers at an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB55,000,000. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcements dated 13 June 2023 and 26 June 2023. The
Company will make further announcement(s) on the Proposed BSE
Listing as and when appropriate in accordance with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, benefiting from the recovery of domestic
and overseas consumption, the market demand for the dye
intermediate products of the Group recovered significantly. In
order to consolidate the market share of the dye intermediate
products of the Group, the Group adopted aggressive competitive
strategies during the Review Year with a significant increase
in product sales as compared with that in the same period of
2022. The Group’s agricultural chemical intermediates segment
maintained steady operations with ever-increasing profitability
against the backdrop of domestic economic recovery and
development. We believe that the revenue and profit of the dye
and agricultural chemical intermediates segment of the Group will
maintain positive growth along with economic recovery and easing
inflation.

Looking ahead, we will continue to take a proactive approach in
pursuit of stable development, actively rise to market changes,
and maintain a sound financial strategy. We will further invest in
research and development to constantly develop new products
and new processes. As a future development direction of the
Group, we will continue to expand our product offerings in the
fields of new energy and new materials. Holding fast to our
traditional business segments, we will also maintain and expand
our industry-leading edges in terms of technology, cost and
market competitiveness. In spite of an international political and
economic environment full of complexity and volatility, we are
confident to seize opportunities and overcome challenges so as to
embrace a better tomorrow.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2023, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,065.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB56.8 million or approximately 2.7% as compared with
approximately RMB2,122.3 million in 2022. The gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB318.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB249.9 million or approximately
44.0% as compared with approximately RMB568.5 million in
2022. In 2023, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
15.4%, as compared with that of approximately 26.8% in 2022.
The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly
due to the significant year-on-year decline in the average unit
selling price of iron phosphate, a major product of the Group’s
battery materials segment, as a result of market fluctuation during
the Review Year.

NET PROFIT AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

In 2023, the net profit of the Group was approximately RMB45.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB209.0
million or approximately 82.2% as compared with approximately
RMB254.2 million in 2022. In 2023, the Group’s net profit margin
was approximately 2.2%, as compared with that of approximately
12.0% in 2022. The decrease in net profit and net profit margin
was mainly due to the significant decrease in the average unit
selling price of iron phosphate, the major battery material product
of the Group, as mentioned above.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

In 2023, selling and distribution expenses amounted to
approximately RMB44.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB6.4 million as compared with approximately
RMB50.6 million in 2022. The decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in the average unit
freight cost of the Group.

In 2023, selling and distribution expenses represented

approximately 2.1% (2022: approximately 2.4%) of the Group’s
total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2023, administrative expenses were approximately RMB178.3
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB44.4
million as compared with approximately RMB133.9 million in 2022.
The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to (i)
the increase in research and development expenditures; (ii) the
increase in depreciation included in administrative expenses as
the office building of Shandong TNM was officially put into use
in early 2023; and (iii) the increase in labor costs included in
administrative expenses.

In 2023, administrative expenses represented approximately 8.6%
(2022: approximately 6.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In 2023, the Group provided impairment losses on property,
plants and equipment of approximately RMB14.0 million (2022:
approximately RMB7.2 million) and none impairment losses on
intangible assets (2022: approximately RMB9.0 million). The
impairment losses on property, plants and equipment for the year
were mainly attributed to the impairment provisions arising from
the disposal to be conducted of certain iron phosphate production
equipment in the battery materials segment. For more details,
please refer to note 13 to financial statements of this annual
report.

FINANCE COSTS

In 2023, finance costs amounted to approximately RMB33.0
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB17.1
million as compared with approximately RMB15.9 million in
2022. The increase was mainly due to the grant of repurchase
rights to investors upon the introduction of the first round of
independent investors to Shandong TNM Group and the transfer
of partial interest in Tsaker Technology held by Tsaker Hong Kong
during the Review Period, under which the relevant repurchase
obligations were recognized as financial liabilities with interest
to be accrued. For details, please refer to the notes to the
consolidated statement of changes in equity in this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXCHANGE LOSSES, NET

In 2023, exchange losses amounted to approximately RMB5.0
million, as compared with exchange losses of approximately
RMB18.8 million in 2022, which was mainly attributable to the
fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB against USD.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are generally subject to
the Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 25%. Tsaker Technology
is subject to the enterprise income tax at a preferential rate of
15% due to the possession of a high-tech enterprise certificate.
The subsidiary of the Company in Hong Kong is subject to the
two-tier tax regime, i.e., the first HK$2.0 million of assessable
profits earned will be taxed at half the current Hong Kong profits
tax rate (i.e., 8.25%), and the remaining assessable profits will
continue to be taxed at 16.5%. The Singapore subsidiary of the
Company is generally subject to the Singapore Enterprise Income
Tax at a rate of 17.0%. In 2023, income tax expense amounted
to approximately RMB14.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB66.1 million as compared with approximately
RMB80.5 million in 2022. The decrease in income tax expense
was mainly due to the decrease in the profit before tax during the
Review Year as compared with that in 2022.

CASH FLOWS

In 2023, net cash inflows from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB46.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB325.3 million as compared with
approximately RMB371.5 million in 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the operating profit during the
Review Year.

In 2023, net cash outflows used in investing activities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB134.0 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB151.2 million as compared
with approximately RMB285.2 million in 2022, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the capital expenditure and
payment for the construction of the production line of Shandong
TNM during the Review Year upon the completion of the
construction of the iron phosphate production line with an annual
production capacity of 50,000 tonnes of Shandong TNM in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2023, the Group's net cash inflows from financing activities
amounted to approximately RMB185.7 million,
increase of approximately RMB265.1 million as compared with
net cash outflows used in financing activities of approximately
RMB79.4 million in 2022, which was mainly due to the completion
of the introduction of first round of independent investors to
Shandong TNM Group and the transfer of partial interest in Tsaker
Technology held by Tsaker Hong Kong during the Review Year.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
10 March 2023, 17 April 2023, 26 May 2023, 13 June 2023 and 26
June 2023.

representing an

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2023, the daily working capital of the Group was primarily
derived from cash flows from internal operations, disposal
of partial interest in a subsidiary, capital contribution from
non-controlling interests and bank borrowings. As at 31
December 2023, the Group had (i) cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB287.4 million,
RMB258.7 million was denominated in RMB and approximately
RMB28.7 million in other currencies (USD, HKD and SGD)
(2022: approximately RMB189.1 million,
RMB173.6 million was denominated in RMB and approximately
RMB15.5 million in other currencies (USD, HKD and SGD)); (ii)
restricted cash of approximately RMB70.6 million denominated
in RMB (2022: approximately RMB7.1 million denominated in
RMB); and (iii) interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of approximately RMB317.1 million with interest rate of 2.8%-
9.22% per annum, all denominated in RMB (2022: approximately
RMB300.6 million with interest rate of 3.2%-9.22% per annum,
all denominated in RMB), of which (a) approximately RMB299.1
million shall be repayable within one year, approximately RMB12.3
million shall be repayable in the second year, and approximately
RMB5.7 million shall be repayable in the third to fifth years,
inclusive (2022: approximately RMB261.8 million shall be
repayable within one year, approximately RMB25.8 million shall be
repayable in the second year, and approximately RMB13.0 million
shall be repayable in the third to fifth years, inclusive); and (b) all
bore fixed interest rates (2022: all bore fixed interest rates). The
Group’s unutilised banking facilities amounted to approximately
RMB177.5 million (2022: approximately RMB110.7 million) as at 31
December 2023.

in which approximately

in which approximately
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2023, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument or
have any borrowing or hedge in its foreign currency investment.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position for the year ended 31 December 2023.
To manage the liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's gearing ratio (calculated as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings at the end of the year
divided by total equity) was approximately 15.4% as compared
with approximately 14.3% as at 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the total current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,467.5 million (2022:
approximately RMB1,187.9 million), primarily consisting
of inventories of approximately RMB285.3 million (2022:
approximately RMB272.8 million), trade receivables and
notes receivable of approximately RMB742.0 million (2022:
approximately RMB654.8 million), prepayments and other
receivables of approximately RMB69.3 million (2022:
approximately RMB59.6 million), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB287.4 million (2022: approximately RMB189.1
million) and restricted cash of approximately RMB70.6 million
(2022: approximately RMB7.1 million).

INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly consisted of raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished products. In 2023, the inventory turnover
days decreased by 4 days from 62 days in 2022 to 58 days. The
inventory turnover days remained stable.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
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As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables and notes receivable
of the Group increased by approximately RMB87.2 million as
compared with that in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The turnover days for trade receivables and notes receivables
increased to 122 days for 2023 from 81 days for 2022, which was
mainly due to the increase in the Group's sales to customers with
longer credit period in the battery materials segment.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2023, prepayments and other receivables
of the Group increased by approximately RMB9.7 million from
approximately RMB59.6 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB69.3 million in aggregate, which
was mainly due to the increase in the amount of input VAT to be
deducted.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the total current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,140.2 million (2022:
approximately RMB1,034.5 million), primarily consisting of trade
and bills payables of approximately RMB472.6 million (2022:
approximately RMB384.1 million), other payables and accruals of
approximately RMB277.6 million (2022: approximately RMB363.3
million) and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB299.1 million (2022: approximately RMB261.8
million).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The turnover days for trade and bills payables increased to 88
days in 2023 from 67 days in 2022. The increase in the turnover
days was mainly due to the increase in the purchase from
suppliers offering longer credit periods.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2023, other payables and accruals of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB85.7 million from
approximately RMB363.3 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB277.6 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the decrease in the endorsed notes receivable not
derecognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and trade receivables with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB284.6 million (2022:
approximately RMB70.8 million) were pledged to secure bank
loans and other borrowings granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Except for the deemed disposal of partial interest in Shandong
TNM as a result of the introduction of the first round of
independent investors to Shandong TNM Group and the transfer
of partial interest in Tsaker Technology by Tsaker Hong Kong
during the Review Year as disclosed above, there were no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, or significant investment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets acquisition as at 31 December 2023 and the date
of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in the exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of
the Group is mainly related to its operating activities. Along with
the continuous expansion of the scale of its export business, the
Group’s operations may be affected by the future fluctuation in
exchange rates. The Group is closely monitoring the impact of
fluctuation in currency exchange rates on the foreign exchange
risk of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group currently does not have any hedging policy for foreign
currencies in place. The Board will remain alert to any relevant
risks and, if necessary, consider to hedge any material potential
foreign exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established human resources policies and systems
with a view to achieving effective management in all aspects and
building a learning-oriented organisation by providing motivational
rewards through a proper reward system and offering employees
various training programs including internal/external training and
public courses.

The remuneration package offered to the employees (including the
Directors) was in line with their duties and the prevailing market
terms. Staff benefits, including bonus, training schemes, pension
fund, medical coverage, provident funds etc., were also provided
to the employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 2,058 (2022:
employees.

1,947)

During the Review Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including salaries, bonuses, social insurances and provident
funds) amounted to approximately RMB217.1 million (2022:
approximately RMB197.7 million).

The Group did not have any share scheme for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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1.1.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT TSAKER NEW ENERGY
Introduction

Since its establishment in 1997, Tsaker New Energy has
been committed to integrating green technology into
research and development (“R&D”) and production of
fine chemicals such as dyes and pigment intermediates.
With its outstanding products and services, the Group is
well received by customers and was successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange in 2015. As one of the global
leading manufacturers of dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates and pigment intermediates and new material,
Tsaker New Energy has many advanced production
plants, including the world’s largest production plant
for DSD Acid, DMSS, as well as one of the world’s three
largest mononitrotoluene production plants. In addition
to consolidating its own advantages in fine chemicals,
Tsaker New Energy entered the fields of lithium battery
materials in 2017 by utilizing its own technology and rich
experience in environmental protection with fine chemicals,
and expanded the production capacity of battery material
iron phosphate in 2022. Tsaker New Energy not only
pays attention to the quality and standard of products,
but also pays attention to the impacts of the company’s
operation on the environment and society. Going forward,
the Group would actively promote green and sustainable
development, embracing technological innovation to meet
challenges.
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1.2.

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Vision and Core Values

Tsaker New Energy continues to adhere to the corporate
philosophy of “Build a Better World with Green
Technology”, achieving the Group’s core goals and values
in leadership in industry and pursuit of excellence. In
addition to pledging to provide customers with high-quality
and reliable innovative products and services, the Group
also focuses on fulfilling corporate social responsibility to
ensure that the Group’s business abides by integrity and
environmental protection principles. The Group constantly
makes an effort to scale up its investment in environmental
protection and the R&D of green technologies, continuously
expanding the market of upstream battery materials,
leading Tsaker New Energy and the society to achieve
sustainable development.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Tsaker New Energy, | am
pleased to present the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance (‘ESG”) Report for the year 2023. In 2023,
we experienced multiple challenges such as economic
growth slowdown and geopolitical conflicts. In these major
changes, the Group has always applied ESG concepts
for effective management and governance, continued to
explore the value of ESG in corporate governance, respond
to uncertainties with sustainable development thinking,
and strive to achieve coordinated development of the
economy, society and environment. Contribute to building
a community with a shared future for mankind.

During the Reporting Period, with a high sense of
responsibility and mission, the Group strengthened
environmental protection, promoted green production,
promoted technological innovation, optimized the corporate
governance structure, improved employee benefits and
fulfilled social responsibilities.

In 2023, on the basis of the establishment of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (‘ESG
Committee”), the Group has also established a sustainable
development group to assist the ESG Committee in
studying policy guidelines and coordinating implementation
actions. The Group has integrated ESG concepts into daily
operations to comply with the government's carbon peak
and carbon neutrality goals.
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Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
stakeholders. Your support is the driving force for us to
move forward, and we look forward to working with you to
achieve a better future.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi
18 March 2024

ABOUT THE REPORT
Purpose

Tsaker New Energy is pleased to present the ESG
Report of the Group for 2023, which aims to explain
the Group’s policies, initiatives and effectiveness in
promoting sustainable development to internal and external
stakeholders.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules, and comply
with the “comply or explain” provisions contained in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide,
except for those provisions that the Group believes are not
applicable to its business (explanations are explained in
the corresponding chapters).

Reporting Scope

This report covers the Company and its subsidiaries
(Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Dongao, Shandong TNM, Cangzhou
Tsaker Lithium Energy, Tsaker Technology), and the
coverage period is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023 (“Reporting Period”). Information on corporate
governance has been set out in the annual report in
accordance with Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

Report topic

In order to express the corporate value and development
strategy of Tsaker New Energy, the theme of this year’s
ESG report is “Actively promote new green development
and meet challenges with technological innovation.”
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Actively promote new green development

As global climate change and environmental problems
become increasingly serious, green development
has become an important issue for governments and
enterprises around the world. Actively promoting new green
development is an important direction for current and future
development. Tsaker New Energy actively responds to
national policies, advocates environmental protection and
sustainability as its development concepts, and focuses
on resource conservation, environmental friendliness,
and ecological balance. During the Reporting Period, the
Group spared no effort to promote new green development
and fulfilled its environmental protection commitments with
active actions. We continue to take innovative measures to
minimize energy consumption and waste emissions during
the production process through technological upgrading
and management optimization. At the same time, we
actively carry out energy conservation, emission reduction
and resource recycling, strive to organically combine
production with environmental protection, and strive to
create green and sustainable production bases. The
Group’s efforts have yielded results, during the Reporting
Period, Tsaker Dongao won the titles of “National Green
Factory” and “Shandong Province Green Factory”.

Meet challenges with technological innovation

With the rapid changes in the domestic and international
environment, business operations are facing
unprecedented problems and challenges. Since the
beginning of this year, global economic growth has
gradually slowed down, regional military conflicts have
escalated, international trade frictions and many other
challenges have come one after another, bringing huge
pressure and uncertainty to enterprises. In response to
these challenges, the Group has unswervingly increased its
efforts in technological innovation. Adhering to the concept
of scientific and technological innovation, we continue to
increase investment in research and development, cultivate
innovative talents, strengthen cooperation with domestic
scientific research institutions, and strive to create a
scientific and technological innovation system with core
competitiveness to lay a solid foundation for the steady
development of the enterprise.
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Reporting Standard

The report follows the four reporting principles described
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide:

Materiality: The Group regularly conducts stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessments to identify ESG
issues material to the Group’s business operation.

Quantitative: The data presented in this report have been
carefully collected, and the environmental and social key
performance indicators (‘Key Performance Indicators”)
have been disclosed in this report. Criteria, methods,
references and conversion factors used to calculate key
performance indicators are stated where appropriate.

Balance: Disclose relevant performance in a transparent
manner, impartially and balancedly.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have been consistent
over the years to facilitate comparisons over time.

Group Sustainable Development Governance

The Group’s core sustainability goal is to “Build a Better
World with Green Technology”, and to create long-term
and sustainable value for all stakeholders. Adhering to
the core value, the Group has adopted a strictly effective
sustainable development governance structure to ensure
the implementation of sustainable development runs
through all levels of the Group. The Group has established
the ESG Committee prior to the start of the 2020 reporting
period and established the sustainable development team
during the current Reporting Period to assist the Group in
managing its ESG-related issues.
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Governance Framework

Board oversight of ESG matters

The Board plays a major role in overseeing the Group's
ESG matters. In 2023, the Board, management and
employees responsible for ESG matters assessed the
impact of ESG-related risks on operations and formulated
ESG-related policies to deal with related risks. The board’s
oversight ensures that management and employees
responsible for ESG matters have all the appropriate tools
and resources to oversee ESG matters.

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to transparency
and accountability, management and employees
responsible for ESG matters review and evaluate the
Group’s performance on ESG matters and report to the
Board on a regular basis.

The Board management methods and strategies for major
ESG-related matters

In order to deeply understand the opinions and
expectations of different stakeholders on ESG matters,
the Group conducts materiality assessments every
year. The Group ensures that it uses various platforms
and communication channels to engage, listen and
respond to its key stakeholders. Through comprehensive
communication with stakeholders, the Group is able
to understand the expectations and concerns of its
stakeholders. The feedback received enables the Group
to make more informed decisions and better assess
and manage the impact toward the Group’s operational
decisions.

The Board

The Board, supported by the ESG Committee and the
sustainable development team, would be responsible for all
sustainability strategies, management, performance, and
reporting related to the Group. The Board also regularly
reviews the Group’s sustainable development direction,
goals and progress, and jointly review the risks and
opportunities for its sustainable development.
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ESG Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee
are as follows:

o to identify related issues that have a significant
impact on the Group’s operations or the interests
of other important stakeholders in relation to
environmental, social and governance aspects;

° to provide guidance for and review the Group's
environmental, social and governance vision, goals
and strategies, and make recommendations to the
Board for approve relevant environmental, social
and governance initiatives;

. to monitor and review emerging environmental,
social and governance trends and issues, provide
guidance for the development of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance vision based
on relevant circumstances, and provide advisory
opinions on management of the current and
emerging issues that affect Group’s environmental,
social and governance;

° to set the Group’s environmental, social and
governance goals, indicators, key performance
indicators and measures, monitor the
implementation of relevant measures, and evaluate
the effectiveness of relevant measures;

° to review and perform risk assessment of the
Group’s impact on health, safety, environment and
society;

. to adopt and update the policies on production
safety, environmental protection, social
responsibility management and corporate
governance of the Group when necessary;

o to assist the Board in preparing the annual
environmental, social and governance report in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide for its consideration,
approval and disclosure;
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° to review and monitor the Group’s environmental,
social and governance policies and practices
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to review and evaluate the performance and
terms of reference of the committee to ensure that
the committee operate at optimal efficacy and
recommend changes that it deems appropriate for
the approval of the Board;

o other matters authorized by the Board related to
health, safety, environment, social responsibility and
corporate governance.

Stakeholder Engagement and Communication
Channels

Stakeholder engagement is a core part of the Group’'s
sustainable development work. We communicate with
stakeholders through multiple channels to actively
understand their expectations and requirements for the
Group’s social responsibility. We attach great importance
to the opinions of stakeholders, incorporate their concerns
and requirements into the Group’s social responsibility
issues, and actively respond with practical actions to strive
for the common growth of stakeholders.

The Group focuses on establishing a regular
communication mechanism with stakeholders and has
established online and offline communication channels. It
promptly explains the Group’s sustainable development
strategic plan and performance to stakeholders, consults
all parties for their opinions and requirements, as well as
analyze and develop sustainability plans.
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Expectations

M EER
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Main Communication Channels
FTEBBRE

Shareholder or investor

BRI EE

Government or regulatory
authorities
I 3 Ba B B P

e Protect shareholders’ rights and
interests
IREEA R M 2

e Compliance operation and
management
BRKEHER

e [nformation disclosure
ERWE

e Return on investment
% & B3

* Legal and compliance regulation
ERNAREE

e Tax liability
ADTE s

e Social contributions
HeaR

e Business and economic
development
EFELRER

e Safe operation
TERIEE

e Annual General Meeting

BRBERE

e Announcement communications
(interim reports, annual reports,
circulars and announcements)
NEBA (R ERE - F3 - BEF
nE)

e Company/Stock Exchange website
NCID e

e |nvestor briefing

REE®R

e Meeting
=
e Compliance report
BRME
e |nspect on the spot
RismE
e Attend government meetings or
seminars
X
e Submit documents

R
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Expectations

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Main Communication Channels

MEBEEES M ER TEBBRE
Employee e Protect employees’ rights and e Electronic communications
== interests BB
RIEE THE= BN e Staff meeting
e Communication between BT
management and employees e Team building activities
EREMHETIRN EfEyEE)
e QOccupational safety and health e Seminars and employee training
BT EEE Hare k8 T
e Improve employee welfare e Performance appraisal
HEETREN BUERZ
e Equal employment opportunities
and diversity development
FERERSESZIT(LEE
Customers e |ong term business relationship e Daily communication and contact
s REAEGEIFE H % R

e Performance and product safety
¥EHERLE

e Product quality
EmES

* [nventory management
FEEE
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e Corporate website
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e Social media
MRS

e Customer satisfaction survey
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Expectations

M EER
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Main Communication Channels
FTEBBRE

Local community
=8 ikad

Industry Association

ELE

Suppliers
e

e Compliance emissions
BB

e Save resources
BRI E IR

e Community involvement
el

e Charitable projects
NERE]

e Comply with laws and regulations
BOERER

* Integrity management
MEEE

e Product quality

EREE

e Fair play
ATHF

e |ong term business relationship
REIEBRIER

e Product quality inspection

EREEER

* |mprove environmental
management
TEREERE

e Promote energy conservation
HEHEREIREDAY

e Volunteer activity
EREH

e Charitable activities

NG

e Access
G
e Seminar
W
e Annual meeting

Fg

e Supplier evaluation
R

e Field trips
B ER

e Daily communication and contact
Sl F
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3.7 Importance Assessment 3.7 EEMHIM
The Group continuously reviews the relevance of ESG REERFBEFEMESGRE B ERE MG R Fz
issues to our business and stakeholders, so as to formulate MHREE R BAEE 1 - S ETTEMESGE R
comprehensive ESG management and strategies to achieve KRB LGEBABERE - RMIE D KU E
informed decisions. We implement a four-step materiality TENEZ TG E - AEE KA
assessment methodology to identify and assess material XL ERNEKNESGERE ©
ESG issues in our business operations.
ZMEE
Material Topics
A
e S
o
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5= ®C Environmental
EE ®0
|5 R K
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ﬁ S W 1 ot Social
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M Governance
P
N X
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HREIHEROZE
Impact on Tsaker New Energy
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Identify

With reference to peer benchmarking results, ESG
issues considered to be material to the Group are
identified.

Prioritize

Conduct regular online stakeholder surveys
to collect feedback. Based on the importance
to stakeholders and the Group’s business
development, review and integrate peer
benchmarking results and stakeholder engagement
activities to determine the overall level of importance
of various ESG issues.

Verify
The Board further reviews and verifies the results of
the above steps.

Review

Conduct an annual review of ESG issues to confirm
their relevance and importance to the Group’s
strategic business development.
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Important social issues

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Important governance issues

issues
REEERE HESERE EREERE
A Air pollutant emissions J Business ethics and integrity R Anti-corruption
ZERT R YIBE AR [BES ISR AR RES
B Comply with environmental K Comply with local social laws and S Supply chain management
laws and regulations regulations fHpEsEE IR
RHEBRBREOERER HEBMLESEREERER
C Emission of greenhouse L Occupational health and safety T Business expansion
gases BEEEMZE XBER
REREEE
D Wastewater discharge and M Employment related matters U Supplier evaluation and selection
management EEREASE HEE AT 2
VIR EER AN E IR
E General waste disposal N Diversity and equal opportunities V Product safety and quality
—RREEYEIE LTSRS management
EnRtrREEER
F Hazardous waste disposal O Development and training W Establish a sustainable
BEEEYREE TR KIE development framework and
strategy
R AR S R AR R RS S
G Material usage efficiency P Social participation X Purchasing method
MRHE K g2 HKEHX
H Efficient use of resources ~ Q Salary and employee benefits Y Customer privacy
= AE R ¥ 8 TraA BPRAL

| Use renewable resources

RATHLEER
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Contact Details

If you have any comments or suggestions regarding this
report, please contact the investor relations department
or the corresponding person of ESG Committee at the
address below:

Building No. 10, 109 Jinghaisanlu, Beijing Economic-
Technological Development Area, the PRC

Contact person of ESG Committee: Yang Fuguang
Telephone: (86) 0317-7750925

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Strict production management

Tsaker New Energy is committed to providing sustainable
products and services, and we also require our suppliers
to uphold the same core values. Therefore, in the process
of supply chain management, product quality management
and customer service, we not only fulfill the standard of
strict quality management, but also incorporate sustainable
elements into all aspects. In the procurement of raw
materials and selection of suppliers, green products and
partners with sustainable development awareness are
prioritized throughout the selection process. Our Group has
also been working closely with our suppliers by adopting
a two-way and constructive communication to further
optimize our sustainable supply chain.

Appropriate Supply Management

Tsaker New Energy cooperates with suppliers who
are devoted to excellence, environmental protection
and business ethics, and expects them to emphasize
environmental and social responsibility. Our Group
continues to improve the management mechanism of
the material supply chain. We have formulated several
management measures such as “Measures for Introducing
Raw Material Suppliers” and “Raw Material Procurement
Management System” to strictly control the internal
procurement process.
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In order to ensure the quality of purchased materials and
supply stability, standardize the procurement method,
and simultaneously achieve cost reduction, enhance
supplier interaction, and achieve a win-win situation, we
have developed a series of procurement and supplier
management system:

. Market research and/or site visits are conducted
to identify an initial list of shortlisted suppliers.
Suppliers with leading technical conditions, good
corporate reputation and outstanding business
systems would have priority.

° For new suppliers, approval and selection are made
at any time, and the relevant departments would
conduct a scoring process to assess the progress,
quality, after-sales service, service attitude,
capability and continuity of their supply/service.
The Group would assist those suppliers with lower
scores by providing feedbacks and waiting for
improvement and re-assessment.

° Our Group conducts site visits to our suppliers’
production locations on annual basis in order to
precisely monitor the sustainable performance of our
suppliers. The visits primarily rate the performance
in terms of ESG and allow the suppliers to take
appropriate follow-ups. Our Group is expected to
maintain close contact with our suppliers and jointly
practice the concept of sustainable development.

° All purchased materials coming into the factory are
subject to strict examination organized by quality
control departments guided by company restricted
documents. Only qualified materials can proceed
into the warehousing procedures, while unqualified
materials are replaced or returned.
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. In order to strengthen our control over our
suppliers’ social responsibility, we have established
a “Supplier Code of Conduct”, which sets out
requirements for all categories of direct and indirect
suppliers we work with in terms of labor, ethics,
health, safety, environment and quality standards.

We emphasize the control of environmental and social
risks of our upstream and downstream suppliers,
continuously pay attention to the fulfillment of our suppliers’
performance in labor, safety and environmental protection,
etc. We require our suppliers to respect their employees,
pay attention to the safety of the working environment,
use environmentally friendly products, pay attention
to environmental protection, and actively promote our
suppliers to maintain a consistent vision of sustainable
development with us and adopt a good sustainable
development policy.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a
total of 1,010 local raw material suppliers, representing an
increase of 477 suppliers as compared with the previous
reporting period, with the sources of increase mainly being
Shandong TNM and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy
base. The data of raw material suppliers by region is listed
below:

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

. RN HERLEEEERE - M
HECHERITAERD - HRMEE
H) T A B 51 B B R R R A R R
BEST - ER - 2F k2 RR
MEETHEREER -

BRHER ETHHEERERRE T ERRKRN
EE BEMIERESTIERZE - RE
FESFTHEHNETER  BXHEREESR
T BRIFERENLZE  EHARRER
BERREFRE  BRESHHERELMARS
— BT R R FRS WER A R AT ) AT R A
BRIIE -

BEABFEHRR - REBE B AR R FHE
JEF1,010% » AL EEREHILE 477K
ENRRERR/IUREERMHIBMNER
BREEM - iR B 0 R RHE FE R BUE
wmr

Number of Suppliers

HEREE
Category Rl 2023 2022
Local PN 1,010 533
Overseas RSB 0 2
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4.2

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Quality control

Tsaker New Energy emphasizes product quality and
ensures it through strict management measures. We follow
the 1SO9001:2015 standard by regularly inspecting and
maintaining our facilities, controlling key environmental
factors, as well as monitoring and improving the production
process concurrently. These measures ensure that we
provide high-quality products and services, earn the
trust of our customers, and establish a foundation for
sustainable development.

During the Reporting Period, the certifications of quality
management system for Tsaker Huayu and Tsaker
Technology have been renewed, and Shandong TNM also
obtained the quality management system certification.
The quality control system certification of Tsaker Dongao
has been extended in 2021, and the quality system of
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy was in the certification
stage during the reporting period.

MTII:ﬁE#

G 0752021010035
HIER

{60} 1
EEA S TR D (G

e e ummemmuknmm:w
B ARS: 011309230694210142
RUHERGISRTE
GB/T 19001—2016/150 9001:2015 45k
uw;nmu
— Wik (05D M), MWMERE

S biEE (4, §f =34
lel)(nls)lnlgzﬁtﬁ lT—lT—I—‘II Ouss), ZHT =] =

nah=a, 4
®

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&

ZR=REM (DIPS), 2, 5-—FMEE.

OMAS) . T
l (INA)) R‘r!}iﬁﬂﬁ @M 1, - FEM) R/ FRRNEFIBR

4.2

ERELMYRRFBEEISO 9001 EE

ARAEEN,: 200 AR
ESRYNE: 41 BRA
DRAEEN: ZSE 1R

i -~ V%?;

LT ORI IR LAY G R
ARGk o
HocH!

R ARATE

Qﬂﬂm2m3¢4ﬂ145i2mmﬁﬂ1ﬁzsao

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BEEEE

CERYVERERERLEE  BBEKERRE
MERERE mmE o FPIEFEISO9001 : 2015
12 EHIRE MG ERN - EHIERIRE

B TERERMBELEEIRE o B
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁfFﬁ?ﬂ#%’uﬂuEE’JF%ﬂHEﬁ% )
BTEPER  RUKELRRETEAR -

A PEEENVENRNES
{RECESE  IWREEMM R
%ﬁﬁf/ RE - -FERANBEEE
BER-ZE-_—FEE AMEER
BRTEREHNERNRBERER -

i 2 e %N UH
F

m@

o gn oy opt
e i
RSN FR

Tsaker Huayu and Tsaker Technology have extended their ISO
9001 certifications of quality management system which are
valid from April 14th 2023 to November 23th 2024.



Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

CERTIFICATE

Shandong TNM have obtained its ISO 9001 certification of
quality management system which is valid from August 20th
2023 to August 19th 2025.

IWREEHMAEEBGISO 9001 B & EIPE R AEE
202348 A20H £2025F8 H19H -
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A IE B
FERS . 0752021010056R2
HIEH
M’Té.g*ﬂk%ﬁm/\a Tsaker Dongao have extended its ISO 9001 certification of
e quality management system which is valid from November
RUNRBWRSREE
GB/T 19001—2016/1S0 9001:2015 4Rk
= 15th 2021 to November 16th 2025.
P, PMBEE, MHEPROW/ FRRES
fﬁ’&nlll!l!*ﬁ BRER ML) S ROKREIARER.
biadan Soe FERRELAISO 001 BEEERBRAREEE - AU H2021

F11H15HE2024F11 H16H -

We have won recognition from local governments BPMUBREENREEE - RGFTHAK
and various industry organizations with our strict and IREITRABMAIRA] « EAREHRA - K
professional quality management. During the Reporting EEMHE RN EES TF36HTLIBERR
Period, the Group received a total of 36 awards and &=

certifications in the research and technology sector as

listed below:
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Name of Corporate Award

RRIFEM

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Awarding Organization

REHE

Tsaker Huayu
MERER

National May 1st Labor Award
2 EH— 485K

National Advanced Applicable
Technology (Equipment) Catalog

for the Comprehensive Utilization

of Industrial Resources
BRTIEERGETMIAERRTER
g (&%) B 8%

China Top 100 Fine Chemicals

P EREA(E T AR

Hebei Province Single champion in
manufacturing industry
LR RS ERTE

Innovation Award of Hebei Province
Industry-University-Research
Cooperation Promotion Association
LA EEREEREG AR

Hebei Province Specialized and New
Model Enterprises
AL BRERRT RE

Hebei Province Industrial High
Quality Comprehensive Evaluation
Top 100 Enterprises
MtET¥ESEEREATERRDE

Class A Excellent Lean Management
Company

EABREIBAENE

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]

All-China Federation of Trade Unions
FEXEATS

Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s
Republic of China

China National Chemical Industry
Information Association, National
Fine Chemical Raw Materials and
Intermediates Industry Association
Group

FEE TERESBE - 2EBEMAET
R kR EETE A

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AibE TEMESCEE

Hebei Province Industry-University-
Research Cooperation Promotion
Association

At EESHAERES

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

itE T{EEE

Hebei Provincial Leading Group
Office of Strengthen Province
Construction

I E RER B RRBG/ NMEPAE

Cangzhou Municipal Leading Group
Office of Strengthen City
Construction

M EER TR REE NMEAPLRE
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Name of Corporate Award

RRIFLM

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Awarding Organization

REHE

Cangzhou Tsaker
Lithium Energy
BN E R

Tsaker Dongao

FERR

A Rank of Hebei Province Industrial
Enterprises R&D Organization
ibA THEDEREEBAR

Innovative SME of Hebei Province
BB E RN

First prize in the Science and
Technology awarded by Hebei
High-Tech Enterprises Association
LR SR E RS R RT8E—

%18

Innovation Award of Hebei Province
Industry-University-Research
Cooperation Promotion Association
At B ESHAERES RIS

Green Factory at National Level

B AR AR 2 TR

Green Factory for the Petroleum and
Chemical Industries

AMAE TITR A E T
Green Factory of Shandong Province
IWERE & BT

Shandong Province Antelope
Enterprises

IWRABRDEE

“One enterprise, one technology”
Industrial R&D center
in Shandong Province

WERA [ — b — 5l | B L

“Specialized, Sophisticated,
Distinctive, and New” SME in
Shandong Province

IWRE BB N

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

LA TEME B

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

JAdbE TEMEB(LEE

Hebei High-Tech Enterprises
Association

ALERFRMEEHE

Hebei Province Industry-University-
Research Cooperation Promotion
Association

it EESHEIERES

Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s
Republic of China

TEMEBALED

China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation
FRABMEEBTERSS

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IR E TR

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IERE TIEEE
Industry and Information Technology

Department of Shandong Province

IR E TR

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IRE TR
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Name of Corporate Award

RRIFEM

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Awarding Organization

REHE

Shandong TNM
L BRF R

The Third Prize of Shandong
Province SME “Chuangke

China” Industrial Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Competition
IWERER/NEERIFFRHEIFEIERE

-

“Specialized, Sophisticated,
Distinctive, and New” SME in
Shandong Province

IWREERSHMTPNEE

Shandong Province Antelope
Enterprises

IWRAEBRDEE

Shandong Province New Material
Innovation and Application
Demonstration Project

WERE IR 8I3T AR $IR B

New Technologies, Products and
Equipment in the Energy Sector in
Shandong Province
HLTRE B IR B B g ~ B E m AR AR
1

Shandong Province Digitalized
Workshop
LIREBF(CER

Shandong Province Quality Brand

IWREEERE

School-Enterprise Collaborative
Internship and Training Base
REBREEEINEM

“One enterprise, one technology”
Industrial R&D center in Dongying
EMIERE[ Rl HEF L

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]

Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the People’s
Republic of China

B TEANESMEED

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IR E TR

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IRE T8

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IWEEE TEEE

Energy Administration of Shandong
Province

IREREIRD

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province

IIRE TR

Quality Evaluation Association of
Shandong Province

IWREESTEHE

Hebei University of Technology
i TERE

Dongying Municipal Bureau of

Industry and Information Technology
REMLEE
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Name of Corporate Award

RRIFLM

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Awarding Organization

REHE

Tsaker Technology
HERR

Engineering Research Center in
Dongying City
REMIZFATH O

Enterprise Technology Center in
Dongying City
R ERAMR O

Dongying Manufacturing Digital
Transformation Pilot Demonstration
Project

EmElLE X T A BREIER

Excellent Scene of Intelligent
Manufacturing in Dongying City

EMEERERFER

Key laboratory of Dongying City

REMEHERE

National Women’s Civilization Post
23 0 ST AR

Enterprise Standard Leader in
Hebei Province

AL EEEREERE

Hebei Provincial Technological
Innovation Demonstration Enterprise

AL A AR R g

The Leader of County Level
Specialized Industrial Clusters of
Hebei Province

MBS EEXERRNRE

Dongying Development and Reform
Commission

REMBRANEEZES

Dongying Development and Reform
Commission
REMERNNEZES

Dongying Municipal Bureau of
Industry and Information
Technology
REMIEMEEIS

Dongying Municipal Bureau of
Industry and Information
Technology
REMIENEBLRE

Dongying Municipal Science and
Technology Bureau
REMRBZRMBD

All-China Women’s Federation
FESEFBIBEE

Hebei Administration for Market
Regulation
IEEMIZEEEER

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

AdLE TEMEB R

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Hebei Province

LA TEANE B R
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RIE - #HERERRE

National May 1st Labor Award (Tsaker Huayu)

2ER-SBIEER (KEEE)

bk 5

Tl 328 e .0 5 7 i

(20234 — 20254 )

Hebei Province Single champion in manufacturing industry

(Tsaker Huayu)

AR DSD B
&gk FACHEACE A A TS

ALEBEXERTE (VEER)

First prize in the Science and
Technology awarded (Cangzhou Tsaker
Lithium Energy)

MR —F8Z CAME R EEE)
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RIE - HERERRE

A Rank of Hebei Province Industrial Enterprises R&D
Organization (Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy)

A E TR BERBAR CRMNT FERE)

Green Factory of Shandong Province
(Tsaker Dongao)

IWREZETR (FERE)

Shandong Province Antelope Enterprises
(Tsaker Dongao)

IREBREE (ERA)
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RIE - #HERERRE

Shandong Province Antelope Enterprises
(Shandong TNM)

IWREER DX (UREEHME)

“Specialized, Sophisticated, Distinctive,
and New” SME in Shandong Province
(Shandong TNM)

IWREERBEHR/NEE (LREEFME)

National Women's Civilization Post
(Tsaker Technology)

2EMEXAHE (FERE)

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RRHZBR A A



4.3

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Product Stewardship

In order to effectively address customers’ complaints, the
Group has established a after-sales service department
and formulated a set of comprehensive complaint and
product recall procedures.

o The sales department is responsible for
investigating the situation related to the product that
the customer complains about in detail, understands
the reason for the customer’'s complaint, confirms
the customer’s complaint request, assists the
customer in solving the difficult issues or provides
the necessary references, and conveys the results
of the process promptly.

o When sales staff receive customers reflecting
product abnormalities, the abnormalities of the
specific circumstances and customer requirements
would be immediately identified, the relevant text
records combined with abnormal samples would
be delivered to the person in sales department
who is responsible for to deal with, while the sales
department will reflect the received customer
problems through the mail sent to the department
of after-sales service and forward to the general
manager’s office simultaneously.

° The after-sales service department coordinates with
the relevant departments to trace and analyze the
reasons, draw up processing countermeasures,
and submit the correlated results to the sales
department.

° After recieving the proposed process
countermeasures, the responsible staff of the sales
department would communicate and negotiate with
the customer to reach a scientific and appropriate
solution and implement it. The process results should
be recorded.

o To avoid repetition of mistakes, the Group also
share complaints that have been addressed in the
past as case studies to raise the awareness of other
staff. Topics regarding improving production and
inspecting procedures as well as corresponding
countermeasures would be discussed as well.

4.3
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4.4

4.5

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&

Environment, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not notified of
any recall of products due to safety and health concerns.

Tsaker New Energy recognizes the trust and support of its
customers and is committed to providing quality services to
meet their needs. The Group conducts regular satisfaction
surveys to listen to customers’ voices and continues to
optimize its products and services to enhance customer
experience. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not receive any dissatisfaction complaints. However, our
Company would continue to step up its efforts in innovation
and services to improve product quality. The Group is
customer-focused, actively fulfills its corporate social
responsibility and promote the sustainable development of
the industry.

Intellectual Property Management

Tsaker New Energy strictly observes the Copyright Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China as well as other relevant laws and
regulations. In addition, all the patents, trademarks and
copyrights have been applied to the competent government
units of intellectual property rights for the corresponding
right certificates. In the scenario where third-party patents
or works are involved, the transfer contracts of the patents
or writings are signed with the third party.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Group owned
a total of 112 pieces of proprietary intellectual property
rights. Comparing with the previous reporting period, the
proprietary intellectual property rights owned increased 30
pieces. The Group has formulated relevant policies and
standards in accordance with local laws and regulations,
and has strictly required our employees to comply with the
relevant regulations.

Customer Privacy Protection

Tsaker New Energy is committed to protecting the data
privacy of all stakeholders. For example, the Group has
clarified that confidentiality agreements must be signed
when negotiating with suppliers, customers or partners in
order to fully protect the interests of all parties. In addition,
in order to prevent leakage of customer data, the Group
has issued clear guidelines to all employees regarding the
collection and handling of customers’ personal or business
data to ensure the security of private data.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Business Integrity
Anti-Corruption

The Group recognizes that honesty, integrity and fairness
are essential core values in our business operations. All
employees are required to strictly comply with the “Anti-
Corruption Policy” established by the Group, which clearly
states the Group’s zero-tolerance principle against bribery
and embezzlement. We conduct regular internal audits
to identify internal control deficiencies and take remedial
actions accordingly. We are committed to establishing
and maintaining a transparent, fair and clean business
environment to ensure that all business activities comply
with laws and regulations which reflects our strong belief
in integrity and ethics. During the Reporting Period, there
were no legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group and its employees.

Whistle-blowing Procedures

The Group encourages employees to report misconduct
such as embezzlement, bribery, extortion, money
laundering or fraud. We have established a whistleblowing
mechanism according to the “Whistle-blowing Policy”
and immediately investigate the information received
from whistleblowing and report it to the management and
governmental authorities. In the process of investigation,
the Group promises to take sufficient confidentiality
measures to protect the identity of the whistleblower. Once
an act of corruption is confirmed, the employee involved
would be dismissed immediately. In addition, we will
continue to review and improve our internal control system
and anti-corruption system to prevent the occurrence of
corrupt practices. The Group has not detected any cases
of corruption during the Reporting Period.

4.6
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Anti-Corruption Training

The Group provides seminars and trainings related
to fraud, money laundering and anti-corruption to our
directors and employees in accordance with the “Anti-
Corruption Policy”, including both internal and online
trainings. These trainings are aimed at strengthening
employees’ anti-corruption awareness, ensuring their
understanding of and compliance with the Company’s
anti-corruption policy, and providing the necessary tools
and knowledge for them to identify and prevent corrupt
practices. The anti-corruption training covers compliance
requirements, conflict of interest statements and case
studies. Through case studies, employees can gain an
in-depth understanding of the characteristics and risks
of various embezzlement and fraudulent behaviors so
that they can better respond to similar circumstances.
In addition, training on conflict of interest declarations
helps employees identify potential conflicts of interest and
provide solutions to ensure that the Company’s interests
are maximized and integrity is maintained. Through
these training activities, the overall objective is to arouse
employees’ awareness of anti-corruption and to foster an
honest and fair working atmosphere. During the Reporting
Period, anti-fraud education training was provided to every
new employee.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

SAFE AND ENVIRONMENTAL FRIENDLY WORK
ENVIRONMENT

Tsaker New Energy has always considered the health and
safety of its employees as a top priority. To achieve this
goal, we have set up dedicated safety and environmental
protection departments (“S&E Department”) in each of our
production units, which are assigned the difficult task of
ensuring that the production process is in compliance with
local regulations. The S&E Department actively promotes
health and safety training for our employees and regularly
organizes various safety training and emergency drills to
enhance their safety awareness and ability to respond
to emergencies. These trainings and drills cover multiple
incident including fire, accidents, emergency rescue,
etc., to ensure that employees are able to act quickly
and effectively in the face of emergencies. Additionally,
the Safety and Environment Department holds regular
meetings with production managers to present safety and
environmental protection related opinions and suggestions,
and to explain the latest safety and environmental policies.
This communication and collaboration mechanism helps
to ensure that the safety and environmental policies
are fully implemented and that any potential safety and
environmental hazards are addressed in a timely manner.

The establishment of the S&E Department not only
strengthens the communication and exchange of regulatory
knowledge among various departments, but also effectively
reduces the potential environmental impact and risk
generated during employees’ activities. This not only helps
to improve production efficiency and quality, but also fully
demonstrates the Group’s concern and protection toward
employees and the environment. By strengthening safety
management and environmental protection measures, the
Group actively fulfills its corporate social responsibility and
ensures the sustainable development of the enterprise and
the harmonious progress of the society.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Safety Management

Production safety is the bedrock of a chemical enterprise,
the lifeblood of its development and the prerequisite for all
its endeavors. Tsaker New Energy adheres to the principle
of “safety first, prevention first”
creating a safe working environment for its employees. Our
Group strictly observes the occupational health and safety
policy, provides resources and training, emphasizes on
occupational health and safety in the production process,
continuously reduces the risk of employees, equipment
and environment. In addition, we also place relevant safety
guidelines at prominent positions in different working areas
of the factory building to remind our employees to pay
attention to safety, so as to avoid the risk of collision and
confusion.

and is committed to

Establishment of occupational safety management system

Tsaker New Energy implements and enforces national
regulations, policies and standards on safety and
occupational disease prevention and control, such as The
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, The
Fire Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, The
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases and the Measures for
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health
Monitoring in Employing Units.
requirements of 1ISO45001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and Work Safety Standardization,
the Group has established a strict safety management
system, strengthened the management of occupational
disease prevention and control, improved the standard
of prevention and control of occupational diseases,
effectively safeguarded the occupational health and safety
of the workers in the course of their work, and achieved
the occupational health and safety objectives set by the
Group which promote the sustainable development of the
enterprise.

laws,

In accordance with the
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

We have continued to build a professional safety BMBEITEEECLTE2EEEK  WTE
management team and have been strengthening the BIEE2EERRL ﬂ/ﬁ%{t HBE TR
systematization and standardization of safety management ISO45001 B @R & @%/\wm o B
while promoting the certification of 1SO45001 occupational EAREHR  REERE  EERE EE
health and safety management system in each of our RE - I URFFIMEFA N ZEE T
factories. As at the end of this Reporting Period, Tsaker HER ﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁﬁ(i\ﬁﬁmﬁw.ﬂ o H
Huayu, Tsaker Technology, Tsaker Dongao, Shandong TNM FoERRERR - RREELMNE Eﬂ?ﬁié’]
and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy had obtained their BERRZ2EERIIBESINTEE  AM
certification of occupational health and safety management FRMBREF LR B EHES TH‘“&%@E
systems, respectively. Among them, during the Reporting ZEEBBRERE -

Period, the occupational health and safety management
system certifications of Tsaker Huayu and Tsaker
Technology were extended, while Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium
Energy and Shandong TNM obtained the occupational
health and safety management system certification.

TJ\ilT:E:H

MG 0752022510024R5
HIEH .
t T Tsaker Huayu and Tsaker Technology have extended their ISO
eSS =T v'iﬁ;ﬁ%;ﬁ:‘lﬁ’;ﬁ".as“‘t“ .
T AR e ke man 45001 the occupational health and safety management system
= certifications which are valid from April 14th 2023 to October

EHRRBHEE
SRR (4,4 -—HEZKZH-2.2' - (0D M), NWARED 1 St h 2025 -
AR NTS) 1, BRI T I TR = K (OUSS) . Z K T =B IR COMAS),
T=M=F (OUS), T=M=K8 (OIPS). 2, 6-=3HBRIE=FB (DATA)]
ﬁ:z;ﬁ:ﬁlﬁ- 1 4-FEZR) MGH/FLRESFSENRLRRRS

sxam. smanue FRESMEZERRELELEISO 45001 BXRREEBBERESE
£ BRHEIHR2023F4 A14HE2025%10A13H

DRREAN: 205501 A8 E

R RRBNRERAR 1709 6B R #)

CERTIFICATE

iE B
SRR RS EEGRAE - . }
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy has obtained its ISO 45001
the occupational health and safety management system
certification which is valid from November 20th 2023 to

November 19th 2026.

BNMEREEEESISO 45001 M XRREERAREEEZ BN
Bl 2023411 A20H £2026%11 A19H
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

RE HERER

Tsaker Dongao has obtained its ISO 45001 the occupational
health and safety management system certification which is
valid from November 15th 2021 to November 16th 2024.

FRREBERFISO 45001 MEEREIEREZREBHEE - A3UHHA
2021411 A15 8 E20244E11 A16 8

Shandong TNM has obtained its ISO 45001 the occupational
health and safety management system certification which is
valid from August 20th 2023 to August 19th 2025.

IIRERIHMEDEEISO 45001 R FEIREARAEEE A
WEAE 202348 A20 H 2202548 A 19H
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Safeguarding Occupational Health

Tsaker New Energy pays attention to the occupational
health of its employees, and continues to promote the
establishment of the ISO45001 occupational health and
safety management system in each of its factories in strict
accordance with The Occupational Disease Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and The Provisions on Supervision and Management of
Occupational Hygiene in Workplaces and other relevant
national laws and regulations. The Group has established
an Occupational Health Management Committee consisting
of production safety management units and technical
units, which is fully responsible for reviewing health and
safety policies and measures. We provide supervision
and management of occupational health and safety
for employees before, during and after work, adopt
various preventive and disposal measures, and build up
employees’ awareness of occupational safety through the
promotion of corporate safety culture, which ultimately
create a healthy and safe workplace environment for our
employees. During the Reporting Period, no incidents
of damage to personnel health caused by occupational
hazards were detected.

Occupational Hazard Protection Measures

Tsaker New Energy commissions a qualified occupational
health technical service organization to test the
occupational disease hazards at the production site
on annual basis to ensure that they are in compliance
with the national standards. Employees in positions with
occupational disease risk are provided with appropriate
labor protection equipment and instructed to wear it
correctly. Warning signs of occupational disease risks
are posted concurrently to comprehensively prevent,
control and eliminate risks that employees may face. Each
production base optimizes their working environment by
adopting engineering and technical measures such as
ventilation and cooling for high-temperature positions, dust
removal devices for dusty workplaces, and fume hoods for
laboratory chemical-using positions. In addition, we adopt
several measures including installing noise elimination
devices, installing additional soundproof booths,
promoting the automation and upgrading of equipment,
and reducing noise sources in order to lower the noise
level in the workplaces. During the Reporting Period, a
series of solutions to optimize the working environment for
employees have been applied in a number of the Group’s
production sites.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Use and Storage of Hazardous Chemicals

As a chemical material manufacturer, an irreplaceable part
of ensuring product quality is using hazardous chemicals.
Tsaker New Energy has established a strict safety
management system for loading, unloading, transportation,
use and storage of hazardous chemicals. The production
bases with dangerous chemical storage are in compliance
with the corresponding standards and regulations as well
as the requirements of the national “Fireprotection code for
the engineering design of fine chemical enterprise”. During
the Reporting Period, the Group also provided regular
training on chemical management to its employees, which
reduced the risks arising from improper operations.

Strengthening safety awareness

Tsaker New Energy regularly organizes safety awareness
training for its employees, and carries out special activities
such as training on the five quality tools and training on the
Work Safety Law, which further enhances the employees’
awareness of their self-safety responsibilities through full
participation. In addition, our Company carries out activities
such as online safety training and education seminar, as
well as all-employee reflection activity regarding past safety
accident warning, which forms the Company’s unique
and in-depth safety concepts. Moreover, the Company
continues to issue internal newspapers to publicize
newly promulgated laws and regulations, safety accident
warnings, and safety knowledge, etc.; other activities
such as occupational health publicity, and publicizes
occupational disease prevention and treatment would
occupational hygiene knowledge to employees through
internal push, on-site signboards, plant slogans, brochures,
and other online and offline methods are applied as well
in order to strengthen safety awareness comprehensively
promote the construction of the enterprise’s safety culture.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, we organized regular
production safety and occupational health training
before and during employment to strengthen the safety
awareness of our employees.The Group organized 34
times of production safety training with a total duration of
209 hours for employees, which has increased 23.5 hours
compared with year 2022. In addition, every employee
at least received 20 hours of production safety training.
Besides, we organized another 44 times of pre-employee
safety training sessions, with a total training duration of 264
hours.

- - -
2023¢%ziﬁﬁm#§6éiﬁﬁéu¥\ m&t’ﬂwﬁ’w%

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

ARE BRI - B APIAR A b 8 B AN AE R HA R Y
EHZEEMBEGERE) - ®EEBEIR
PEH - AEEHERNEAEEELTEE
F34% - FBIIFFR209/NE - TEELILE
BRI - - ZFEM23.5/ K - HAf
BEAEEIZ2FIRERHETILR200
B o ZEMNEAER EERIZ2EI44K
B 48R R 264/ B o

Safety production training (Tsaker Huayu)

ZEEERI(KEER)

Emergency Drill (Tsaker Huayu)

ERORR (REER)
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Safety Production Training (Tsaker Dongao)

REEERI (HRERA)

Emergency Drill (Tsaker Dongao)
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Emergency Drill (Tsaker Technology)

FESORM (BRI
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Emergency Drill (Shandong TNM)

FEORMR (LLRFZH M)
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Equipped with safety facilities

To ensure the personal safety of our employees,
Tsaker New Energy has adopted a series of strict
and effective measures. We have installed all kinds
of accident prevention and control facilities, including
alarm systems for pressure, temperature, liquid level
and other parameters, as well as detection systems
for combustible gas, hazardous gas and oxygen,
in order to comprehensively enhance the capability
of safety protection. Meanwhile, in order to ensure
the safe operation of machinery and equipment, the
equipment maintenance department carries out at least
one inspection and rectification work toward the safety
protection devices every month. In addition, reporting the
relevant situation to the S&E Department on time for the
purpose of keeping records. Through these disciplined
and standardized safeguard measures, we are able to
ensure the personal safety of our employees and maintain
the stable development of the enterprise. During the
Reporting Period, Tsaker Huayu carried out production
system overhaul and launched solving hidden safety
danger projects. Besides, Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy
and Tsaker Dongao also carried out production system
overhaul projects. Through the production system overhaul
and safety hazard management project, we thoroughly
overhauled and updated our production equipment to
ensure that it complied with the latest safety standards
and requirements. We have taken immediate and effective
corrective measures for the identified safety hazards to
ensure that no safety risks arise in the production process.

Tsaker New Energy has installed fire prevention, fire
extinguishing and emergency escape facilities at all
production bases. These facilities include the installation
of firewalls, the equipping of fire extinguishers and the
planning of escape routes. The Company strictly enforces
the production safety responsibility system and clarifies
safety management responsibilities at all levels. During the
Reporting Period, the Group carried out 178 inspections of
hidden safety hazards and identified 995 hidden hazards,
all of which have been completed and rectified. Authorities,
including the emergency management departments, law
enforcement brigades and environmental law enforcement
departments of different provinces, cities, ports and
districts operated a total of 144 inspections toward the
Group, 596 items were identified, 100 percent of proposed
issues have been rectified. With our comprehensive
safety measures, the Group did not have any work-related
fatalities during the Reporting Period, achieving the safety
goal of zero work-related fatalities in the last three years
(covering the Reporting Period). The lost workdays due to
work-related injuries of the Group were 248 days in total
during the Reporting Period.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Protection

Tsaker New Energy strictly abides by The Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Air
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, and other relevant
national laws and regulations. Wastewater, waste gas and
solid waste generated in the course of production and
operation activities of each facility are reasonably and
effectively disposed of according to the national and local
environmental protection requirements.

Tsaker New Energy actively responds to the national
concept of green development, and it is our continuous
goal to persist and promote the sustainable development
of the Group’s production workshops. Under this
guidance, we are constantly striving to optimize resource
allocation, enhance cost-effectiveness and strengthen
energy conservation. We have implemented a number of
green measures designed to demonstrate our long-term
commitment to environmental protection.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Management System Development

Tsaker New Energy continuously promotes the certification
application of each factory’s to improves the standard
of environmental management. We continue to promote
cleaner production and successfully achieve cleaner
production and pollution reduction through process
optimization, equipment upgrading, waste recycling,
etc.; we continue to promote ISO14001 environmental
management system certification. Through the introduction
of external professional counseling organizations, we
cultivate the awareness of environmental protection among
all employees, implement environmental improvement and
upgrade, and continually improve the enterprise’s ability
of environmental management. We continue to promote
ISO50001 energy management system certification.
Following the system management requirements, a
complete and effective energy management system has
been established within the organization, i.e., energy
saving monitoring, energy auditing, energy efficiency
benchmarking, energy saving assessment and other
activities have been systematized and professionalized
to fulfill the social responsibility. At the end of the
Reporting Period, Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Technology,
Tsaker Dongao and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy
had obtained certificates of environmental management
system certification and energy management system
certification. Besides, Shandong TNM had obtained
certificate of environmental management system. More
specifically, during the Reporting Period, the environmental
management system and energy management system
certificates of Tsaker Huayu and Tsaker Technology were
renewed, Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy obtained the
environmental management system certification and energy
management system certification. Moreover, Shandong
TNM obtained the environmental management system
certification.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Tasker Huayu and Tasker Technology have extended their ISO
14001 environmental management system certifications which
are valid from April 14th 2023 to October 13th 2025.

HREENTERRDIEEISO 14001 RIBEEERAZTEEZ 4
MEAR 20234 A14H £ 2025910 A 138 °

Tasker Huayu and Tasker Technology have extended their ISO
50001 energy management system certifications which are
valid from April 14th 2023 to July 28th 2024.

HREEMYERRDIEEISO 50001 EREREXABEE &
WEAR 20234 A 14H £ 2024F7 H28H -

Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy has obtained ISO 14001
environmental management system certification which is valid
from November 20th 2023 to November 19th 2026.

>>§1|:

BNMEEEECESISO 14001 RBEEERAZELZE » B8R

2023411 H20HE2026511 A19H -
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy has obtained ISO 50001
energy management system certification which is valid from
November 15th 2023 to November 14th 2026.

BMEEIEECEEISO 50001 fER B IR X AEEE  AMH

202311 A15H£2026F 11 H14H °

Tsaker Dongao has obtained ISO 14001 environmental
management system certification which is valid from
November 15th 2021 to November 16th 2024.

MEREBEEIEISO 14001 BEEREARBEE - ANEH
202111 A15 8 E20244 11 A16H -

Tsaker Dongao has obtained ISO 50001 energy management
system certification which is valid from December 12th 2022

to February 20th 2026.
HERBEDIFISO 140018 RERBARIERE - BXHAH
2022F 12 A12H £ 2026F2 H20H -
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

CERTIFICATE
iE B

FIRETRSFIAE

20th 2023 to August 19th 2025.

Environmental Policy

In order to further strengthen the environmental
performance management of business operations,
Tsaker New Energy has obtained the 1SO14001:2015
environmental management system, and according to this
international standard, each subsidiary formulated the
Environmental Protection Management System according
to their own actual conditions, which elaborates on the
Group’s relevant policies and measures to promote
sustainable development:

o Setting up an environmental protection committee,
mobilizing members from various departments of the
group, and clarifying the environmental protection
responsibilities of members.

° Our Group carries out environmental impact
assessment and applies for emission permits in
strict accordance with the requirements of national
environmental protection standards, installs online
monitoring equipment according to the requirements
set out in the emission permits. In addition, once
abnormalities of the data emerge, our Company
would organizes the relevant personnel to analyze
the anomalies immediately, actively maintains and
rectifies the situation.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ &8 RERHY AR A 7

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Shandong TNM has obtained ISO 45001 environmental
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

. Strengthening environmental protection training
for Company employees, enhancing environmental
protection awareness, and improving environmental
protection quality.

o Strengthening the detecting, monitoring and
implementation of supervision and management of
environmental factors, establishing a risk prevention
system for environmental factors, and improving
the ability to prevent and deal with sudden
environmental pollution incidents.

o Following the principles of impartiality, fairness,
convenience, and timeliness to disclose corporate
environmental information.

. Disciplining the persons responsible for
environmental pollution accidents, and setting
up environmental protection target responsibility
assessment.

Climate change and energy

Climate change is a significant challenge to all human
beings, which has a profound impact on the well-being of
the global population and the long-term development of
all countries. The Group actively responds to the national
energy conservation and emission reduction policies
and closely monitors the national climate change related
policies and dynamic development trends. Through the
formulation of effective emission reduction strategies and
continuous effort on increasing the proportion of renewable
energy sources, the emission of greenhouse gases is
effectively reduced which support the Paris Agreement
target by controlling temperature change in the range of
1.5TC.

The Board and ESG Committee take climate change
very seriously through discussing the issue and making
recommendations to address the risks and opportunities of
climate change at an early stage.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

. nsE AR 8 TIRRIFIIIIE - BRI
REH - RERBERERMAKF o

o g EIRFE =R RO - BT E
EEERE  BURBERZREKH S
R ReRBEEIRIE SRS
BRIBEEN

. BREAE  QF - ER - REHR
8- ARGEEREES -

. %T VRFESAEHNBE ANETE
CEYREREBSEEE K

\

%\J 2

RIRE{LEELREIR

RiFER2 NERBRHERKE - BED
PIRARBUNSEREER - REEER
LB R MBEBER - BYBEIERAIR
BUHEEBRRLADRERBE  BBVER
BURBER S - TETRI AT BRG] - B
PO AR EREBEN - XFH(ERBEID
15CTIERERE -

EF2RESGERESEH tHERRIKREL
HEBETAWmIRHBIEEE  HERTR
JE 8 SRR B P e SR O RS AN BB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE K&

77



Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Risk Types Risk Descriptions Potential Impacts Financial impact assessment Response actions
b ERHTE b2 g 3% HiaH ELH{TH
Physical risks Increased frequency and magnitude ~ When facing the increased chances 1 Increase in the number of days 1+ according to the degree of
EZERR of extreme weather and natural of extreme weather events, this of raw materials and products shortage of materials and
disasters such as heatwaves, intense  could lead to disruption of the raw storage, requiring expansion or water, change the production
precipitation, blizzard and sand materials supply chain which result in additional rental of warehouses, sequence, start the transfer
storms the need to increase the number of resulting in increased costs of production or production
SR FW BSAPERSWERR days of raw materials and products ENRE - ERREGNRY - reduction measures
LERNEBHBEERRERERS  storage. At the same time, extreme TEREIEIMEERE B KB - BOkRRE - BE
weather could lead to the damage FRASEM EBF  SHDERLELAE
of our factories and equipment, the 2 raw materials or product )i
loss of raw materials or products. transportation process is 2 establishing an energy
The disruption of roads could leading blocked, resulting in increased anomalies emergency
to the difficulty of raw materials transportation costs response team, and
and products transportation, and PHIERRERBERXE 8§ developing corresponding
also lead to the scenario of power HESEREM “energy anomalies emergency
outage or water shutdown, which 3+ Damage to equipment resulting plan guidelines” as well
will affecting the production of our in aloss of asset value as emergency operating
products REEREHEEERR procedures. Accordingly
BHBRAREFRENERRS T 4+ Loss of raw materials or respond to energy supply
HERRMR AR E - JBENY products, resulting in an abnormalities. (including water,
B ERREHRORE AN BHX increase in operating costs and electricity, coal, natural gas,
FEBIRMOBRERXERE - R a decrease in revenue etc. Which are required during
ERGEX - ERPEHEBMNREN NRSERREL  EREENK production and business
RERRE - DAREEHEEREK EM - FERD activities)
BN PEERNAE RURERESME - #lE (5

REFESERIEGEN) RE
SERRE TR EHRE
E(RREERLEDHRBOK -
BB RARS)RREME

3+ Disaster insurance for the
factory to minimize the impact
of financial shocks
HERRUERE - AP BB
FERYE

4+ Developing emergency
response mechanism and
regular risk assessment.
Increasing the proportion
of local and domestic
procurement to reduce the risk
of production stoppage due to
logistics disruption
REZSEERNETHERR
R REAMEAREL
RERMRTHSENFERR
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Risk Types
ARER

Risk Descriptions

ERET

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Potential Impacts
b2 4

B -

Financial impact assessment

Bk B

HERER

wE

Response actions

EHTH

Transition risks

21Rk

Opportunities

Hia

Climate-related policies

RIFERRR

Resource utilization efficiency

ARFIRMRE

China’s dual carbon commitment
and related policies and regulations
would drive industrial carbon
reduction targets and actions. In
this context, structural adjustment
of production and dual control
of energy consumption will be
the main theme of future energy
policies; China could manage
carbon emission reduction quotas
for enterprises, and carbon trading
will be required when company
exceeds the emission threshold.
Similarly, other countries would start
to levy carbon taxes. All these could
cause our energy costs to rise,
affecting production and product
competitiveness
SRR R AR RS
FARERROD - ERERTEER
MERIEAEREEERTARERR
%miﬁ&:$lﬁmﬁ¢¥$ﬁﬂh
HREEER  HRBLOTA TS
xﬁmi%'%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%&wwﬁO
BB e ENAMERNAN L
foHREERERBET
By improving the efficiency of
production processes, machines and
logistics, as well as applying process
improvement concurrently to improve
product pass rate, ultimately reduce
medium - and long-term operating
costs, contribute to the circular
economy, and enhance brand power
BBRALERE  BBRERDEH
Wﬁ~lﬁﬁihﬂ§mﬁﬁv HHE
RESENER  YHEREE RAR
e

1+ Increase in operating expenses  1°

due to purchase of carbon
emission allowances
BERFRERSREXERE
m

2+ Increase in operating expenses
due to payment of non-
compliance fees
BBEREREREEEREM

3+ Increase in depreciation,
amortization of equipment and
increase in operating costs due

to structural adjustments on the

production side 220

REEREBEAEMENR
TEBRERLN - SEHNE
m

1+ Improving energy use 1S
efficiency and reducing
operating costs
RREAMERT - REZER
S

2+ Increase brand power and 220

revenue

mENRT EhEm

In the scenario of meeting local
limit, coordinate downtime
production time, to maximize
the production and satisfy
limitation of the target; at
the same time, prejudge the
situation of power limitation,
the Group coordinates the
production plan of each plant
ERREHRET  RREHE
‘%W*%K%F%%%EFE
BER AREARENS -
?%%Iﬁ&?ﬁ
Arrange Energy Use and
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Status and Performance Review
on annual basis
FRABKRRREREREN
Bk R EENER
Introduce energy saving and
emission reduction project
SRR EA
Purchase green energy

BARBER

Reducing raw material
consumption through the
product process improvement.
BRERTENE  RERWH
B

Expanding the reuse of non-
hazardous waste resources.

BAEELEZNERERA
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Risk Types Risk Descriptions Potential Impacts Financial impact assessment Response actions
b ERHTE b2 g 3% HiaH ELH{TH

Opportunities Application of Recycle Energy With the rapidly declining cost of Improving energy use Introducing green energy
B BERRER decentralized clean energy and efficiency and reducing RERREA

increased energy reserve capacity,

we can expand the use of renewable

energy at a lower cost. Thereby

reducing annual energy costs as well 2+

as medium - and long-term operating

costs and increasing sustainable

brand recognition

BREDHEZERNAARETR -
EREEENER  ZNTUEER
RABATBELRNER - EMBE

FEERRANRTRACENS R

BRETRENAE

operating costs

BERRAMEIRT - REZER

Increase brand power and
revenue

BN - ElEm

Climate Change and Countermeasures

Tsaker New Energy’s production bases are located in North
China. With climate change, the incidence and severity of
extreme weather and natural disasters such as heatwaves,
intense precipitation, blizzard and sand storms are
expected to increase in time. When facing the increased
chances of extreme weather events, this could lead to
disruption of the raw materials supply chain which result in
the need to increase the number of days of raw materials
and products storage. At the same time, extreme weather
could lead to the damage of our factories and equipment,
the loss of raw materials or products. The disruption of
roads leads to the difficulty of raw materials and products
transportation, and it also lead to the scenario of power
outage or water shutdown, affecting the production of our
products.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Tsaker New Energy has always adhered to the principle
of environmental friendliness, strictly complied with all
laws and regulations, and set up a number of internal
initiatives to achieve carbon and pollution reduction.
During the Reporting Period, we continued to work towards
our internally set short-term goal of five years (2021-2025)
under the theme of “Tackling Heavy Air Pollution and
Contributing to Carbon Neutrality and Carbon Peaking”.
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to
make various improvements to reduce carbon emissions.
Firstly, the Group optimized its real-time energy monitoring
system, including five networking systems for water,
electricity, coal, steam, natural gas, to forecast the trend
of energy consumption, improve the efficiency of energy
distribution and utilization, gradually increase production
efficiency and reduce electricity consumption, thereby
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Secondly, we
have invested more manpower and set up a sustainable
development team, with a dedicated person in charge
of organizing team members to study and research the
“dual-carbon” policy and the “greenhouse gas” policy. The
sustainability team actively communicates and cooperates
with professional technical organizations and industry
experts to explore how to better promote the “dual carbon”
and “carbon compliance” work inside the enterprises.
Through the study, the sustainability team understood the
relevant national policies, and concurrently carried out
carbon emission accounting and report preparation.

Management of Air Pollutant Emissions

The major sources of Tsaker New Energy’'s air pollutant
emission are the coal from Tsaker Huayu Plants, natural
gas in each production plant, the incinerators that handle
hazardous waste and fuel usage for transportation. The air
pollutants emitted mainly include nitrogen oxide (“NOXx”),
sulfur oxide (“SOx”), and Particulate Matters. The Group
pays great attention to the impact caused by atmospheric
pollutants generated during production on the surrounding
environment and the health of our employees.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

HRMER—EFTARBERITINRE] - &%
BB REEER  WHRABRT S IEER
HIABRMES R - RAREHR - R
BRANAHENRF(ZEZ—FEZZ
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The Group has formulated coal procurement guidelines
to reduce the negative impact of air pollutants, stipulating
that the related premises shall purchase low-sulfur and
relatively clean coal as fuel of boilers to lower the sulfur
oxide emission. Up to 90% of air pollutants has been
removed from emitted smoke by the denitrification,
desulfurization and dust removal facilities in each
production unit. To fulfill the commitment to air quality,
the factory is equipped with online monitoring equipment
to ensure that the air pollutants emitted are controlled at
levels comply with the national emission standards.

Tsaker New Energy actively promotes green production
production and is committed to incorporating clean
energy into the production process. Tsaker Huayu would
gradually use natural gas and purchased steam to reduce
the use of coal in order to minimize the impact of exhaust
gas pollutant emissions on the air condition. During the
Reporting Period, the Group pursued a number of research
projects to reduce the generation of exhaust gases and
waste in the production process. For example, Tsaker
Dongao carried out a process study on the hydrogenation
and gasification of nitro toluene to investigate the
possibility of using steam instead of heat-conducting oil to
supply heat, thereby reducing the use of heat-conducting
oil and reduce the amount of hazardous wastes generated;
Tsaker Dongao also carried out a project on the renovation
of the incinerators tail gas treatment, which resolved the
problem that the tail gas of the incinerators could not be
processed during the period of incinerator shutdown,
thereby reducing the emission of exhaust waste gases.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Group has continued to
work toward its air emission target to reduce air pollutant
emissions intensity (by formula: various air pollutant
emissions data usage/Million RMB Revenue). Tsaker New

Energy strives to reduce the emissions

generated in the

production process, and continues to explore feasible

emission reduction measures by upgradi

ng equipment and

optimizing technology to continuously reduce impacts on

the environment.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

RAREHA - AEBBRETHFTLHER
AR R R REERRFERYOTEREE
(GHERR K REERIRBEERE
BEARBRA) - ¥EHERB DR E
TEBRTPELNBERENRE  BBRER
RE MBI - TRBRTATHREE
i IHEREHRENTE -

Air Pollutant Emissions BER B 2023! 2022
NOx emissions (tonnes) REALY () 23.90 18
NOx emissions intensity (NOx emissions/ — @E/cWHERZE (RELWEER,~

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARBIA) 0.012 0.008
SOx emissions (tonnes) EAL () 14.43 8
SOx emissions intensity (SOx emissions/ WAL BEE B (RE e

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARERA) 0.007 0.004
Particulate Matter emissions (tonnes)? FERLY) (W8 )2 5.24 1
Particulate Matter emissions intensity TR YBEREE (BRI,

(Particulate Matter emissions/ BBEARBRKA)

M’ RMB Revenue) 0.0025 0.0006

1 2023 FASEERENTHEER

1 Lower product average unit selling
lead to higher emissions intensity in

price of the Group
2023.

2 The particulate matter data of Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium

Energy and Shandong TNM in 2022

are not included.

K SEHHmEEX -

2 2022 A M FIBEM IR EH# M
BIRERAREA -
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Air pollutant emissions breakdowns RERURIRBERBA AR
2023 2022
Emissions Emissions Emission
per unit per unit reduction
Emissions Product Emissions Product  rate per unit
(tonnes) (tonnes)? (tonnes) (tonnes)  product (%)
HE BEMER HEWE BERIER BEWER
Tsaker Huayu ERER (W)  HEME(W)? (W) HEE (M)  HERUTPEE%
NOx emissions A8Y 20.63 0.00023 15.6 0.0003 22
SOx emissions waltm 13.66 0.00015 6.67 0.00015 0
Particulate Matter EEp k) 1.47 0.000017 0.84 0.00002 17
3 Tsaker Huayu's exhaust gases mainly come from 3 EEECSHEITERENMIE - FL
boilers. The steam generated by these boilers is used MIEEAMRSANHEYEES ¥
to supply the production of enterprises such as Tsaker EREUERAMNEREBESCENE
Huayu, Tsaker Technology and Cangzhou Tsaker E-RAlt HEEMERNERER
Lithium Energy. Therefore, the sum of the production B RER  FERHEMAMERE
capacities of Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Technology and REMEREZ MEEER -

Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy should be taken into
account when calculating the emissions from a single
ton of product.

2023 2022
Emissions Emissions Emission
per unit per unit reduction
Emissions Product Emissions Product  rate per unit
(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)  product (%)
Brh g EMEm P BEMEEE BEMEEE
Tsaker Dongao KERR (W) B E (W) (W8) PEME) T REE%
NOx emissions AEY 0.7548 0.00001 0.6161 0.00001 0
SOx emissions k=Xl 0.0222 0.0000003 0.0297 0.0000005 40
Particulate Matter B 0.0381 0.0000005 0.0302 0.0000005 0
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

20234

Emissions

per unit

Emissions Product

(tonnes) (tonnes)

B E BWEm

Shandong TNM IWEREEF R (W8)  HERRE (M)

Particulate Matter R 1.438 0.000091
4 The separate calculation of emissions per ton of 2022F IR ERHMMHAREBAESE

product was not performed for the Shandong TNM in WHE mPEE o
2022.
2023°

Emissions

per unit

Emissions Product

(tonnes) (tonnes)

B E BHER

Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy AN EERE (B§)  HERE (W)

Particulate Matter R 1.92 0.00006

NN A ok ag Ly 4 oo
5 The separate calculation of emissions per ton of 2022 %R M & AL AR B Ba HE M

product was not performed for the Cangzhou Tsaker
Lithium Energy in 2022.

EmPERE o
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RIR - 4 ERERHRE

2023 2022

Emissions Emissions Emission

per unit per unit reduction

Emissions Product Emissions Product  rate per unit

(tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes) (tonnes)  product (%)

E2 376 BHER g BUEE M B A M

Tsaker Technology EENH (W8) Bk 2 (W) ) HERE(ME)  BERUTRER%

NOx emissions® Aafye 2.5109 0.00013 1.29 0.00009 -44

SOx emissions k=Kl 0.7475 0.000039 0.83 0.00006 35

Particulate Matter ERY) 0.37 0.00002 0.32 0.00002 0
6 Tsaker Technology’s NOx emissions per ton increased 6 HEREHNRS/IESERE T - R

because the natural gas shortage furnace operating
time was shorter in 2022 due to the impact of the
special macroeconomic environment. It returned to
normal in 2023, and the natural gas shortage furnace
operating time was longer than in 2022.

Improving Energy Efficiency and Reducing Carbon
Emissions

The major GHG emissions of Tsaker New Energy come
from electricity, natural gas, coal and purchased steam
consumption. GHG emissions control becomes one of
the core issues among countries in response of climate
change. During the Reporting Period, Tsaker New Energy
continues to take efforts towards our 5-year short-term goal
(from 2021 to 2025), to reduce the energy usage intensity
(by formula: energy usage/Million RMB revenue).

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Company strictly complies with The Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation, The Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Promotion of Cleaner
Production and other relevant national laws and regulations
in its production and operation, implements systematic
management of energy, and promotes the certification
of the ISO50001 energy management system. We have
also formulated an internal “Energy Management System”
to standardize energy management and encourage
energy-saving work, in order to cooperate with the
national energy work policy and reduce carbon emissions.
This policy comprehensively stipulates the division of
responsibilities, principles, and specific operations during
energy management:

° Clarifies the specific responsibilities of relevant
departments and positions in energy conservation
and relevant assessment management, so as to
improve the work efficiency of energy management.

o Define energy data reporting process, measurement
tool management measures, and energy technology
file management system to accurately provide
testing-related energy consumption data, make
informed arrangements in a timely manner and carry
out energy-saving and emission-reduction work
based on data analysis results.

o Formulates relevant operation and management
manuals for the Company’s main energy equipment
to ensure its safe, economical and efficient
operation, and achieve energy conservation while
meeting the production needs.

° Formulates subdivided energy management
systems according to the nature of each production
workshop.

RIR - HERERRSE

REBTEEELERBRRET(REARKE
MBI EERE) (R EARKEFMENFREE
fREE) ERRMEEREN - BHERR
SALEIE - HEISO50001 88 R EEEE XR
# o WHERNICERREEE) - HEsLR
B HEERETE  URABRERIE
FETRER - BB - ZHE2 T EHR
ETRREEBENS IHRE - RA - A8

1R 1% -

R EE N ABBE - URE
TR TR °

. HEBLRA ERIBHERRIE - 518
RETEEEBERERRMERE
IRHIE - AZERELR e R AERE BE TR OH
FEUE  REBRESTREIELAE
S B B R BT RE IR BE TAE o

. RABEBRRRET EHBRES
BHE  UERERZE KK 2%
B EmREENRE  EDEH
BEFRENBH -

b
e

e’
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. HUREESRMEESNEADERE
BHIE -
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. Clarifies the energy assessment and management
system and formulates reward and punishment
rules, analyzes various consumption indicators
on a regular basis to encourage energy-using
departments to effectively control internal
consumption. Individuals and departments that
consume energy exceeding the predetermined level
are subject to appropriate penalties and required
timely rectification. Individuals with outstanding
achievements in energy conservation would be
commended and rewarded.

o Enhance the introduction of new technologies and
equipment to improve the energy efficiency ratio
during production.

In respect of our production bases, the Group has
completed technological modifications such as ultra-low
emission for our factories to effectively reduce the emission
of exhaust and greenhouse gases. We regularly inspect
our production facilities and repair any damage as soon as
it is detected, in order to reduce energy consumption and
improve efficiency. In addition, in order to achieve efficient
use of electricity, the Group has formulated guidelines on
electricity consumption management to guide employees
to adopt energy-saving measures in their daily work.

The Group also incorporates sustainable elements into
its daily operations to have environmental protection
practices in the workplace. Adhering to the concept of
“green, energy saving, and environmental protection”, the
Group has increased its investment in building a new full-
featured technology research and development centre and
a technology office building, which has improved the ability
of research and development and the office environment,
increased the intensity of natural lighting, and reduced
office electricity consumption.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Group conducted several retrofitting projects to reduce
energy consumption in the Reporting Period, including:

o Tsaker Dongao carried out technical modifications
toward the toluene nitrification unit and toluene

amine unit heat tracing system;

° Tsaker Dongao azeotropic tower condenser

replacement;

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

REBEREHARLERAERBEHETT T 2 HK
EEe - flm
. FEREHPRME E&Eﬁﬂ**f

EFRRGETT T BITSUE

. FRRBILBERB RS R

. Tsaker researched and improved the cooling system . FRERBIPERERIF SRS
of toluene amine distillation process which used FPEREERRREAT BN BRE
to crystallize and block the system equipment and 1T FE B BAE
pipeline frequently.

The use of electrical and steam energy can be reduced by MR RERNGE - I LARRIKE HFEE T8

retrofitting the equipment mentioned above. TREVER o

Energy Consumption REVR 1 2023 2022

Electricity consumption (MWh) BREER) 124,024 83,473

Coal consumption (tonnes) R (TR ) 58,001 52 543

Energy consumption of coal (MWh) Bk (JRELRF) 388,570 350,284

Natural gas consumption (‘000 m?) RKAR(FILITK) 11,297 10,457

Energy consumption of natural gas (MWh) RAR(IEFLEF) 122,252 113,282

Energy consumption of steam (MWh) ZA(REE) 409,942 271,544

Gasoline (tonnes) Y (ME) 4.4 0

Gasoline (MWh) YR (JK L) 53 0

Total energy consumption (MWh) ,ﬁ@a TRAE(JEELE) 1,044,841 818,924

Total energy intensity (MWh/M' RMB revenue)’ #EERZEE (JKFE

BBEAREBEA) 506 386

Comprehensive energy consumption per BIE MR A BEFE(MRIZEE 1)

unit product (tonnes standard coal/tonnes) 0.54 0.84

7 Lower product average unit selling price of the Group

lead to higher total energy intensity in 2023.

7 2%3¢$E@§&$4$H%E%
K EHEERTERA -
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RIE - HERERBE

Energy consumption breakdown by site: BHEEAMBENEE DAL EFERAEE
2023 2022

Energy Energy
consumption consumption
per unit product per unit product

Energy
consumption
rate per unit

(tonnes) (tonnes) product (%)
B A 72 BEE @ B WA EE fn A B
Site Hith FREHFE e B TREE%
Tsaker Huayu HRER 1.18 1.39 15.11
Tsaker Dongao® FR R e 0.346 0.342 1.2
Tsaker Technology KRB 0.642 0.70 8.3
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium BINF SRR
Energy 0.376 / /
Shandong TNM Sy 0.423 / /
8 Tsaker Dongao’s research projects in 2023 consume 8 WRERI023FEH FHEIE B #Fhe
more energy but have no output, resulting in a slight KEEED  EHEMEDS bﬂi%ﬁ:ﬁzt
increase in energy use per ton of product. o
GHG Emissions BEREHER 2023 2022
Direct GHG emission (tCO,e) HEAZEREYW 122,391 152,177
Direct GHG emission intensity (direct GHG  EESEREHRZE(EERLAERE
emission/M’ RMB revenue) iR, BEARERA) 59 72
Indirect GHG emission (tCO,e) FEAERESER(M_EtRkEE) 179,251 149,942
Indirect GHG emission intensity (indirect FEAEREHNEE(MEAZERE
GHG emission/M’ RMB revenue) iR, BEARERA) 87 71
Total GHG emission (tCO,e) LREREHR(B_SREE) 301,642 302,119
GHG emission intensity (total GHG emission/ JREREHIRZE (BBEREHER
M’ RMB revenue)® BEARBIA)? 146 142
9 Lower product average unit selling price of the Group 9 2023 AEEEMBENTHEER
lead to higher emissions intensity in 2023. & ERHREEEX -
Water Saving and Wastewater Treatment B AR R EEKERE

HEFEREERLETHEKERZ A
o EKERERAE - RN FRE R E
BERMAMTEZEF  AUREZRR/NER
BEKERESGETEERERE  THYHE

Tsaker New Energy’s production and operation activities
are closely related to water resources. In terms of water
usage, we approach the issue from two perspectives which
are reducing and recycling. The sustainability department
continuously monitoring and managing water performance, 1j§ﬁm7kiLfTE¥1$&%$§ KEBE AR
and regularly assessing and evaluating water consumption KR ET BRR CRMRERKER
per unit of product. The Company has set a target for water E(EARXA - %%%i/ﬁ%)\ﬁbfﬁ(%)\) °
efficiency, which is to reduce water consumption intensity

(the formula is: water consumption/million RMB revenue).
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RIE - HERERBE

REFHERKER - NEBFIE T RER
BRKIES| - WEREEL ST HET - 5
KERWERKEIR - HEEREKIE RN

To make better use of water resources, the Group has
formulated strict water use guidelines and implemented
them in various operating sites in order to effectively use

water resources. Relevant water saving measures are as ™
follows:
. Optimize the water-saving process. Using the BLEKIE - FRBIBEARIT

Yangtze River water for production at the source,
and reduce water consumption by adopting new
technologies and improving processes. The battery
materials segment and the key processes of the
main products in traditional segments have all
achieved zero discharge of water.

. Strengthen internal management, establish and
improve various water management systems
and water assessments, resolutely put an end to
running, wasting, dripping, and leaking, and strictly
implement water-saving systems and measures.

° Do a good job in water recycling, starting from
every link, and constantly exploring new ways to
save water. For example, replace the fillers, nozzles,
water clothes for the cool water tower and so on.

. Increase publicity. Through the Company’s
internal newspaper, training, and other forms of
activities, improving the business quality and water
conservation awareness of all employees, so that
water conservation has become a conscious action
of all employees.

° Strengthen rainwater diversion. Collect clean
rainwater in the separate zones of factory and use it
for landscaping, or recycling after treatment.

KIETTAEE - BBERAHRM - =
TERERKE - EMWMEIRRIE
BEBRATZEMBRTFHES
TIRBTHER ©

IEEAEER - BV ZHKER
FIEMAKER  BRHER - T -
R BRIRERTT K ERK I E B
e o

K ERAA - (S EREGIE -
RERRI N EART - MFOKEE
K T KBS -

MAEBNE  BBRRAEPHA -
FIE RS RB INERRENEG
IKEB EEHORKKRZREBTIN
BT -

IIRFERDIR © H R B A ELFRIK D
BUWE - DRIARREAA(CHEIEER
Bl A -

Since water is mainly provided by the relevant government HAKEEHBTERAEFIRM - FTAKRE
departments, so the Group did not encounter any problems B R RS B AR B AR FE T E B B E
with water supply during the Reporting Period. A RE -

Water Consumption Ji:P3 2023 2022

Water consumption (m?) FKE (T K) 1,415,417 868,929
Water intensity K==
(water consumption/M’ RMB revenue)™© (WEKEBEE,/ BBAREBIRA)® 685 409

10 Lower product average unit selling price of the Group 10 2023 F A EEMBNFHEER
resulted in higher water consumption intensity in 2023. 1K - BERKEZEEN -
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The two major types of waste waters discharged by the
Group are industrial sewage and domestic wastewater.
Tsaker New Energy, as a responsible manufacturer,
takes seriously on the environmental impacts caused
by wastewater discharge. The Company has set up
wastewater treatment facilities and obtained wastewater
discharge permits recognized by the local government.
In addition, we installed online monitoring equipment in
accordance with the requirements of the discharge permits
to ensure that the wastewater discharged meets national
and local discharge standards.

To effectively manage water resources, the Group has set
a target to reduce wastewater discharge intensity from
2021 to 2025 (by formula: wastewater discharge/Million
RMB revenue). The Group shall monitor the emission
intensity annually and illustrate the performance. In 2025,
a summary would be made to review the effectiveness and
performance of this 5-year target.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

REBMMPFRMBEKREED BT ERBEKME
EEK c REHMERERBEEANEES -
T EREMETKIE RO IRBZE -
AEBERIIFKEIZRE - BUSH T BUF
RATH K PEETA] - WIRBES AT E K
RRAGERRE - BRAFROEKED
B AN 77 HERARZE -

AEEREERERKER  FILTHR_-F
2T AFHRMEEKEREER
BR(EARA  BRIENE BEARK
WA) - AEBEESFEREFRERE -
WHAGFHRE B _Z_AFEE-R
s B AF BRIBEMERRE -

Wastewater BEK 2023 2022
Wastewater quantity (md) REKE (LK) 660,772 355,896
Wastewater intensity (wastewater quantity/ EEKZE(BEKE  BEARBUA)T

M’ RMB revenue)™ 320 168

11 Lower product average unit selling price of the Group
resulted in increased wastewater density in 2023.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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Waste Management

Tsaker New Energy regulates and supervises the
operational requirements for the generation, collection,
storage and disposal of solid waste through the formulation
of relevant standards, such as the “Management Standards
for Hazardous Solid Waste” and the “Management
Standards for General Industrial Solid Waste”. In this way,
we ensure that solid waste generated by each plant is
disposed of in a reasonable and compliant manner.

We continuously improve the use efficiency of resources,
endeavor to reduce waste from source, increase the
recycling of general waste and handle hazardous waste
properly. The waste incurred from the Group are mainly
industrial waste, hazardous waste and domestic waste.

Hazardous Waste

As a chemical manufacturer, the Group inevitably produces
hazardous wastes during operation and production, such
as industrial waste oil and sludge. The Group develops
a hazardous waste management system and complies
with all applicable laws and regulations Tsaker New
Energy adopts a rigorous management to ensure the
aforementioned wastes are safely treated and the risk of
leakage is diminished. At the same time, we strengthen the
training for personnel related to hazardous waste, stipulate
labor protection standards for relevant posts, and carry out
internal supervisions regularly.

The Group has divided designated areas in each of its
base factories and set up warehouses specifically for the
storage of hazardous waste. We have set up different
labels for these areas according to the types of hazardous
waste for purposes including separate collection, take
measures against seepage and rain to prevent leakage and
contamination of hazardous waste as well as to safeguard
the safety of our employees. The Group entrusts qualified
third-party contractors and hazardous waste treatment
companies to carry out the collection and treatment of
hazardous waste.

RIR - HERERRSE

BERYEE

HEFRBBHE(ERERERNEE
) (— M TR EREERRA) MR
% ARLEERBEENEL KE B
7 RESEECHELER  BREIH
P ERER YA B ARAE -

BATERAZERNBRE - 5 HERE L
BABERMMES  BNHEEEZRYHD
WA ZEREBEERY - AEBEPMELN
WEENIEAELERRETEENTERRE
Y BEEEYE —REFIR -

BEERY

ERIEBREER  AREMNAFEELETH
MRWEELBERRY  WITEREMNS
EE o AREHIERREYMEEGE - BT
FIAERRERRER - HEMERKIGE
ENREERLEMBHNETERY @ #
REZERIEEEEEMALBREINEIRDN
Bk - RSNEEEEZMHEBOABRE
Fl - HIEREELSBRERE - FHET

LR -

AEBESENHEE D THEERE - R
TEMRRFEFEREZRVNAE - RAR
REBREMNELSELRERET RN
R UWEETHYBRKE  AREBEHFR
it U LBEERZMRBISE - R
RERBEETINRZE - ARBELZEFEENSE
= ABERNEEREEARETEEEREY
HYU SR MEZ IR
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Non-hazardous Waste

During the operation, the Group has produced
nonhazardous wastes such as general waste, food waste,
office wastepaper, packaging boxes, scrap iron, coal
cinder, waste plastic and waste trays. In response to
the national policy, the Group has implemented waste
separation within the company to reduce waste generation
at source and gather recyclable materials including paper,
wood, metal and plastic. During the Reporting Period,
the Group endeavored to guide its employees utilizing
resources efficiently and strengthen waste management.
The implementation of non-hazardous waste recycling
measures has achieved remarkable results, which reach
99% recycling rate. Tsaker New Energy shall seek for
feasible waste reduction and recycling solutions constantly
and take the responsibility of environmental protection
as an enterprise. In addition, durable supporting tools for
products transportation are also used to reduce damage
consumption and waste generation. The following is the
waste produced for this Reporting Period:

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BEERY

EELEET FAEEEANETEENE
RERNE REFRG  WAEER  B8K
2 BEE - RS BENMTERERE /B
EREZRBER  AEBEERRABERTEE
MR WRER D BERYNES - WHE
RAM  EBMBHEETEY - EAR
A AKREBRNNSIEETERER
WHNSREE Y EIE - B EEREZEY MW
MR BE - MU ERERI9% - K EHEE
IR BRR A ITHOBURE AN @ T 5 I
EERERFOEME - 1o RAANEE
RAMANEBKBAIETR - UREIER
RMBERMEL - ATRAREHTEEY
g

Waste BEZEY) 2023 2022
Hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EBELENEEEEY (W) 574 364
Hazardous waste intensity per unit product ESBWEE FhE 4+ A EREEY) ()12

(tonnes)'™ 0.0037 0.0030
Non-hazardous waste Produced (tonnes) BEEAMBEEREZEY(HE) 8,994 7,631
Non-hazardous waste intensity per BWEEmEEBEEZEY ()

unit product (tonnes) 0.058 0.0634
Non-hazardous waste recycled (tonnes) BRI A =R Y () 8,930 7,559
Non-hazardous waste recycled Percentage #EZREZEYOEULL 99% 99%
Hazardous waste disposal intensity EEEEVEEETE

(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue)'® (BEWEES A8 AREBIA)S 0.20 0.04
Non-hazardous waste disposal intensity mEEEVEES

(waste disposal/M’ RMB Revenue) (EEMEEE BBEAREERA) 0.03 0.03
12 New pilot research and development project in 2023 12 2023 F M EHHAMBEEEERRS -

BEEMRED -

produces more waste but no product outputs.

2023 F AKEEMBNFHEER
K SHEEEREVESSREEM-

13 Lower product average unit selling price of the Group 13
resulted in increased hazardous waste disposal
intensity in 2023.
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Packaging Materials

Tsaker New Energy emphasizes the use of product
packaging that is environmentally friendly and has
good safety performance. In addition to meeting the
requirements of our customers and the industry, we
also emphasize the robustness of packaging materials.
Adopting environmentally friendly and packaging materials
with good safety performance can effectively minimize the
impact on the environment and human health, while robust
packaging materials can effectively prevent the leakage
of chemicals. In order to meet these critical requirements,
the Group is constantly looking for different packaging
materials.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BEMH

FEFMERERRARERENZE2RRR
HRMEMBE -RTHEEENEANER
S RAEIEBRMHNRERE - KA
BREREMZERARTNBEMBAAE
BRLHREMABERENTZE - AREE
B EEMB T AB R LB YRIE - BT
MEBLBENFER  AEETH SRR
HBEEME -

Packaging Material aEMR 2023 2022
Total packaging material (tonnes) BRM R S () 3,290 1,243
Amount of recycled and 5] 452 %% [B] FA B B3 M L B0 2 (IR

reused package material (tonnes) 230 76
Recycled and reused percentage Bl K = i H 45 H 7% 6%

PEOPLE-ORIENTED AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Recruiting and cultivating talents
Employee’s Welfare Protection

Tsaker New Energy strictly abides by all national laws
and regulations, including but not limited to The Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and The Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China. Based on
these laws and regulations, we formulates internal rules
and regulations on employment, such as the Employee
Handbook and the Standards for General Principles of
Human Resource Management, to ensure the protection of
employees’ rights and interests.

6.1

UARE  BigtEEE

SIEES AL

REEE THER

FEMERERETEREEERESR 8
BRERRNCREARKMBESEE) (hE
ARKMBEEHARZE)E - Rig Lil0X#Z
ER BMBECEIFMICANERER
BARE)SNBATIREHNE  DERRE

B THEZS o
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Recruitment and dismissal

Tsaker New Energy strictly regulates the procedures
related to recruitment and dismissal. Upon appointment,
each employee is required to sign an employment
contract, which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities
and obligations (including salary, working hours, benefits
and holidays, etc.) of the laborer and the employer. All
employees have the right to terminate the employment
relationship with the relevant employing company of
the Group. The conclusion, modification, rescission and
termination of the relevant employment contracts are in
strict compliance with the relevant laws and policies.
The Group has formulated clear termination criteria and
dismissal procedures to protect the rights and interests of
employees by not dismissing them casually.

Compensation and Welfare

Tsaker New Energy has built a competitive and fair
compensation and benefit system based on the position
and ability of the employees. We conduct regular
salary surveys and adjust the salary bandwidth based
on the survey results and competitive positioning in
order to motivate and retain talented employees. The
Group implements a fair, open and impartial evaluation
and reward mechanism, and gradually creates a team
competition atmosphere through differentiated reward
mechanisms to stimulate the potential and continuous
improvement of employees. We have formulated standards
such as the “Operational Standards for Positional Salary
Management” and “Operational Standards for Positional
Evaluation and Management”, and provided employees
with a comprehensive salary system and promotion
opportunities.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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a

e Ea R B

EMEREBRABHEE  BESHBRE
FeBUEBITHIERE AREFLHE
Rl AEERSTIRERETOEN  BE
HERK(BEHE  TEHE B LRES
F) o FRABR T H AN A L8N & B AR R
BRAABRMNEMBERE - HEERS O
o BE - BRI IEEERETREER
BERRTE o ANEE S I E B e AR ISR &
BRI - THEEMEST EREET
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X

HENEETE A

HEMERAEER  UEHERE B2
(S9N AT N - HARARQFIE ] WEFBEE
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Prohibition of child and forced labor

We comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Regulations Prohibiting the Use of Child Labor
and other laws and regulations. We require employees to
provide relevant identification documents when joining the
Group, and apply this requirement to the Group’s suppliers.
The Group has also put in place appropriate remedial
procedures and measures to stop the employment of child
laborers and report them to the local labor authorities once
they are found to be employed, and to conduct health
checks on them to ensure that they are not physically or
mentally harmed. They are encouraged to return to school,
and we are also willing to accept the children’s adult
relatives to substitute their positions in order to help relieve
the financial pressure on their families. All of the Group’s
employees meet the minimum working age requirements
set by national laws and regulations. At the same time, we
respect our employees’ willingness to work and prohibit
forced labor. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any cases involving child labor or forced
labor.

Equality and Anti-Discrimination

We promote equality and anti-discrimination. All employees
are not discriminated against on the basis of gender,
race, ethnicity, nationality, color, religious beliefs,
disability status and marital status, etc., during the
processes including hiring, pay, promotion, disciplinary
action, termination, and retirement. In our Employee
Ethics Handbook, we strictly prohibit our employees from
engaging in any form of harassment and discrimination
against others, and ensure that every employee is
respected and treated with dignity. As at the end of the
Reporting Period, the proportion of women among the
Group’s employees was 29%. The following is a overview
of the Group’s employees:

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BIFBETRBHET

BPET(PEARKMELEE) (BLLE
REIRE)FERER  BRETEAR
FrEEHARRE & (DA - XA ERKER
RASENHER - AEE IR GHIEAHEN
AR EERE —BEEREREING
N NARERETHEY EREZHWE B
F - ANASEETRERE  BRES LK
XEE - HBMMERER - HREBRE
HEHRXENVREINRE - RAABEEIE
MABBREETEREML - AREMRERT
BRABEFEARERARENKETIEFER
Ek - AR ZRMBEESTITHESHRE - 2ib
REHEE c RMEHA - ARELEMNEBA
A R E T e sam 8 TR fEZ -

P& B 5017

RFRETFSE  RYESR FEETTAME
B TER Rk BE B RHEEWM -
BEMRR - BRRREREMESIEG &
FER - HM - B £28E - BE- R
KE - RMEEI(CEEFMIF - BEAE
EE T HmABITEREANBEMER -
BREVETHESESEWBIFEENY
FoBEARERR  AEEREP LML
B 529% - L TEASENEERBL
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Number of Employees™

% of Employees

EEAH™ EEES

Employee Category EEER 2023 2022 2023 2022
By gender EERIE S
Male 3 1,415 1,392 71% 72%
Female @ 584 537 29% 28%
By employment type RERERNE S
Management EIR[E 117 127 6% 7%
Senior FE MR 170 159 8% 8%
Junior MHET 1,712 1,643 86% 85%
By age EFERE D
18-30 years old 18-307% 322 247 16% 13%
31-50 years old 31-505% 1,421 1,316 71% 68%
51 years old and above 51 BREA L 256 366 13% 19%
By geographical region &= &5
Beijing bR 3 10 0% 1%
Hebei JAde 1,710 1,680 86% 87%
Heilongjiang B 15 12 1% 1%
Henan A 4 4 0% 0%
Anhui T 1 30 0% 1%
Shandong R 247 153 12% 8%
Others HAth 20 40 1% 3%
Total HEPN 1,999 1,929
14 The employment data has included the production sites EEBBRABELERM -

only.
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Apart from recruiting talents through a fair and impartial
talent recruitment and promotion mechanism, the Group
spares no effort to retain talents. To reward employees
for their dedication to the Company and enhance their
sense of belonging, we offer our employees competitive
remuneration package and welfare, including overtime pay,
five insurances and one housing fund, holiday benefits,
education allowances, certificate allowances, seniority
allowances and various vacations. To fully mobilize
employees’ enthusiasm, the Group also has a complete
incentive plan to reward outstanding employees and teams.
Through the various HR management channels, the Group
strives to keep the turnover rate at a lower level.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BT RBAFRENREGEZERAATI
AEBEEREAST TENTERN - HFR
HEBRSIIOFHBMEN - SEMEE -
BThk—<  BEHEN - 2EGRM - B
AL THRAEMEEERBATET @R
BTHRARNMNEIL MmN EEK- A
BB -—EXBNHBTERE  HRES
BTMEBETER TOAPHE RS
o BBAESBATEREERE A%
EEERTRRERBREKRF -

Turnover rate's Mk ZS 2023 2022
Total turnover rate RPN 11% 10%
By gender ZIERIE D

Male £ 12% 12%
Female z 8% 7%
By age BFERE D

18-30 years old 18-307% 32% 34%
31-50 years old 31-50%% 6% 9%
51 years old and above 51 BRUA 11% 4%
By geographical region RHEE D

Mainland China B A s 11% 10%
Hong Kong or other region BB A MR 0% 5%
15 The employment data has included the production sites 15 EEHRIABFEEERM -

only.

Supporting employee development

We emphasize the development and cultivation of
talents, and adhere to the employment principle that a
suitable employee need to be outstanding on both moral
integrity and practical ability, while Company shall hire
people based on merit. At the same time, we respect
the characteristics of each employee and provide them
with diverse career development paths and endeavor to
establish a career platform conducive to the development
of their abilities. The Group has also established
performance bonus and incentive schemes to recognize
and encourage employees at all levels who have made
outstanding contributions to the Group’s business.

TEHETHE

BMERATNRENES - BIE[ELF#
B RABRINEARARE - R - &
MEES—RBINRE  RERHZTH
BEBREBCE SHBRENRETHER
FHENEXFE - ARBTRIGEHES R
RE:E - BT ABE AR EEEB ML 4
HEBOERES -
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The complete training process is as follows:

° The HR department is responsible for conducting
regular surveys on the training needs of each
business department, understanding the training
needs, and formulating the corresponding annual,
quarterly and monthly training plans according to
the Company’s requirements.

o After obtaining the training needs, the Group would
find and assist the corresponding internal/external
lecturers in improving training materials, building a
training course system based on the characteristics
of the Group and business, and formulating specific
training plans.

o Employees participate in training and share it
internally, as well as compile training materials and
formulate operable plans that can transform theory
into relevant skills.

° Investigation and assessment of training effects
would be conducted in a timely manner to
continuously improve training work, which would
then be archived.

The Group adheres to the principle of “demand-based
training”, which sets up different training themes
according to functional departments, personnel
management processes and employee levels, as well as
formulates corresponding training objectives, content and
performance evaluation indicators according to different

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

FEIHERE —ExBNEIIRE

ANEBRBEE TR R EBEHPIE
TR B - TREIFR R
BRRELGERENFE - FTEM
HEZIFE -

. ERR|HFIF KRR - E@#’%&IWJ
BhAREMSNEREEED - SEEEIIER
#ﬁé%l&%i‘%ﬁ%%%ﬁéﬂl%%m e
% HEAREIE -

. BT2HBJITETARKE - &2
EDIERL - I E AT IR B L AR
BRI RE R A R IE1E AV EH B -

. KEH B RETRENE - 758
HEEI TELFE -

AEBEER[ABEE |MRA - RI7IRBEE
A ABEEREMBTIERIDHTR
BIIERE - YRR FRGEREEB
- AR REMEHEER -

needs.

Occupational Training for Employee REABERZZEI 2023 2022
Topics B 34 35
Total hours of topics BRI 209 185.5
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Average Training Time
P393 IR

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

% of employees trained
FHEER DL

Category HHl 2023 2022 2023 2022
By gender RIS

Male 3 25 20 76 74
Female %8 21 18 24 26
By employment type REREIES

Management EIEE 12 12 3 4
Senior FE MR 29 20 11 10
Junior MFEET 23 20 86 86
Building a Harmonious Working Environment 6.2 IBEMEBEIIEBIE

The Group is people-oriented and is committed to NEBEZENUAASGANES MAOANGKET

creating a good and harmonious working environment for
employees, so as to strengthen the Company’s cohesion
and improve work efficiency. We organized a significant
amount of team building activities to strengthen the
connection between employees, provide healthy working
conditions, and provide timely care for employees who
need special care.

Team Building Activities

During the Reporting Period, Tsaker New Energy
organized the annual summary commendation and cultural
performance activities. It motivated employees to work
hard by recognizing the advanced deeds of outstanding
employees and teams. The cultural performance
demonstrated the employees’ literary talents, enriched their
spiritual and cultural life, promoted cultural exchanges,
and improved them with a sense of satisfaction and
belonging. Moreover, it demonstrated the Group’s culture
and a snapshot of the enterprise, showed the outstanding
employees and teams to the outside society, while
also enhance the enterprise’s social responsibility and
influence.

A — B R FABAO TIERS - IAIBRAF
RES  REIENE - RRERLENE
REBIANBE T ZRIBE  RREENT
PG - LN B EHHBENE TR R
FEE -

E2EE

EARBREHAN - WEHMERBRTFERL
REYBNHEERTE - BARYEFTEIM
EBRHGCESE  BBEAEIE NI
NEEFRTEINXESZE ZFE8TH
B EE - REXER R - RABTIH
ERBENMEBR - WARREE LD E
R RINRBTEENEFTE TMBERK -
BATENTSETMTEN -
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During the Reporting Period, Tsaker New Energy organized
the 17th employee sports games, which demonstrated
the energetic and forward-looking spirit of the enterprise
and further promoted the sustainable development of the
enterprise. This move not only carries forward the enterprise
culture and inherits the positive traditions of the enterprise,
but also helps to penetrate the enterprise culture into the
hearts of the people and make it permeate into the working
life of each employee. With this sports games, we have
successfully enriched the cultural life of employees, enhance
team building and stimulated their enthusiasm for work. This
event has also improved employees’ understanding and
recognition of the Company.

A SRR RSN

v
ARIRN WYY

B v ¥
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Annual summary commendation and
cultural performance activity

FERBERYENEER

EREHAN  EEMERKNERFE+LE
BTEHE TREEXRMNEN  BEHMAA
s ES E—THPEENFEER -
BB R EREEERER
XBEORBEEICRAAL  EZBBEE
BRNETIWIFELRE - BBEEEINXL
HE - EREBREAMALS  BRET
BRI RS - RPN TG - EmiR
TR THAEMRAENMRBRE -

The 17th employee sports games
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In order to strengthen the construction of company
culture, we organized Tsaker New Energy 2023 speech
contest — “Carrying forward the positive energy of the
company, transferring the corporate culture”. The event
strengthened the corporate culture, boosted staff morale
and sense of belonging, and also promoted communication
and participation among staff, as well as identifying and
cultivating talents with potential. At the same time, the
competition enhanced the Company’s reputation and
presence by highlighting the Company’s positive image
and values, as well as stimulating staff's enthusiasm for
innovation and improvement, thus injecting new vitality into
the Company’s sustainable development.

Apart from that, during the Reporting Period, the Group
also organized safety speech contests and safety
knowledge competitions to enhance employees’ awareness
of work safety.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

RIREEXCER - EEBREETHMER
TR =FE[AHEEERE  BEAE
XA BB EED - SRR BB ME bR
XMt RABTETRMGEE  REBTZ
BEVBEBMSME  HREWIBETAFEIN
AT o A EBEAREAANERER
MEEER  RARARNTRMBE - HEEB
THEIFMAENRE - BRARNFEER
TEAFTRETD ©

Bribz o EREHA  AREEERT X
REBLE  RE2ARHEES  RREIN

Safety speech contests

REFHELE
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Employees’ Welfare

In order to fully implement the Group’s principle of
“‘common prosperity, starting from the employees around
you”, and in line with the principle that use Company’s
funding and put greater efforts to benefit the families of
workers in difficulty, the Group’s labor union continued
to extend its work on the basis of the work in 2022, and
accomplished the following work during the Reporting
Period:

° In conjunction with the Municipal People’s Hospital,
the Company carried out the “Love in May,
Gratitude to Parents” Health Care Circuit, in which
70 employees participated.

. Organized 714 employees to participate in the
one-day mutual assistance among employees. In
order to help workers to solve their problems, the
Company is in line with more than 20 employees
who meet the difficulty criteria, helping them
prepare, and submit application materials.

° In conjunction with the Maternal and Child Health

Hospital of the county, we conducts “double cancer
screening” for female employees.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #eREHLERA T

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Safety knowledge competitions
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o Carrying out physical examination activities for
employees to monitor and manage their health in a
comprehensive manner.

o The company organizes staff to participate in the
“County Workers’ Badminton Competition”, which
enlivens the amateur cultural life of the staff and
creates an upward, positive and healthy mental
outlook of the staff.

o The 17th Staff Games of the Group was organized
to build a platform for all employees. Through
participating this activity, we wish to enhance
confidence, gather strength and ultimately build a
better future for employees.

CARING FOR COMMUNITY AND TAKING
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Tsaker New Energy actively participates in public
welfare donations and contributes to local community
development. During the Reporting Period, Tsaker Dongao
donated funds with total amount of RMB50,000 to the
Charity Federation of Hekou District, Dongying City, to
support projects such as rural revitalization and charitable
education assistance. In addition, Tsaker Technology
cooperated with other Dongguang County enterprises and
the Civilization Office of Dongguang County to create the
Dongguang County Volunteer Service Federation, which
is dedicated to promoting the development of charity. As
one of the founding members, Tsaker Technology donated
30,000 RMB to the federation as a start-up fund to actively
promote the vigorous development of social welfare
undertakings.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE
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Description

RMEERES #Hit

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT

Aspect KPI

BHE

A1: EMISSIONS

B A1 BERY

A1 General
Disclosure
— R E
Al.1
Al.2
Al1.3
Al4

(a) The policies; and
W, &k

(b) Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABERZENHEBE
BRIROIER

The types of emissions and respective

emissions data.

B E R AR B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect
(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (HE) R RMEE (FE2) R EREY
ME (A &) R(ER)ZEE (A E
BB - GERHHE) -

Total hazardous waste produced

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FREABEEEYESE (AEGE) R (iE
BZE(AGESEN - BIERMAE) -
Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FIEAEEEEYRE (LAEFE) R (B
BZE(WAGEEEN - §IERMAE) -

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]

8.

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

BMX(RE - HERERREESD
=5

Statement/Section
B EMH
ARE

(a) 5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2IRFIR#&

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WS BN B AR AR R,
WRHIRIBAETKEREM

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIFRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIFRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIFRE



Aspect
Bm

KPI

RRAEMNIER
A15

Al6

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description
i

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
AP Z @B E B R R AESIELER
TRPTERERE) P58 -

Description of how hazardous and
nonhazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

MM EBEEREZTEEYNG E - Rid
MPAETS HREE B iR R BERE L B IR
REREY 5% -

A2: USE OF RESOURCES
BmE A2: ERER

A2

General
Disclosure

—RBEE

A2.1

A2.2

A2.83

A2.4

BERERER (BIEER - KREMRM
) R -

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RENESMEER SHELR(WE -
RICH) BREECATHETFREFE)REE
(MABESEN BHEREAE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
RIKEREE(MASEEEN -
MEtE) -

=2

<

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

R P RT S BV REIR(E A e B IR R ARE S
B L B IR AT ERER A AP B

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

At sSREGE A KR LAl B AR ERE - AR
FET UM AR B ERREIEERIR
PRERER &Y 22 B8

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

B EMH

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIGIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 RIFIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection

5.2 IRIFRHE

5.2 Environmental Protection

5.2 IRFER#E

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRHE

5.2 Environmental Protection

5.2 RIFRE
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Aspect
Bm

KPI
CE o gvetd
A2.5

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description
it

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

SR BT BEMENESE
(WWER)BEEEMNIEE -

(LABBET &) &

A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

EE A3: RIERARER

A3

A4: CLIMATE CHANGE

General
Disclosure

—REE

A3.1

EBHE A4: RiIxE1L

A4

General
Disclosure

—RBEE

A4.1

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
BIREITAHRRERAABEREREAY
EHHR -

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

MM EBEBHHIRBERRARE RN E
EREEREEERTENT -

Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.
BRI R EHEE R AT HEITAELR
ENERRBREAEENEE

Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

MR RS HETAEELENS
ARIEEEE, RELHITE -

R ARATE

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

B EMH

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE

5.2 Environmental Protection

5.2 IRIFRHE

5.2 Environmental Protection

5.2 IRIFERE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 BRI IRE

5.2 Environmental Protection
5.2 IRIRIRE



Aspect
Bm

B1

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

BREREE #Hik
SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B1: EMPLOYMENT
EBm B1: EfE

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B1.2

(a) The policies; and
HE; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BFHETABEATENHEBE
BRMRPIEERL -

Total workforce by gender, employment

type, (for example, full — or part time)

age group and geographical region.

RIER) - RIEET (2B RE) - i

HR R mE o H) e SR8 -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age

group and geographical region.

IR - FAR MR EIDHEBRRK

Lh & -

B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
[EHE B2: RERZ2

B2

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B2.1

B22

B2.3

(a) The policies; and
HE; &

(b) Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BTHETABEARENERE
BRMRPIEERL -

Number and rate of work-related

fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the Reporting

Period.

BEZF(BRERFE)BFEAITHRIA

LXK -

Lost days due to work injury.

EIEEATIEAR-

Description of occupational health and

safety measures adopted, and how they

are implemented and monitored.

R PR AR B R R L 216, A KLME

BBMITREER T -

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

L2

B.#t®

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
6.1 5|EEBAEANT :

There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WERARNEE B THBANER MR
Bl WRHERBHEEREREN -

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
6.1 S| EEAAS

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents

6.1 5| BEBFAT

5.1 Safety Management

SALEER

There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WERAREB B THANER LR
Pl - WRBHRAMEREREM -

5.1 Safety Management
5AREER

5.1 Safety Management
SAREER
5.1 Safety Management
5AREER
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Aspect KPI Description
Em BREMER #Hl

B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
BT B3: R RE

B3 General Policies on improving employees’
Disclosure knowledge and skills for discharging
—R 5= duties at work. Description of training
activities.

AR EERITIERE M ke
BVERER o HIRIEFES o

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RURREEEAN(NSRERE  PRE
BRE)ESNXIEEBDL -

B3.2 The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

RIERI REEEMNE D, BREETKZII
B F IR EL o

B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

[EE B4: B TXA|

B4 General (a) The policies; and
Disclosure R, &
—R R E (b)  Compliance with relevant laws

and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BTHBEITABERZENERE
BERMOIEER -

B4.1 Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
st R E DI E e AR 2 E T 58
GEEN

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
BRI ER B NRER B RIS PR
)5 -

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

L2

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
6.1 5|1 B@AEAS

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents

6.1 5|IBEBFAS

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents

6.1 3| BEEHAL

(a) 6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
6.1 51 BEAEANS :

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
HE BN AR BB AR AR R
Bl WRERBWEREREN -

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
6.1 5|1 B@AEAS

6.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
6.1 5|1 BEAAS



Aspect
Bm

B5

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

MREMER
B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
B BS: ftEHEERE

General

Disclosure
—R 5=

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.
ERHERNRE I ERBREE -
Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

miRESNHEMEE -

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are

being implemented, and corresponding
implementation and monitoring method.
it B AHEEHNED, mERTHH
EOMHERSE - URAERERTRER
TIE o

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

2L 75 8 78 144 P 8 A (1 5R B 9 3R 0% JeAt
SEBRNED, LALBBRTRERTE -
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A REHERREE S ARRER R
BRIGEIIE G, LA NRABRIERTT R EERTIE -

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

By EH
4.1 Strict Production Management
AABRBHEEER

4.1 Strict Production Management
4ABBEEER

4.1 Strict Production Management
AR EEER

4.1 Strict Production Management
AABRBHEEER

4.1 Strict Production Management
4ABRBHEEER
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Aspect KPI

Em
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Description

BMREMESR #Hil

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

BT B6: EmEE

B6 General
Disclosure

—RRE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

112

(a) The policies; and
HE; &

(b) Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BFHETABEALENREE
BRMRPIEERL -

Percentage of total products sold or

shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons.

EENCEXEREHPRELT T BZRIE

mmARKK A DL

Number of products and service-related

complaints received and how they are

dealt with.

RN E m KRB IR B E LA R IE

T e

Description of practices relating to

observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.

it B R RIS AN ERREARIED -

Description of quality assurance

process and recall procedures.

S ST B REMBIKIER

Description of consumer data

protection and privacy policies,

and how they are implemented and

monitored.

FRHUE B B S RHMRE RALRBUR, bARAR

RASTT MBI »

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

L2

(a) 4.2 Quality Control and 4.3 Product
Stewardship
42 EBERERAZEREE

(b) There was no non-compliance noticed
during the Reporting Period.
WE BN AR E BB TAER AR LR
Pl - WRBHIRAMEREREM -

4.3 Product Stewardship

43 EmEE

4.3 Product Stewardship
43 EMEE

4.4 Intellectual Property Management
4 ARBEEER

4.3 Product Stewardship
43 EmEE

4.5 Customer Privacy Protection
4.5 BRREFLR#E
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Description

BMREMESR #Hil

(a) The policies; and
B, M
(b) Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer.
BFHETABEALENREE
BRMRPIEERL -
Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the Reporting Period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERHNHETASEEERBTER
HERBESHARMENEE RFAGR -
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
BT R BRI T - A RABBEETT
MBI °

Aspect KPI

=]

B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

Em B7: RES

B7 General
Disclosure
—R B
B7.1
B7.2
B7.3

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HmEERE TRENREGEI -

RIR - 4 ERERHRE

Statement/Section

L2

4.6 Business Integrity

4.6 BB ¢

There was no non-compliance
noticed during the Reporting Period.
WEHNAREEE T AEBEERE R
Bl - SRR IBAERZREM -

4.6 Business Integrity
4.6 RN

4.6 Business Integrity
4.6 RN

4.6 Business Integrity
4.6 BRREE
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RIE - HERERBE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section
EE BRERER Hmik By EH

B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
[EmEBS : HERE

B8 General Policies on community engagement 7 Caring For Community And Taking Social
Disclosure  to understand the needs of the Responsibility
—R B communities where the issuer operates 7 B4 E @ ETHLESET

and to ensure its activities take

into consideration the communities’
interests.

BN RSERTREEMELREFE
MBEREER TS EE LR EHBOR

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. 7 Caring For Community And Taking Social
education, environmental concerns, Responsibility
labour needs, health, culture, sport). 7 DERE - EIHeET

EIEEEE (MRS  BEED ST
=% @F - b BE) -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or 7 Caring For Community And Taking Social

time) to the focus area. Responsibility
EEIBBMPAER(NEBREM) - 7EHEHLE  BEELSEE

114 TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #&ERHE AR A T



Directors and Senior Management

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors and senior management are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi (former name: GE Yuanyuan), aged 42, is an
executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman
of our Company, responsible for overall business strategy and
major business decisions of our Group. Mr. GE is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. GE joined us in
February 2007 and was promoted to vice-president and president
in December 2011 and August 2012, respectively.

Mr. GE obtained a master’'s degree in International Business
Management from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom in
February 2007 and completed studies in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University in the PRC in July 2004.

The discloseable interests of Mr. GE in the Shares and underlying
Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Sharers and Debentures”
under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Mr. BAI Kun, aged 47, is an executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, being
responsible for the financial operations and management of the
Group. Mr. BAI has been an executive Director since 25 August
2016. Mr. BAI joined the Group in September 2014 as the Chief
Financial Officer, and was appointed as a joint company secretary
on 11 December 2020. Mr. BAl has been the sole company
secretary of the Company and was appointed as an Authorized
Representative and Process Agent of the Company on 15
December 2023. Mr. BAl is also the director of Tsaker Hong Kong.
He has been a director of Tsaker Technology (shares of which are
quoted on NEEQ, stock code: 873772) since November 2022, and
an independent non-executive director of Archosaur Games Inc.,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9990) since
September 2021. Mr. BAI has extensive experience in accounting
and financial management. His work experience includes acting
as manager for the Tianjin branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers (&
ERBERREMELMERABKRENFT) from September 2002
to February 2010 and the financial controller of Tianjin Walkman
Biomaterial Co., Ltd. from February 2010 to August 2014.

EENEREER

RAFHRNBEH  EEREREEENEENT

B

BITES
RREE(BAR : Rx) @ 425 BRARAK
MITES  THRARRIR AEANEEMNERE
BREREBRHRE - XKAETR/RERZESE
B o RAER-ZZLF-AMAKRRAR - 55
RZE——F+_ARZZE—ZFNAESH A
mENEE -

XEER-_ZZLF_ABRBEERENAZES
B TITHERELTSM  YRZETOF+ATK
HERERBCBTIRNEE -

XEERERN RAEEROTEERBEESFRBEK
PIEXVEGEXBETRBE 2 RGN AFRIESS
BEPEZRESTRABRBN - HERHD RE
HETPEANERNORE ] —& -

HEXE 475 AARRHTES  BFVEE
RARIWE AEAKEENYBEEREE - AKX
AR —E—XRNENA-_THARBRETHNTES - A
EERZT—MFNLAMAREE  ETEFYH
B EA_Z-ZTF+_A+ B RIBELAF
WE -B-T-_=F+_-A+HBKE BELEEFE
RABIME—RARIWE  WEZRTALARRFERSE
EERERBFREA BAENALERBNES -
BEZZSZ—F+-ARBECERERE (HROR
NEEQ#H - BRI R5E : 873772) MES - =%
T—FNARETHELERERABNBIIENTT
EE ZAREBRA LT (BRMHASE 1 9990) - B
EEBALENG T RMBERLR - ETEER
BE_SE_FHALAE_T—TF_AETEEX
BRREAMEBERARNKEZDAIEERR
T-ZF_AE_FT—NFNALETRETEREE
MR AR A B B IS 4B BE

o
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Mr. BAI obtained a bachelor's degree in Technoeconomics
in July 1999 from Tianjin University and a master’'s degree in
Technoeconomics and Management from Tianjin University in
March 2002. Mr. BAI has been a member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since June 2010.

Ms. ZHANG Nan, aged 41, has been an executive Director since
10 January 2019 and the investment development director of the
Group since September 2022, being responsible for the strategic
development planning and investment development of the Group.
Ms. ZHANG joined the Group in January 2013. Ms ZHANG is also
a director of Tsaker Singapore. Her work experience includes
serving as the human resources manager of Beijing Touqu
Technology Co., Ltd. (JtR&\ERIZRABER AT from August 2008
to July 2010. She was a director of human resources of Chexun
Internet Co., Ltd. (B EHARM AR A A]) from September 2010
to January 2013.

Ms. ZHANG graduated from Inner Mongolia University of Finance
and Economics in July 2007, majoring in business administration.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, aged 69, has been a non-
executive Director since April 2015. He is responsible for
providing advice on corporate governance and internal control
matters. He had been the chairman of the board of directors of
Clover Leaf Capital Corp. (a Canadian capital pool company listed
on the TSX Ventures Exchange in Canada, stock code: CLVR.P)
from March 2022 to October 2023. He has also been a member
of the advisory board of Ocean Equity Partners Fund L.P. (the
entity which controls Wider Pacific) since September 2012. Mr.
FONTAINE serves as an executive director and vice-chairman of
the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association.
In 2000, he founded Investel Asia, a venture capital and private
equity firm and served as its managing director from January
2004 to December 2006. He was the chief executive officer of
Newcom LLC from January 2007 to September 2008. Prior to
joining our Group in April 2015, Mr. FONTAINE served various
positions within the BCE Inc. group, the largest communications
company in Canada, including Bell Canada, Bell Ardis and Tata
Cellular, for approximately 16 years of his career. Mr. FONTAINE
has also been acting as a non-executive director of D&G
Technology Holding Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1301) since August 2016 and as an
independent director of China Lending Corporation, a company
listed on NASDAQ (ticker: CLDC) from July 2016 to December
2017.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. FONTAINE obtained a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Sherbrooke in Canada in
June 1979. He has been a member of the Order of Engineers of
Québec since January 1980.

Mr. PAN Deyuan, aged 43, has been a non-executive Director
since November 2022. He is responsible for providing advice
on the Group’s strategic planning and investment and financing
strategy matters. He has over 15 years of experience in
investment management, computer science and technology. Since
January 2022, Mr. PAN has been a director of Sanya Xuancai
Private Equity Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (=z=
HELBAIEREESEIEEMRAR]) (“Sanya Xuancai’) where he
engages in the decision-making process of the board of directors,
as well as daily operation and management of Sanya Xuancai.
Since December 2020, he has been a director of Fujian Guoguang
Xinye Sci-tec Co., Ltd. (fREBFEREBRNHERAR]) (“Fujian
Guoguang Xinye”), a subsidiary of Fujian Guoguang Electronic
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. ({8ZBEXEFEHITERAR)
(“Fujian Guoguang Electronic”), where he is responsible for
considering the annual operation plan of Fujian Guoguang Xinye
and major issues such as investment plans. Since April 2005, he
has been a director of Fujian Guoguang Electronic, where he is
responsible for considering the annual operation plan of Fujian
Guoguang Electronic and major issues such as investment plans.

Mr. PAN graduated with major in computer science and

technology from Wuhan University (EJ)2KX2) in the People’s
Republic of China in July 2004.

PAN in the Shares and
underlying Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

The discloseable interests of Mr.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Lin (former name: ZHU Xiaolin), aged 50, has been
an independent non-executive Director since March 2015,
being responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. ZHU is the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr. ZHU is also a partner of Beijing
Legendhouse CPAs (It BEEEETAIEAT) and a director of
Beijing Run Qin Consulting Co., Ltd. (At FE&EAERRAF).
Since October 2020, Mr. ZHU has been serving as a director of
Jiangsu Changshu Automotive Trim Group Co., Ltd. (IL&#HFE R
HhEEE R H AR A7), formerly known as Changshu Automotive
Trim Co., Ltd. (F#AM/AE &R AR A1), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603035). Since June
2020, Mr. ZHU has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Archosaur Games Inc. (fAEEIRZEHFRAR]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9990). From November
2020 to August 2022, Mr. ZHU was an independent non-executive
director of Sino-Ocean Service Holding Limited (EFRIEIERE
fR/x7]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
6677). Mr. ZHU was a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun
Internet Company Limited (b REFMEEEARNDERATF), a
company whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ in the PRC, from
July 2016 to April 2021. Prior to joining our Group in March 2015,
Mr. ZHU was a senior manager at the mergers and acquisitions
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (Beijing Branch) (F#E:xEAA ORI BRAFTHERS A
7)) from October 2003 to November 2005.

Mr. ZHU obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Overseas Financial
Accounting (& &t ZINEAF B & HPIME) from Central Institute
of Finance and Banking (currently known as Central University
of Finance and Economics) in the PRC in June 1995. Mr. ZHU
has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since February 2000.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]

ESREREEE

BYFBITES

KBJRELE(BRSB KR H) 50 BEZZ—H
FZAREABIUINTES  ABBUEELASE
ENEREIE  RLERERZESER  UERH
MEBEFRBEZEESMNE - KALENMBILTE
BeMEEMABARE B EAEGRARE
ZFE-BT_TF+AR  KEE—EHEDIES
RAMMEEROBRAF (ABEATREMGRN
ERAR —EREEBFRZAETHNAR @ &
HRHE : 603035) MEE - BT TF AR
KREA—BRERTERREBRAA (—HERBRAE
MHATF - BRHARSE : 9990) B IEHRITES -
RoZBE-EF+—AFE_S=—FNA ' KLk
TEERBIEBRER AR (—RHRBEIALETHA
A BRDAR  6677) WBMIERNITES - R=F
—RNFLtAEZZT-_—FWA  KEEEFIERE
MEBBRMERAR (ERMHANEEQEMNE) HI3E
WITESE - RZTE—AF=AMAREBZAT > &K
SHER - EE=F+AE -_ETRE+—AELE
FEoBFA ORI BRAREIE RS A RE Gk Ef
DRAEIE -

R 58 A — UIVEL 46 75 B BRAR o o SR B B A
B (R R EAR) 5 RONBA BRI HPUL
By A-TREE_AR KELAPEE
Mmesirees -



Directors and Senior Management

Mr. YU Miao, aged 47, has been an independent non-executive
Director since March 2015, being responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. Mr. YU is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit
Committee. Mr. YU is also a partner of Global Law Office. Mr.
YU has been a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun Internet
Company Limited (AtRBAEBEKMDERAF]), a company
whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ in the PRC, from July
2016 to April 2021. Prior to joining our Group in March 2015, Mr.
YU was a partner of Global Law Office from March 2006 to June
2010, and subsequently a partner of Norton Rose (Asia) LLP from
June 2010 to June 2011. Mr. YU returned to Global Law Office as
a partner in July 2011 and has been a partner there since then.

Mr. YU obtained a postgraduate diploma in International Law from
The University of Nottingham in the United Kingdom in December
2001, and a bachelor’s degree in Economic Law from Heilongjiang
University in the PRC in July 1999. Mr. YU was qualified as a
lawyer in the PRC in March 2000.

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan, aged 54, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2023, being responsible
for overseeing the management of our Group independently.
Ms. ZHANG is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. ZHANG has over 25 years of experience in
investment management and mergers and acquisitions advisory.
From October 2006 to September 2021, Ms. Zhang was the group
vice president and managing director of the strategic investment
department of Alibaba Group Holding Limited (FMEEE%£E
T ABRAA]) (stock code: 9988), where she was responsible
for the investment and mergers and acquisitions of the Alibaba
group. From January 2004 to October 2006, she was an associate
director of Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Ltd. Beijing
Branch* (1Z€)# 0 (L&) AR AFILRSA7F]), where she was
responsible for providing clients with financial advisory services
related to investment and mergers and acquisitions. From 2000 to
2001, Ms. Zhang was a project director of the investment banking
department of the Finance and Securities Institute at Renmin
University of China (FBIARKZLREZEZFIAT) (currently
known as the China Capital Market Research Institute at Renmin
University of China (Bl AR KEZFREBEARTIHHIER)), where she
was responsible for the provision of financial advisory services
for investment and mergers and acquisitions. From 1992 to 2000,
Ms. Zhang was the lead project manager of China National
Aero-Technology Import & Export Corporation* (9 ElfiiZe & il7i
A4 /2 7)), where she was responsible for investment analysis,
investment execution and post-investment management.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Zhang graduated with a bachelor's degree in management
engineering from Beihang University (1t mMEMRKE),
previously known as the Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics, in the PRC in July 1992 and a master of business
administration degree from the Amos Tuck School of Business
Administration at Dartmouth College in the United States in June
2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of our Company. For details about Mr. GE’s
background, see “Directors” under this section.

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of our Company. For details about Mr.
BAI's background, see “Directors” under this section.

Ms. ZHANG Nan is an executive Director and investment
development director of our Company. For details about Ms.
ZHANG’s background, see “Directors” under this section.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of our Company. For details about Mr.
BAI's background, see “Directors” under this section.
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The Board hereby announces the Directors’ Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands on 29 October 2014. The Shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
products such as battery materials, dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials. Analysis
on the principal business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 192 and 193 of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.038 per ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December
2023, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.
Assuming the final dividend is approved at the AGM, together
with the interim dividend of RMB0.029 per ordinary Share for the
six months ended 30 June 2023, the dividends in aggregate for
the year ended 31 December 2023 will amount to RMB0.067 per
ordinary Share (for the year ended 31 December 2022: RMB0.095
per ordinary Share). The dividend is expected to be paid on
28 June 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members”)
on 27 May 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 12 to 17 of this annual report for details.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We focus on environmental, health and safety protection. As a
manufacturer of battery materials, dye intermediates, agricultural
chemical intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials,
we have developed production processes that comply with all
applicable national and local standards in environmental, health
and safety protection in all material respects. We also believe
that implementing and maintaining advanced development in our
environmental, health and safety protection measures serve as
a competitive strength. Manufacturers that do not meet the local
environmental, health and safety protection standards may incur
losses and fines imposed by the local government.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, we were subject to
inspections organized by the local government from time to time
and we had not been subject to any material fines or penalties
in relation to any material breach of applicable environmental,
health and safety laws or regulations that could have a material
adverse effect on our operation. For the year ended 31 December
2023, we had not lost any order from our customers due to
environmental, health and safety concerns. We believe that our
awareness of the environmental, health and safety issues and
dedication to their protection makes us a leader in this area from
an early stage.

Integrating environmental protection is a part of our operating
philosophy. Our technological improvements were made with a
view towards complying with or strengthening our environmental,
health and safety protection measures. Manufacturers that are
unable to meet the environmental, health and safety standards
of the local government and the downstream customers would
incur a higher cost for fines and remediation and might not be
competitive in the industry in the long run.
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The Group has set up the “Environmental Protection Administrative
System” to implement the discharge of the duties of the person in
charge and staff of every level and every department, and confirm
the disposal treatments and standards of sewage, waste gas and
solid waste. We have also set up the “Accountability System”
to enhance the safety and environment awareness of all our
employees and mitigate and root out any negligent acts, leading
employees to fulfil their responsibility with lofty professionalism
and to ensure the quality of work, so that a standardized
management can be implemented.

The Group attaches great importance to the corporate social
responsibilities, focusing on environmental protection, safety
and health, and continues to be committed to ensuring that
the business activities of the Group are in line with the relevant
environmental and safety supervisory requirements. We have
already obtained Quality Management System [1S0O9001,
Environmental Management System 1SO14001 and Occupational
Health Safety Management System GB/T 28001-2011 for our
management system.

Compliance with Related Laws and Regulations

The Group always pays attention to strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in all material aspects, setting
up and improving the existing administrative system, enhancing
daily operation and supervision, and adopting effective measures
to avoid and reduce risks and violation of rules. The following are
some of the primary laws and regulations applicable to the Group
in the PRC.

Laws on Work Safety

The Group has a comprehensive safety production management
system and detailed operation procedures in place. Control on
safety production is strengthened by adopting feasible preventive
measures. We ensure various safety production systems,
measures and responsibilities as well as the relevant contingency
plans are put in place. For further details of the applicable laws
and regulations and the Group’s measures, please refer to the
section headed “Safety Management” in the “Environment, Social
and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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The Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the Prevention
and Treatment of Water Pollution and the Law on the
Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste Pollution

Enhancing environmental awareness and achieving green
production management is not only the common opportunities and
challenges faced by enterprises, but also the foundation of their
ongoing operations. The Group strictly abides by the captioned
laws and regulations and adopts effective environmental
protection measures to minimize the impacts of our operations on
the environment.

Our production facilities have already been equipped with
pollution control equipment to control and record the gas
pollutants and the emission level of sewage and solid waste.
We have also set up a series of internal policies and plans
for environmental risks avoidance to ensure the compliance
with the applicable state, industrial and local standard laws,
regulations and policy requirements. We constantly strengthen
the development of clean production technologies to satisfy the
increasing standard of environmental protection. For further details
of the applicable laws and regulations and the Group’s measures,
please refer to the section headed “Environmental Protection” in
the “Environment, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.

The Regulations on the Control of Foreign Exchange

The exporting business of the Group is denominated and settled
in USD. Along with the constant promotion of internationalizing
RMB, we do not only closely monitor the fluctuation of foreign
currency, but also strictly comply with the regulations on the
control of foreign exchange in foreign exchange filing registration,
foreign exchange settlement, foreign exchange operating activities
and foreign exchange investing activities.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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The Foreign Trade Law

The Group has corresponding internal export business
management system and operation procedures in place, and
promptly conducts filing registration to export department. We
engage in trade activities that are in compliance with relevant
laws and abide by the trade order. In order to maintain fair
market competition, we do not engage in improper competition
behaviours, such as selling at an improperly low price, bid-rigging,
issuing false advertisement and bribery. For exporting, the
Group also seriously studies and strictly complies with the laws
and regulations of the export destination countries, such as the
anti-dumping law in India, product liability laws and regulations in
Germany and product safety and liability laws and regulations in
the United States of America.

The Labour Law

The Group developed and improved its existing internal
management system to safeguard the rights of its employees. The
Group stringently implements national protocols and standards on
labour safety and health and conducts labour safety and health
education for workers to prevent labour accidents and reduce
occupational hazards. For further details of the applicable laws
and regulations and the Group’s measures, please refer to the
section headed “Safety Management” in the “Environment, Social
and Governance Report” of this annual report.

Social Insurance and Housing Provident Funds

The Group complied with the PRC laws, rules and regulations,
including the Social Insurance Law, the Regulations on
Unemployment Insurance, the Regulations on Work Injury
Insurance and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund. We make contributions to social insurance in
full and on time including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group did not receive any penalty from
the relevant administrative department.
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In light of, including but not limited to, the above-mentioned
primary laws and regulations, our internal control department is
responsible for monitoring from time to time our compliance with
and abidance by the applicable laws and regulations and other
relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as supervising the
implementation of necessary measures. In addition, we plan to
provide our Directors, senior management and employees with
continuing training development programs and updates regarding
the relevant PRC laws and regulations on a regular basis to
proactively identify any concerns and issues relating to potential
non-compliance in order to reduce the Group's risk of deviating
from them.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships
with our major customers, established a strong customer base
and have become the key supplier to our major customers. We
have passed a number of stringent qualification and certification
processes required by our customers to establish our stable
customer base.

During the Review Year, we attended industry conferences to
solicit new potential customers and maintain relationships with
existing customers. To further enhance our business relationship
with our customers, our sales team visited our major customers
from time to time to conduct customer surveys to understand
their evolving needs and obtained feedback on the quality of our
products. We are dedicated to providing quality customer services
and after-sales services. We endeavour to supply our products to
our customers in a timely manner.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically on a
monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and specifications
of the products to be purchased, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, we were able to obtain
raw materials from our suppliers on terms and quality acceptable
to us and we had not experienced any material disruption to
the supply of any raw materials required for our production
or experienced any difficulty in sourcing alternative suppliers
for such raw materials. In addition, we believe the relationship
between us and our major suppliers has been and will continue to
be good and stable.

Employees: In addition to competitive salaries, we provide
employees with supplementary compensation benefits, such as
free shift dormitories, free shuttle bus transportation, and meal
allowance. In addition, we value our employees and provide them
with continuing education, on-the-job training and encourage their
career development through accumulating on-the-job experience.
For the employees of our subsidiaries that operate in the PRC,
we are required to make contributions to various government
sponsored employee benefit funds, including basic pension
insurance fund, unemployment, maternity, medical, work injury
insurance fund and housing provident fund in accordance with
applicable PRC laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there have been no
significant labour disputes or strikes at any of our production
facilities. Our current relationship with our employees and the
labour unions are good and are based on mutual support and
respect.

RISK FACTORS

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’'s businesses,
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects,
leading to a divergence from the expected or historical results.
Key risk factors affecting the Group are outlined below. In
dealing with these risk factors, the Group keeps in touch with our
stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.
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Global Economy and Macroeconomic Conditions

Any adverse change in the global economic downturn, geopolitical
tensions, the PRC’s economic, political and social conditions,
as well as governmental policies may affect our sales, which will
result in pressure on the prices, volume and margins achieved or
achievable in the future. A decline in demand or a shift to lower
value end products with a lower demand for our products resulting
from deteriorating economic condition may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In this regard, the Group will actively gain understanding of the
changes in domestic and overseas markets to promptly grasp
information of industries in the upper and lower stream in relation
to our products and adopt strategies to ensure steady growth in
our profits. We will maintain good cooperative relationships with
major clients by providing them with products highly functional
and of consistent quality. In addition, we will establish an enriched
product structure and portfolio to diversify the risk of concentration
of products. Our products are sold all over the world to avoid
risk of regional economy fluctuations. We keep developing new
customers to lower the dependence on one single customer.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group is mainly related to its exporting activities. The operation of
the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate.

In view of this, the Group resets the export price every month
or quarter to avoid the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation, and
concentrates purchase in China to lower the foreign exchange
risk. The Group will actively monitor the impact of change in
currency exchange rates on the Group and, while taking into
account the nature of its business, adopt measures based on
scientific identification and effective balance to control relevant
risk in order to avoid material loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group neither drew up
any hedging policy, nor adopted any hedging instruments.
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We Are Exposed to Risks Associated with Fluctuations in
Prices of Raw Materials and Supply

The prices of raw materials on which we depend may be affected
by a number of factors, including market supply and demand,
changes in PRC import duties, PRC and global economic
conditions and changes to the PRC or international environmental
and regulatory requirements. Any significant increases in the
cost of the raw materials may increase our cost of production
and negatively affect our profit margin and, more generally, our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
A reduction in, or lack of availability of, raw materials or
interruptions in the supply chain, may also impact our profitability
to the extent that we are required to pay higher prices for, or
are unable to secure adequate supplies of the necessary raw
materials.

In this regard, we choose our suppliers of raw materials based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
qualified suppliers. We purchase critical raw materials from
several suppliers to avoid possible risk of relying on one single
supplier. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically
on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and
specifications of products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. Furthermore, we attach importance to maintaining good
relationships with major suppliers to ensure we can secure
sufficient supply of raw materials of stable quality in a timely
manner and avoid any adverse effect of reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain. In
response to price changes of raw materials, we seek to adjust the
prices at which we sell our products to shift any increase in our
costs to our customers so as to maintain our profit margins.

Expansion into New Markets Presents Increased Risks

The competitive conditions and customer preferences of new
markets may be different from our existing markets. Customers in
these new markets might not be familiar with our brand and we
may need to build up brand awareness with greater effort than we
originally planned. We may find it more difficult in new market to
hire, train and retain qualified employees. This may have material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.
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In this regard, we will strengthen preliminary research and
commercial feasibility analysis in relation to new markets, increase
research and development of new products, technologies and
techniques and hire experienced staff to fulfil our development
plan for the future.

We Experience Seasonal Fluctuations

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our business and results
of operations. Sales of our products and our production activities
are generally slower during the first quarter of each year as a
result of the Chinese New Year holidays in the first quarter, where
many of the consumer product manufacturers stop production.
Furthermore, large quantity of herbicide is typically produced
ahead of the farming seasons for use during the farming seasons.
As a result, demand for agricultural chemical intermediates
such as ONT and OT, a raw material of certain herbicide, also
correspond to this seasonal trend. Failure to manage seasonality
in our business may cause our revenue and financial condition to
be adversely affected.

In this regard, we make reasonable arrangements for the
production and sales of products based on their respective
market demand to cope with our exposure to seasonal fluctuation.
For agricultural chemical intermediates such as ONT and OT,
we conduct meticulous analysis and research on the seasonal
demand for our products in various regions or countries and make
active moves in developing domestic and overseas markets to
mitigate the impact of seasonal factors. In addition, we carefully
monitor and control the fluctuation in our working capital arising
from seasonal movements of revenue so as to take timely
and effective action and provide our business with stable and
adequate cash for operations.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 22 to 28 of this annual report for details.

OUTLOOK

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 18 to 21 of this annual report for details.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the Reporting Period are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The highlight of results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years are set out on pages 7 to 8 of
this annual report. This highlight does not constitute part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue from the top
five customers of the Group accounted for approximately 37.0%
(2022: approximately 38.6%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the turnover attributable to its largest single customer accounted
for approximately 11.1% of its total revenue (2022: approximately
12.7%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from the
top five suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
47.6% (2022: approximately 37.2%) of its total purchases, and the
turnover attributable to its largest single supplier accounted for
approximately 18.1% of its total purchases (2022: approximately
16.4%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital in
issue) had interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or
suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 196 to 198.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB129.9 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2023 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on 15 December 2023)
Mr. ZHU Lin

Mr. YU Miao

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Thus, Mr. GE Yi, Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
and Mr. YU Miao will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #eREHLERA T

Directors’ Report

EEERE

i

rEBEZFHEREBEE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLt
FEHBNEHFBEHRE196EEF198H LA
ESmEER -

g
&
R
=
1
i

RZZF_=F+=-A=+—8  A2FHEHIKRH
BHEBARE12996ETT °

%

TIER Rt

ARARER T _=F+-_A=1+—RZRTE
KR EAC B RO FBER A M HRRM E26 -

5=
BE_Z-=F+-A=+—HLEFE  E4XFRH
HEf - EHMT :

HITES

XCEAE

HEXE

R+

EHITES !

FONTAINE Alain Vincentst 4
EERSE
BUFHTES:

AR ALE (R=ZFZ=
KRG E

FarfkAE
R Z L (R=F ==

—F+ _HTHAFHE)

—F+ AT LAREE)

BEBEAKERABNF16.19 B ZHs2z—EF
(NEESEBWIEA=NEE - ARKELM AR
D—ZHEB) HwmRRT  TEEREFIREE
iﬁAFE HIf MEESERPE-FHESR
—K o HIit © XHE - FONTAINE Alain Vincent
EERTHREEBRERERRBF RS HMRT -
WHEERKBEEEETRES -



Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment. Accordingly, Ms. ZHANG
Feiyan will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer herself for re-election as a Director.

A circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM will be despatched to the Shareholders in
due course.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND/OR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
of information of Directors and/or senior management of the
Company subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023 are set out
below:

Name of Directors/Senior Management

B SREEESR

Details of Change
SEBHFE
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Ms. ZHANG Nan

Ceased to act as the director of Tsaker Hong Kong with effect from

October 2023, and appointed as a director of Tsaker Singapore with effect

from October 2023.

BT _=—FTABRTHBECHREANES  RE-ZT_=_F1+ABREE¥Y

Ceased to act as the director of Tsaker Singapore with effect from October

2023, and was appointed as an Authorized Representative and Process

SRR+

BN HIE S
Mr. BAI Kun

Agent of the Company on 15 December 2023.
BELE B-Z_=F+ARTHEEELR

CRMMEMES  RE-_F-_=Ff+t_-At+H

FEEZRE/ARRRIRERRIEREFREA

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Ceased to be the Chairman of Clover Leaf Capital Corp.

(a Canadian

capital pool company listed on the TSX Ventures Exchange in Canada,
stock code: CLVR.P) with effect from October 2023.

FONTAINE Alain Vincentst 4

EE

In respect of the change in emoluments of the Directors, please
refer to note 8 to financial statements of this annual report.

Saved as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any other changes which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 115 to 120 of this annual
report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration
exceeding three years or which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER IN MAJOR TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, save for the Director’s
service contracts and letters of appointment entered into between
the Company and the respective Directors, (i) no contracts of
significance (including contracts of significance for the provision
of services) had been entered into between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
(ii) none of the Directors and their connected entities (as defined
in the Companies Ordinance) either directly or indirectly, have a
material interest in any transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial
year to which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party which is material to
the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the businesses of the Company were entered into or
existed.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, with regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the Reporting Period are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Group are set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
are set out as follows:
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(i) Interest in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the (i) RAQXTIRDRAEBROHIES

Company
Approximate
Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®
EEE8B EEME BEEZBERHEAO RESAFD L@
GE Vi Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.17%
XX RRAIEHEE S (HFE)®
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)® 39.50%
required to be disclosed under section
317 of the SFO/Interest of children
under 18/Interest of spouse
BEFEHF KB BRMNEITIE (FE)@
BYRBERGREM 2 ER
18BRA T F s/ BB
PAN Deyuan Beneficial owner 45,674,000 (L) 4.51%
EEIR EnEBA (4 %)
Notes: Wi
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [17R | 8RB P HITE -
(2) As at 31 December 2023, the total number of issued (2) RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—0  BE
Shares was 1,012,597,500 Shares. f&1n 2 48 A1,012,597,500/% °
(3) These Shares represent Shares held by Cavalli which (3) ZER D ACavallifta » MCavalliB
is wholly-owned by Mr. GE Yi, and Mr. GE Yi is deemed RREE2EHRS BB EESF RS
to be interested in the same pursuant to the SFO. BIED - XEEEEIEN Cavallidh #

s -
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On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting
right transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited. Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the
voting rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
As such, Mr. GE Yi is deemed to be interested in
133,337,750 Shares (long position) which each of Hero
Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited
and Star Path Ventures Limited is interested in (i.e.,
in aggregate 400,013,250 Shares) as at 31 December
2023 pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

Mr. GE Vi, as the spouse of Ms. QI Lin, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares which Ms. QI Lin is interested
or deemed to be interested in under the SFO. For
details of Ms. Ql’s interests, please refer to notes 3, 4
and 5 in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interest and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” of the Director’s Report in this annual report.

Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is a
child under the age of 18 of Mr. GE Yi. Mr. GE Yi is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which each of
Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is interested
in or deemed to be interested in under the SFO. For
details of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui’s
interests, please refer to notes 6, 7, 8 and 9 in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” of the
Director’s Report in this annual report.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

RZE—AFRAZ+HA » XEE
IRAIIR AR AR - HEERAERA
AR ERBIRAR ARG R IREEE
R o RBERREEEZE - HRAIE
BRAF - BAEERERAFKERE
BERARSERBRNORAED EE
FROTE - Bl - REEHF KRR
BPIEIT7IE - RCEERRBRHERE
KERANR - AEERERAGLRER
BIEAERAFRSEEREE-ZT _=F1+
ZA=+—H%EA#E®N133,337,750
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(ii) Interest in the Associated Corporations of the
Company

Directors’ Report
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(i) RAEDQTEEEE RS

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of associated Number of the associated
Name of Director corporations Nature of interest Shares held corporations
1EAEEE B R ER
ExEE LB BB EEME BFERGHE BOBEAE
PAN Deyuan Hebei Tsaker New Materials Beneficial owner 2,521,008 3.97%
Technology Company Limited*
AER AR R B R R AR A A EREEA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the BREXPHBEEN  R_EB_=F+_-A=+—

Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No arrangement has been made by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries for any Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate during the year ended and as at
31 December 2023, and no rights to any share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate were
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised during
the Review Year.

- ERB

* For identification purpose only
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register of the
Company maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report
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FERRRRORAEBROHNERRXR

R-ZZE-_=ZF+=-A=+—H REARAEEHN
M THAL(THFEERARAZHTHRAE)R
RARIBRGHAERG P RERBE(ESFRBEEK
P EXVEF2 KR35 EBAR AR R EL 2 EL RN
RARIRIB(GESA RS KD ) E336IKBETETZ
TRtz gmsAs

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®
REREZE B RERME BFEEBERHAO REMABT DL
Cavalli Beneficial owner 138,337,750 (L) 13.17%
E=BEBA (478)
Ql Lin Interest of spouse 133,337,750 (L)® 13.17%
=370 i B (FR)®
Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)@ 13.17%
REAEFEE R (FFE)@®
Interest of children under 18 266,675,500 (L)® 26.34%
AR 18R F XA 2 (HFR)®
GE Chengyu Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)©® 13.17%
XEE RRAEFEE R (iFE)®
GE Chenghui Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L) 13.17%
X R R EE R (FR)™
Hero Time Corporate Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.17%
Management Pte. Ltd. NEEHEERER (FE)®
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Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held™ shareholding®

REERE B EnttE HEZREREED REMOBT DL

Star Path Corporate Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.17%
Management Pte. Ltd. 1B E B R A (FFAE)©®

Hero Time Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 183.17%
KRB ER DA EREAA (F&)

Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)1 39.50%

required to be disclosed under section
317 of the SFO

RIRFE 75 MBI P15 317 (& (F&) o
BTHREE 2 R EA T P 2 s

Star Path Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 183.17%
EFeIRBRAT E=BA (&)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L) 39.50%

required to be disclosed under section
317 of the SFO

RIEEBS R EGRAIE317 15 (gFE)
BTWE 2N A M P s

Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 183.17%
AR ERERA A EREAA (F&)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)1 39.50%

required to be disclosed under section
317 of the SFO

RIRFE 75 MBI P58 317 (& (FE)
BTHREE 2 IR AT P 2 s

(1) The letter “L" denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [1F 2 |5 R H R LT A -

(2) As at 31 December 2023, the total number of issued  (2) RZBEZZ=ZF+=-A=+—8 B&TERHZ
Shares was 1,012,597,500 Shares. ##051,012,597,500% °

(3) Ms. QI Lin, as the spouse of Mr. GE Yi, is deemed to  (3) BIEFFRBAEEM X XEEZBRESEML

be interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Mr. GE THBARR S EE AR EE AR
Yi is interested or deemed to be interested in under the #9133,337, 7508 IR (D P B RS -
SFO.
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Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Ms.
QI Lin, and Ms. QI Lin is deemed to be interested in
the 133,337,750 Shares which Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is
a child under the age of 18 of Ms. QI Lin. Mr. GE
Chengyu holds all shares in Hero Time Ventures
Limited through his wholly-owned company Hero
Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Ms. GE
Chenghui holds all shares in Star Path Ventures Limited
through her wholly-owned company Star Path Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and
Ms. GE Chenghui is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star
Path Ventures Limited, respectively. As such, Ms. QI Lin
is deemed to be interested in the 133,337,750 Shares
owned by each of Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star
Path Ventures Limited (i.e., in aggregate 266,675,500
Shares).

Hero Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. holds 100%
interest in Hero Time Ventures Limited, and Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by
Mr. GE Chengyu. Hence, Mr. GE Chengyu is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Hero Time
Ventures Limited is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Star Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. holds 100%
interest in Star Path Ventures Limited, and Star Path
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by
Ms. GE Chenghui. Hence, Ms. GE Chenghui is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Star Path
Ventures Limited is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Hero Time Ventures Limited is wholly-owned by Hero
Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Hero Time
Ventures Limited is interested in under the SFO.

(4)
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HAEZERERAFBENRLT2EES - HUR
BEAFRBAEGRY  BWMLTWIRARBEEE
BABERAGEAEEZA 133,337,750 R H
AR -

RBEEERRBELLTEGRERZLRB
18 FR - RBEEEFBREEEEN
MiE A &Hero Time Corporate Management
Pte. Ltd. A KNIERENIRBR A RN EK
> MEXABELXLTREBREERENNE
‘A A]Star Path Corporate Management Pte.
Ltd. HBEWRNERAIRBR ARSI
KBEFXERRBIBEL LTS BHE RRIELR A
RERDBIRERBRER A AFANKRS R
BmAEER - Bt - WML TR RRER AR
ERRAFNUREZERERAASEEAD
133,337,750 i fn (BN #t5+266,675,500 A A%
) A -

Hero Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd.
FAERAIKRERDFI100% &% - fiHero
Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. FiX
WMERELERA  BRBEESKAEED -
KBMELERR RN ERBRBRARER R
RN S M

Star Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd.
HEERAKRERAF100%K#E - MStar
Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. X
WMELTEERER  BHRBESKAEED -
XBBLZLTHBARREGBRBERARERR
HEOBROFER R -

R AR AR AFHEHero Time Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. 2&#E ' RBE
BENHEKD - Hero Time Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd.#18 BRIER AR AR
NRIBEBERA 133,337,750 & 15 A % B

S o

B
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(10)

(11)

(12)

Star Path Ventures Limited is wholly-owned by Star
Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Star Path
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Star Path
Ventures Limited is interested in under the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting right
transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the voting
rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited
in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi. Hence,
Hero Time Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested
in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the sum
of Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited are interested
in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting right
transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the voting
rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited
in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi. Hence,
Star Path Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested
in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the sum of
Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited
and Hero Time Ventures Limited are interested in,
pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting
right transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited. Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the
voting rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
Hence, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is deemed to be
interested in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being
the sum of Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Hero Time Ventures
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited are interested
in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& &R BR A 7]
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(10)
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(12)
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
have not been aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would be required to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the
register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE SCHEME

The Group did not have any share scheme for the year ended 31
December 2023.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company or subsisted as at the end of the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company for the
Review Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, as the Board considered
that the price of the Company’s Shares did not reflect their
intrinsic value, and the share repurchase program could reflect
the Board’s confidence in the Company’s development prospects,
thus the Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange a total
number of 18,549,500 Shares at a total consideration (before
deduction of expenses) of HK$21,473,740. The repurchased
2,664,000 Shares and 15,885,500 Shares were subsequently
cancelled by the Company on 27 July 2023 and 6 February 2024,
respectively.
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Details of the repurchase are as follows: BEFBEET
Number of Total consideration
Shares Highest purchase Lowest purchase (before deduction of
Month repurchased price per Share price per Share expenses)
HK$ HKS$ HK$
=Rv) EEERAEE BREESBEE BREEBEE HBAE (MBRBAZAT)
BT BT BT
April 2023 62,000 1.39 1.38 85,830
—T-=FmMA
May 2023 449,000 1.40 1.28 603,325
—E-=FTA
June 2023 905,000 1.29 1.23 1,136,510
ZE-=FA
July 2023 1,247,500 1.35 1.28 1,634,785
—ECF+R
August 2023 2,099,500 1.19 1.10 2,389,665
—ZT==%)\R
September 2023 5,923,000 1.22 1.12 6,804,285
—ETZ=FNA
October 2023 5,097,000 1.17 1.06 5,829,720
ZEZ=F+H
November 2023 376,000 1.12 1.06 405,735
—EZ=F+—H
December 2023 2,390,000 1.12 1.04 2,583,885
—ZE-=F+=A
Total: 18,549,500 21,473,740
a5t

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its KR EXPIREEI - ARARSHEEMME QM E
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, redeemed or cancelled any of REE-Z-_=F+_A=+—HIFEABE -
the Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31 December H& ~ BESFHARA FHES

2023.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands that would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company'’s securities.

UNDERTAKINGS OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. GE Yi and Cavalli had entered into the Deed of Non-
competition in favour of our Company (for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of each of its subsidiaries), under which Mr. GE
Yi and Cavalli had undertaken to our Company that they will not,
and will procure that none of their respective associates (other
than members of our Group) will, directly or indirectly (including
through anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement) or as principal or agent, either on any
of their own account or with each other or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company or through any entities
(except in or through any members of our Group):

. carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, with
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with
our business, whether as a Shareholder, Director, senior
officer, partner, agent, lender, employee, consultant or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise; and

o take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may
interfere with or disrupt our business (as defined in the
Prospectus) including, but not limited to, solicitation of any
of the then current customers, suppliers or employees from
any members of our Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the Deed of Non-
competition.
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In 2023, Mr. GE Yi personally controlled more than 30% of the
voting rights of the Company’s Shares, so he was still regarded
as a controlling shareholder and subject to the Deed of Non-
competition.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from Mr. GE Yi
in respect of his compliance during the Reporting Period with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
issued to the Company in 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the
Reporting Period based on data and the confirmation provided or
given by Mr. GE Yi and are satisfied that he had complied with the
Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2023, no Directors or any of their associates
had any interests in any business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the Review Year, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, and details of which are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Such related party transactions fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (fully
exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure and
other requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has not
been involved in any material litigation or arbitration. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material litigation or claim
pending or threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred
or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. The Group has
taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout
the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
Every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company is therefore
entitled to be indemnified subject to the Company Law or other
relevant regulations for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2023 for the benefit of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
section headed “Report of Corporate Governance” on pages 150
to 182 of this annual report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued Shares, being the minimum percentage of public float
as prescribed by the Stock Exchange and under the Listing Rules,
was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as at the date of this annual report.

DONATION

Please refer to the section headed “CARING FOR COMMUNITY
AND TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY” in the “Environment,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report for further
details.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Ernst & Young has audited
the accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young is required to retire in the forthcoming AGM, and
is eligible and offers itself for re-election. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the AGM.

There has been no change in the Company’s auditor in the
preceding three years.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 10 May
2024 to Thursday, 16 May 2024, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend the AGM, during which period no share transfers will
be registered. To be eligible to attend the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 9 May 2024.
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The Register of Members will also be closed from Wednesday,
22 May 2024 to Monday, 27 May 2024, both days inclusive, in
order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive
the final dividend, during which period no share transfers will be
registered. To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 May 2024.

By order of the Board

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi

Beijing, the PRC, 18 March 2024
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Report of Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents the corporate governance report of
the Company for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) under Appendix C1 (previously Appendix 14) to the Listing
Rules as its own corporate governance code. The Company has
been in compliance with all applicable code provisions under
the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period, except for code
provision C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to ensure the
compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. The Board has delegated to
the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

The board is responsible for the management of the Company and
is accountable to the Shareholders for their entrusted assets and
resources.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of liability arising from legal action against its Directors,
and will conduct annual review on such insurance cover.
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Board Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, as set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Kun (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Ms. ZHANG Nan

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on 15 December 2023)
Mr. ZHU Lin

Mr. YU Miao

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan (Appointed on 15 December 2023)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan, who was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director during the the Reporting Period, had obtained
the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 7
December 2023, and she has confirmed that she understood her
obligations as a Director.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the corporate governance code provision requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to
the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are
also provided with regular updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the company secretary of the
Company update and provide the Directors with written training
materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.
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A summary of training received by the Directors for the Reporting
Period according to the records provided by the Directors is as

follows:
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Nature of Continuous
Professional Development

Name of Directors EEHE BESERRREMHE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. GE Yi XxEE B, C

Mr. BAI Kun BE%E A B C

Ms. Zhang Nan R+ B C

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentst 4 A B, C

Mr. PAN Deyuan EERE B

Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned AL E (RZF=Z=FF+=H

on 15 December 2023) + B HEFHE) B

Mr. ZHU Lin KRR AE A, B, C

Mr. YU Miao TS B

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan (Appointed on ERBEL LT (R=ZF=-=F+=4H

15 December 2023) 1 HHEEE) B, C

Notes: et -

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or A HERSNER 8@k, AmBR,HE
briefings wWeE

B: reading materials on various topics, including corporate B: BHEZEEBIZEENOMH  ZEBEBLEE
governance matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, A CEERBERE  EWRAREMEREE
Listing Rules and other relevant laws Al

©: participating in training provided by law/accounting firms and ~ C: SNEM SRR E - BAAAE

that relating to the business of the Company

BHBHE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company deviates from the code provision C.2.1
because Mr. GE Yi performs both the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Since Mr. GE
Yi has been with the Group for many years, he has a thorough
understanding in our business, management, customers and
products. With his extensive experience in business operation and
management, the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the
same person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates effective implementation and execution
of our business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company.

Under the leadership of Mr. GE Yi, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between the Board and the management of the Company. To
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, the Board shall nevertheless review the effectiveness
of the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in
light of prevailing circumstances.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. GE Yi, being the executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 15 June 2021, which is subject to renewal upon mutual
agreement.

Mr. BAI Kun, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 23 August 2022, which is subject to renewal upon
mutual agreement.
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Ms. ZHANG Nan, being the executive Director, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 10 January 2022, which is subject to renewal
upon mutual agreement.

Mr. PAN Deyuan, being the non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 25 November 2022, which is subject to
renewal upon mutual agreement.

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, being the non-executive Director,
and Mr. ZHU Lin and Mr. YU Miao, being the independent non-
executive Directors, have entered into letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15 June
2021, renewable upon mutual agreement.

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan, being the independent non-executive
Director, has entered into letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 15 December 2023,
renewable upon mutual agreement.

No Director has entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible
for re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Therefore, Mr. GE Yi, Mr. FONTAINE
Alain Vincent and Mr. YU Miao will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the Director at the
forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition will hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.
Therefore, Ms. ZHANG Feiyan will retire and, being eligible, will
offer herself for re-election as the Director at the forthcoming
AGM.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The
agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for active participation in the Board meetings
or Board Committee meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of
the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make
their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes
of meetings shall be kept by the company secretary with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views expressed
by the Directors. Draft minutes and final versions of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the
Directors for comments and record within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, six Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held, and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

EREBRE

RBERR - EFEHBITNRESEEH
BRBEFEAE  ERNEFHFEBERAHNTR

T
IN

Meeting Attended/
Number of Board

Meeting Attended/
Number of General

meetings meetings

Directors B2 HESE EEEX8 HESEBRRAGRH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE i Xk 6/6 11
Mr. BAI Kun BESE 6/6 11
Ms. ZHANG Nan RigLt 6/6 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentft 4 6/6 11
Mr. PAN Deyuan EERLE 6/6 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (Resigned on  faIEREEE (R -E - =4

15 December 2023) +ZA+AEAFHE) 6/6 1/1
Mr. ZHU Lin KFRAE 6/6 11
Mr. YU Miao TaEE 6/6 11
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan( RRF LT N/A N/A

Note:

(1) Ms. ZHANG Feiyan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 15 December 2023 and no Board
meeting had been held after her appointment. She was
appointed after the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 10 May 2023.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she complied with the Model
Code throughout the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also adopted its own
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model
Code for the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to access and
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors, their corporate governance
duties include:

(a) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance and to make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board on
matters;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report; and

(f) to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.
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MISSIONS, VALUES AND STRATEGIES OF THE
COMPANY AND CORPORATE CULTURE

To ensure the missions, values and strategies of the Company
are in line with its corporate culture, the Board has formulated the
Statement on Missions, Values and Strategies of the Company.
The Statement has set out the vision and values of the Company,
as well as various strategies adopted for the realization of its
missions and values.

PURPOSE

It is the Company’s vision to become a world-renowned
manufacturer of fine chemicals, including battery materials, dye
and agricultural chemical intermediates, pigment intermediates
and new materials etc.

VALUE

Philosophy

The Company is well-versed in chemistry and understands the
essence of chemistry.

Support

Mutual support with partners — the Company is a trustworthy
partner, which is where the value of the Company’s brand and
customers lies. The Company and its customers are in mutual
reliance.

Vision

The Company adds color to the world.

Knowledge

The Company has professional knowledge and constantly
innovates technology.

Steadfast

The Company’s pursuit of technical perfection never ceases.

Responsibility

The Company will always insist on changing the world and
human life with green technology, focusing on people and the
environment.
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STRATEGY

The Company aims to realize its purpose and value through the
following strategies:

Providing a full range of solutions to meet the development
needs of the chemical industry in the future

Continuing to invest in the innovation and development of
green technology

Successfully expanding and strengthening its influence in
China and other overseas markets

The Company is committed to fostering a work culture that
encourages innovation, experimentation, excellence and
sustainability:

Offering employees training opportunities from internal or
external management, technology, supervision and other
consultants:

(1) Encouraging employees to participate in external
training on creativity, corporate leadership and
management.

(2) Hosting internal cultural events to achieve shared
strategic goals and live out the Company’s values,
mission and vision.

Long-term sustainable development:

The Company has always insisted on changing the
world and human life with green technology focusing on
people and the environment. The Company continues
to invest in the innovation and development of green
technology, promote “green production”, and reduce
emissions generated during the production process.
Through continuous equipment upgrades and technology
optimization, the Company will continue to explore feasible
emission reduction measures to reduce the impact on our
environment.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Board has reviewed the Anti-Corruption Policy in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2023, and is of the view that the
current Anti-Corruption Policy has been effectively implemented.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND SYSTEM

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Company’s
whistleblowing policy and system in respect of the year ended
31 December 2023, and are of the view that the current
Whistleblowing Policy has been effectively implemented.

POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT ADVICE AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board had formulated and adopted the Policy on Obtaining
Independent Advice and Recommendations (the “Policy”),
reflecting the Company’s commitment to high corporate
governance standard, and making good corporate governance as
an essential component of our corporate culture. According to the
Policy, a summary of the mechanism for ensuring the Board can
obtain independent view and input is set out below:

° When making decisions in furtherance of performing his/her
Director duties, a Director can seek independent advice,
views and recommendations which he/she considers
necessary for the purpose of performing his/her duties and
making independent judgment. Relevant expenses incurred
will be borne by the Company (the “Mechanism”).

° In respect of seeking independent professional advice,
Directors should communicate with the Chief Financial
Officer and raise questions, enquiries, concerns or
specific opinions, if any. Subsequently, the Chief Financial
Officer will contact professional advisors of the Company
(including solicitors, accountants, external auditors
and internal control advisors) or other independent
professionals in order to obtain independent professional
advice within a reasonable timeframe.

° Any recommendation obtained through the Mechanism
should be properly recorded and provided to other
Directors of the Board.
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° The Board can have full access to all information provided
by senior management of the Company which the relevant
Board member considers appropriate for the purpose of
performing his/her duties.

o The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of the Policy on Obtaining Independent Advice and
Recommendations annually.

The Board has reviewed the Policy on Obtaining Independent
Advice and Recommendations in respect of the year ended 31
December 2023, and is of the view that such policy has been
effectively implemented.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
ZHU Lin (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (resigned
on 15 December 2023), Mr. YU Miao and Ms. ZHANG Feiyan
(appointed on 15 December 2023), all of which are independent
non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

1. to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
deal with any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

2. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if the prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

3. in reviewing these reports mentioned above before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the Group’s going concern assumption and any
qualifications;
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(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

4. to review the Company'’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to audit any significant
connected transaction, so as to ensure that management
has performed its duty to establish an effective internal
control system;

58 to discuss the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

6. to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

7. to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.,
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company;

8. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

9. to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for inspection.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a total of 2
meetings to discuss and consider the following:

° it reviewed the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2022 and the auditor’'s report prepared by the external
auditor on accounting matters and the major findings
during the audit;

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

ok

PRl R

PN
E

il
iy
ik

(v)

LA “ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ’]im%ﬁﬁ‘l&
HE

(vi) =&

7S

W o
H

4 BHARAGBBER  NHEERERE
BEG  WEARMER SEITEY - BRE
A TR RS AR R R AR

5 HEREImAREENAMEERR - 7
4 EREERITREEZELARNELS - &
WAREBIEADRES A 5 E B
FTEHNER BIEENEBRIERH - N
RETHEZNEIRELEHEAERSD
R

6. BERBAARRNEEEBBRRER
YREESRHES

7. FIERBRERRERLS  FEEKEMERF]
BAEKRE (MEFREER) LREREEZK
FRAAEBEZZESREEYTMATREBRA
AN TEEEMBEE

8. R REREERSRERABNEIIREF
BEXLRR ARREETERREERTE
TENBEREESR &

?ﬁ%*/ ST RV B R b

EE B E B €0 E AT R AR B Ak
AIHER] o

RHEHA  BEREESHBITMAEZEZED
EUAFmMEERATAR

i3

. ERARBAREMBRARARBE-Z -
TZA=+—RLEFRFENDFREE - AU
EARINEZBEM A S EERERBETH
BERBEB RN ZEE RS

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE K&

163



164

it reviewed the interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the period ended 30 June 2023; and

it reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function), risk management system and
procedures, effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function performed by the Audit & Supervision Department
and the re-appointment of external auditor. The Board
did not have separate opinion on any recommendation
and suggestion by the Audit Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment, retirement or removal of external
auditor.

The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the
meetings is set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/
Required attendance

Name of members EEME EHERE  EHERE
Mr. ZHU Lin RFEE 2/2
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung™ Al RR B SEAEM 2/2
Mr. YU Miao FaEAE 2/2
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan® BRI L@ N/A

TEA

Notes:

Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung ceased to be a member of the
Audit Committee with effect from 15 December 2023.

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee on 15 December 2023 and no Audit Committee
meeting had been held after her appointment.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.

GE Yi

(chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (resigned on 15

December 2023), Mr. ZHU Lin and Ms. ZHANG Feiyan (appointed
on 15 December 2023), of which Mr. GE Yi is an executive
Director, Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung is a former independent
non-executive Director, Mr. ZHU Lin and Ms. ZHANG Feiyan are
independent non-executive Directors.
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The main duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee RHZZEGHEZREWT

are as follows:

to analyse the standards and procedures for selection
of Directors and senior management appointed by
the Board; review the structure, size, composition and
diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated
for directorship. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Committee shall consider individuals on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually;

to assess and review the candidates for director and senior
management to be potentially appointed by the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into the Company’s corporate strategy and
the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future; and

to examine the assessment standards for Directors and
senior management appointed by the Board, conduct the
relevant assessments and make recommendations to the
Board.
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The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ NOMINATION CRITERIA AND
PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee has also followed certain selection
criteria and nomination procedures in relation to new appointments
and re-appointments of Directors. The selection criteria for
assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her educational
background and professional qualifications, experiences in the
industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions
to diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy.

In the case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee would take into account factors such as contribution
from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate is appointed
for the position of independent non-executive Director, the
Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence
with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules. In
appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first identify potential candidates. After the Nomination
Committee evaluated the candidates based on the selection
criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or more
qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board
will determine and agree on a preferred candidate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversity of Board composition
has many benefits to the performance of the Company. As
such, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure in designing the Board’'s composition, board diversity
will be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is summarized
as follows:
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PURPOSE: Aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

POLICY STATEMENT: With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES: (1) the recruitment and selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; (2) the Nomination Committee will make
discussion annually, and, where necessary, make consensus on
measurable objectives for achieving board diversity. It will provide
its recommendation to the Board for adoption, which includes
at least one of the Directors having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and at least one Director having intensive experience
of the industry on which the business of the Group is engaged in;
(8) final decision will be made based on objective criteria and the
contribution to be brought by the selected candidate to the Board,
taking into consideration of the Company’s corporate strategies
and business operation; (4) the Board shall have at least one
Director of a different gender. Such Director shall possess the
skills, experience and talent necessary for the operation of the
Company; and (5) to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will recommend potential candidates for
the Board so as to realize gender diversity.

REVIEW POLICY: The Board will review this policy at least once a
year to ensure the effectiveness of this policy which is in line with
its missions.

The Board has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2023, is of the view that such policy
has been effectively implemented.
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During the Review Year,
proposals on the appointment of new independent non-executive
Director and the re-appointment of incumbent Directors, the
Nomination Committee and the Board had fully considered the
measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy and assessed

when considering and approving

the background and experience of candidates that can bring
to the Board diverse perspectives and contributions to board
diversity. The Company believes that these measurable objectives
have been basically achieved.

GENDER DIVERSITY

The Board is comprised of eight Directors,
Directors and two female Directors. The Company believes that
the gender diversity of the Board has been basically achieved.
The Company will also be committed to promoting gender

including six male

diversity when suitable candidates are identified.

To achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the Nomination
Committee will recommend potential candidates for the Board
so as to realize gender diversify. Specifically, when selecting
potential candidates for the Board, the Nomination Committee and
the Board will, inter alia, (i) consider the current ability, diversity
and representation level of different gender in the Board and
senior management when making recommendation on nominees
and the succession plan of the Board and senior management;
(ii) take reference to the employment practical codes published
by Hong Kong Equal Opportunities Commission and the manuals
(if applicable) published by All-China Federation of Trade Unions
from time to time, so as to consider the standards in promoting
diversity.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness and voluntariness
in the recruitment procedures, and does not implement any
restriction on gender, ethnicity, nationality and territory. As at
31 December 2023, the employee indicator, including senior
management, of the Group is set out below:
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As at 31 December 2023

R=B==F+=A=+—H
Number of employee Percentage
Indicator B EBEAH EEESL
Male employee BHET 1,454 70.7%
Female employee ZHEET 604 29.3%
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The Company considers that gender diversity is achieved in its
workforce generally. The Group encourages gender diversity in
office, and strives to increase the proportion of female employee
at different levels including through promoting such an aim during
recruitment.

To achieve diversity in our employee team, the Group has
implemented appropriate recruitment and selection procedures
so as to consider diversified range of candidates. The Group has
also established the talent management and training programme
which provides career development guidance and promotion
opportunities, aiming to create an employee team possessing a
wide range of diversified skills and extensive experience.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are held by the same person, and believes
that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our
business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company;

&5 the Board Diversity Policy; and
4. to consider and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the appointment of a new independent

non-executive Director.

The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the
meeting is set out in the following table:

Report of Corporate Governance

EREBRE

ARARRE LEBDIREBERIER S T - A
SESHETESHNERZ T - TRARES
EREMBTIHLY - BIEEBERIEBRER
HEE -

Z%E%II%ET*TEE%TETK AEBCEEREE
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—RREEZEE®

1. BEEGEE - AERAEK (BEHE - A
HANLEER)
2. J& Ko 1T B4R EL P B B /B [R) — A H& R RO B

f C RAMEBRLAR - ARESARFZ
BRERBE B XEBRERRITEBRRE
KRG BRRARREBI R RER

3. EEERESTTEEE K

4. ERINEFGERLTAENBULIFNTE

=
BERAZEGNBHEZSSENBERINTR

Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members EEHE EHERE,EHERE
Mr. GE Yi XREE 1/1
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung™ fAIRBR S ED 1/1
Mr. ZHU Lin 5& R 11
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan® RHFELZT@ NA

N3 A
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Notes:

(1) Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung ceased to be a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 15 December 2023.

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan was appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on 15 December 2023 and no
Nomination Committee meeting had been held after her
appointment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. YU Miao (chairman), Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung (resigned
on 15 December 2023), Mr. ZHU Lin and Ms. ZHANG Feiyan
(appointed on 15 December 2023), all of which are independent
non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy according to standards including
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities concerned, and employment terms of
other positions within the Company and its subsidiaries;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

B8 to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors;
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(Y, to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibility and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

8. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

9. to review and/or approve matters relating to the share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the 2023 and 2024 remuneration packages and policies of
Directors and senior management;

2. the employee remuneration policies and structure of the
Group; and
B8 to consider and make recommendation to the Board

in respect of the remuneration of a new independent
non-executive Director.
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The attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings is set out in the following table:
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Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members ZEMS EHERE S EHERE
Mr. YU Miao FaEAE 1/1
Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung IR AR ED 1/1
Mr. ZHU Lin KREE 1/
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan® SR L@ NA

TEA

Notes:

(1) Mr. HO Kenneth Kai Chung ceased to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 15 December 2023.

(2) Ms. ZHANG Feiyan was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 15 December 2023 and no
Remuneration Committee meeting had been held after her
appointment.

ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee consists of six members, namely Ms.
DUAN Weihua (chairman of the committee, chief development
officer of the Group), Mr. DUAN Weidong (general manager of
the battery materials division), Mr. LIU Wei (general manager
of the pigment and new material division), Mr. YANG Fuguang
(administrative director of Dongguang manufacturing base),
Mr. ZHANG Jiye (production director of Tsaker Dongao) and
Mr. SHI Bingfeng (production director of Tsaker Huayu). all of
which are management members of the Company with relevant
environmental, social and governance knowledge and experience.

The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee are as
follows:

1. to identify related issues that have a significant impact
on the Group’s operations and/or the interests of other
important stakeholders in relation to environmental, social
and governance aspects;

2. to provide guidance for and review the Group’s

environmental, social and governance vision, goals and
strategies, and make recommendations to the Board to
approve relevant environmental, social and governance
initiatives;
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10.

to monitor and review emerging environmental, social and
governance trends and issues, provide guidance for the
development of the Group’s environmental, social and
governance vision based on relevant circumstances, and
provide advisory opinions on management of the current
and emerging issues that affect Group’s environmental,
social and governance;

to review and adopt risk assessment of the Group’s impact
on health, safety, environment and society;

to set the Group’s environmental, social and governance
goals, indicators, key performance indicators and
measures, monitor the implementation of relevant
measures, and evaluate the effectiveness of relevant
measures;

to adopt and update the policies on production safety,
environmental protection, social responsibility management
and corporate governance of the Group when necessary;

to assist the Board in preparing the annual environmental,
social and governance report in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(set forth in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules) for its
consideration, approval and disclosure;

to review and monitor the Group’s environmental,
social and governance policies and practices to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and evaluate the performance and terms of
reference of the committee to ensure that the committee
operate at optimal efficacy and recommend changes that it
deems appropriate for the approval of the Board; and

other matters authorized by the Board related to health,
safety, environment, social responsibility and corporate
governance.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of senior management of the Company
(including three Directors, whose biographies are set out on
pages 115 and 116 of this annual report) during the Reporting
Period falls under the following bands:

MEER (ARY)

Band of remuneration (RMB)
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RBERR  ARFNEREEE (REZRESE
BEZBEHNAERFE1ISMI16EH) NS ER
HHT

Number of individuals

A

Over 1,500,000
1,000,001 to 1,500,000
0 to 1,000,000

1,500,0007T A £

07C%1,000,0007T

1,000,0017C% 1,500,000

Further particulars of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 189 to 191 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
with the assistance of the Audit Committee at least annually.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
regulatory and corporate governance role in the Group's financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
as well as financial and internal audit functions. Risk management
and internal control systems can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or losses. They
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to
meet business objectives.

Audit & supervision department

The Group has established an Audit & Supervision Department
(formerly known as Internal Audit Department), whereby such
department plays an important role in monitoring the internal
governance of the Group and performs internal audit function.
The major responsibilities of the Audit & Supervision Department
include standardizing and reviewing operating risks, financial
positions and internal control of the Group, as well as conducting
regular and comprehensive audits of all subsidiaries and affiliates
of the Group. The Audit & Supervision Department reports to the
Audit Committee at its annual meeting in respect of the adequacy
and effectiveness of its work in the previous year and the work
plan for the following year.

Risk management and internal control system

The Group adopted the three lines of defence model in the
management of risk. Operational management forms the core
of the first line of defence as they contact with the risk sources
in the first place. They are responsible for identifying, reporting
and preliminarily managing risks in their daily operations. Our
second line of defence is aimed to facilitate and monitor the
implementation of effective risk management practices by
operational management and assists risk owners in defining
risk exposures and reporting adequate risk-related information
throughout the Group. Our internal audit function is the core of the
third line of defence and mainly responsible for checking, auditing
and monitoring the work performed by the first and second lines
of defence.
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The Group’s risks are identified from business processes in our
established enterprise-wide risk assessment methodologies.
We select key participants across the Group who are involved
in each of the business process as interviewees to identify the
risks to form our risk universe. Each risk within the risk universe
(including ESG risks) is assessed in terms of likelihood of
occurrence and the significance of impact, taken into account the
current internal controls in place to mitigate these risks. The risk
assessment results are reported to senior management, the Audit
Committee, the ESG Committee (the part related to ESG risks)
and the Board for the confirmation of our risk response strategies
and the development of our improvement measures, based on
their preferences towards risk, the available resources for risk
mitigation, and the current controls in place. The Board and the
Audit Committee and the ESG Committee assess and review the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (covering all key controls including strategy, finance,
operation, compliance controls and ESG risks) on an annual basis.

Managing ESG Risks

ESG risks have multiple impacts on the sustainable development
of the company’s business and social development, and such
ESG risks should also be integrated into the Company’s risk
management framework to improve the effectiveness of risk
management.

In order to be consistent with other major risks, the Group adopts
the same risk management procedures to manage ESG risks,
including identifying ESG risks, formulating risk universe, risk
assessment and monitoring measures taken, as well as consulting
and reporting processes, etc.

For details of ESG and climate-related risk management measures,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
in this annual report.

During the Review Year, the Company reviewed the report
prepared by the Audit & Supervision Department containing the
investigation results and improvement suggestions as well as the
management letter prepared by the external auditor, and promptly
took appropriate improvement measures to mitigate the risks.
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The Company’s internal control system is based on Internal
Control-Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and has
five components, namely Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Monitoring
Activities. The system intends to facilitate the design and
functioning of good control practices and reduce the likelihood
and impact of risks to an acceptably low level, in order for us to
achieve our objectives in operations, reporting, and compliance.

Any material internal control defects identified are timely
communicated and carefully evaluated for their potential impacts.
The departments or functions who are owners of these controls,
are required to propose corrective measures and obtain approval
from management before implementation. The implementation
status is monitored by both management and the Audit &
Supervision Department to ensure these control defects are
properly resolved in a timely manner.

The Group has also established policies and internal control
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside
information, including “Material Information Internal Reporting
System of Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited” and “Information
Disclosure Management System of Tsaker New Energy Tech
Co., Limited”. The information or data to be disclosed should be
properly reviewed and approved by our compliance functions and
management to ensure its timeliness, accuracy, sufficiency and
effectiveness, and is closely monitored after disclosure.

During the Review Year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group including all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and considered that the design and implementation of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group are
effective and adequate in all material respects.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditor in respect of the audit and
non-audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting
Period is as follows:
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Amount (RMB’ 000)

Type of services BR A5 3E Al 2B (ARETR)
Audit services ZE RS 1,700
Non-audit services in relation to: BN A T FERIZARTS -

Interim results reviewing R HAZ AR 550
Total w@at 2,250

COMPANY SECRETARY

With effect from 15 December 2023, Ms. NG Ka Man resigned
as a joint company secretary of the Company due to other work
arrangements. Following Ms. NG Ka Man resignation, Mr. BAI
Kun, an executive Director, who has been confirmed by the Stock
Exchange to be capable of acting as a company secretary of
the Company under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, acts as the
sole company secretary of the Company and is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring
that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. BAIl Kun has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 30 November 2018, the Board approved and adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may distribute
dividends in (i) cash; (ii) Shares; or (iii) a combination of cash or
Shares. When deciding whether to propose/declare dividends
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, amongst others, the general financial position,
operating results, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group, and the distribution shall be made in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations (including the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands) and subject to restrictions under the Articles
of Association.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information on the Company,
which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions. To promote effective communication, the
Company has been maintaining a Shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”), which
aims at establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Company and its Shareholders.

During the Review Year, the Board adopted the amended
Shareholders’ Communication Policy. Under the Shareholders’
Communication Policy, the Company will take steps to solicit and
understand the views of its Shareholders and other stakeholders
(including employees, customers, suppliers and investors).
Shareholders may direct questions and communicate their views
on various matters affecting the Company, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to
directors or management of the Company by mail to 31st Floor,
Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, by telephone (during business hours) at (86 10)
5653-2886 or by email to ir@tsaker.com.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
Under normal circumstances, the Chairman and independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and the chairmen of the
Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the audit works, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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The Company will appoint employees specifically responsible for
investor relation matters, including but not limited to providing
information to Shareholders in a timely and effective manner. Any
corporate communication issued or to be issued by the Company,
including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices
of general meetings, circulars and proxy forms, will be written
in plain language and provided to Shareholders in English and
Chinese version for easy understanding.

The capital market department of the Group strives to maintain the
investor relation of the Company through regular and extraordinary
exchanges with investment institutions, so as to ensure
timely communication and to understand the latest business
development of the Company and the views of investors on the
Company’s prospects. Research reports prepared by investment
institutions will be posted on the Company’s website for reference
of Shareholders and investors.

The Board will review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
annually so as to ensure its implementation and effectiveness. The
summary of annual review results will be disclosed in the annual
report and/or report of corporate governance of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of Shareholders’ Communication Policy in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023, and is of the view that the current
Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been effectively
implemented. During the Review Year, the annual general meeting
of the Company was held on 10 May 2023. All Directors attended
the meeting in person or via video conference to answer any
inquiries Shareholders might have. The Company holds investor
communication activities from time to time to update Shareholders
on the Company’s business development and respond to
Shareholders’ inquiries. The Company has also received inquiries
from Shareholders from time to time and such inquiries have
been properly resolved. Accordingly, the Company considers its
Shareholders’ Communication Policy to be effective.

The latest version of the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at
http://www.tsaker.com, where the up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
general meetings of the Company. Any one or more member(s)
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 21 days from the date when such
meeting is convened. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board to convene such general meeting shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the capital
market department of the Company at its headquarters through
email at ir@tsaker.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Articles of Association of the
Company were revised, and the adoption of the third amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company was approved by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 10 May 2023.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated

24 March 2023, the circular dated 18 April 2023 and the poll
results announcement dated 10 May 2023.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 192 to 318, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Recognition of deferred tax
assets

Several of the Company’s
subsidiaries had accumulated
tax losses of RMB288 million
as at 31 December 2023.
The Group has recognised
deferred tax assets of RMB49
million against the tax losses to
the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits is
probable.

Recognition of deferred
tax assets requires critical
judgement from management
on the likelihood and
magnitude of creating future
taxable profits to offset the tax
losses, including expectations
for future prices of products,
expected sales volumes
and production costs, and
overall market and economic
conditions. Actual profits are
likely to be different from those
forecasts since anticipated
events frequently do not occur
as expected and unforeseen
events may arise, and their
impact on estimates and
forecasts may be material.

The Group’'s accounting
policies and disclosures about
the deferred tax assets are
included in Note 2.4 Material
accounting policies, Note
3 Significant accounting
judgements and estimates
and Note 29 Deferred tax to
the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating
the assumptions used in
projecting the expected future
taxable profits such as future
prices of products, expected
sales volumes and production
costs, by comparing these key
inputs with the corresponding
entities’ historical data and
economic forecasts as well
as by reviewing supporting
documents for those
assumptions made such as sale
contracts and budget prepared
by management, and assessing
the income tax rate applicable
to the deferred tax assets to
be recognised. We involved
our tax experts to assist us
in the reconciliation review of
corporate income tax.

We also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax
assets.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant
and equipment

At 31 December 2023, the
Group’s property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”) amounted
to RMB1,725 million. The
Group is required to review
PPE for impairment whenever
events or changes in
circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Management
performed an impairment
assessment on such PPE by
determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) that the PPE
are allocated to. As a result of
the impairment assessment,
an impairment loss of RMB14
million was recognised during
the year ended 31 December
2023.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

We obtained an understanding
of controls over the process of
impairment assessment on PPE.

For those PPE where value-in-
use is used as the recoverable
amount, we compared the
methodology used by the
Group, that is, recoverable
amount calculations based
on future discounted cash
flows, to industry practice,
and assessed the significant
assumptions used in the
calculations, which comprised,
amongst others, future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes, production costs and
discount rates, by comparing
them with the Group’s historical
data as well as by reviewing
supporting documents for
those assumptions made
such as sale contracts. We
also analysed the historical
accuracy of management’s
estimates. In addition, we
involved our valuation specialist
to assist us in assessing
the valuation methodologies
and the assumptions used,
including the discount rates.
We performed a sensitivity
analysis of the significant
assumptions described above
to assess the changes to the
recoverable amounts of the
CGUs resulting from changes
in these assumptions.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

Audit management’s
impairment assessment on
PPE was complex due to the
significant estimates and
judgements involved in the
projections of future cash
flows, including the future
prices of products, expected
sales volumes, production
costs, discount rates and
the expected disposal
consideration less cost of
disposal. These estimates and
judgements may be affected
by unexpected changes in
the future market or economic
conditions.

The Group’'s accounting
policies and disclosures about
the impairment assessment on
PPE are included in Note 2.4
Material accounting policies,
Note 3 Significant accounting
Judgements and estimates and
Note 13 Property, plant and
equipment to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

For those PPE to be disposed
of where fair value less cost
of disposal is used as the
recoverable amount,
assessed the significant
assumptions, such as expected
disposal consideration, and
disposal-related costs by
reviewing price quotes.

we

We also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
impairment assessment on PPE.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report,
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

other than the consolidated

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]

Independent Auditor’s Report

B A REN R

RBER B G UBBRRARENEE(F)

TRREETABEAARREE - LRFTEEN
EFERF  BEMYLEY BEEAEE
MERMEERER -

FEEEMRANSTRREGRE MAAE
B ST MERRESTAE -

HERRARBCERGTERETREE
Haw o REMERNERE  BEES
FHEEZRFFEAEENENTEERE
femAEEHYE BEEENFELERENE
EBARE - WERMBSFEERTHEE R
= MAEREMBETREIESSUB
BRTPOBEEE - XMHBENEETR
ARERTE R - IR &2 E R R B R
HRHEMESHEERE - A RXF
HHIERAAIE B BERETREFELE -

FESEVBHRRNERER SBNAT
BRERE  URGEEUWBBRREENAAZ
BT ARREBZHINER o

3 EREANERAXRBEDONBERE
WMFAR BENRTEE  URHERSME
BREXRBR -HMEERE EBEMH
7 BEREEFTIE - RAAEFERAE

2RPE(E



e
EY:

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kwok Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

18 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 BET RS

RBER B G UBBRRARENEE(F)

BAH (AR R ENA88E SHLERS
AREHER (BERFIER B ES L A EREH R (E
MERRIE) BEBZEZEEERE -

BATAEZZESRER  HARMENESH
BB IENEEERBEER YA AEEEN
BRAREZERMBLEO A BBEMEMER
AROBBR A F R B 01T B S RE D 845 e (2038
) B FIER -

HRBEZZESEBENFTET - RIVREWLEIR
HAREGAMBRRNBARKEE - AMBEK
BB EE RIPXBERATAFARARESL
B RAESBRERNEBERT  HARSBEEL
ZHMEKM B EZRAERBE A EBEARM
BREEOANEM TEERETHRE - TARMSE
ZEEDRE PG L FIR -

HEARBIZHBEBRENEARESBATEEE -

RKEF IS AT
HE 2T

o

—E-FE=A+NH

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#HK &

191



192

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBRERkHE

fb = H W& 3R

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE T =—F+_A=1t—HILFE
2023 2022
—E-= T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥T T ARBEFTT
REVENUE g ) 2,065,474 2,122,318
Cost of sales SHERA (1,746,838) (1,553,865)
Gross profit EH 318,636 568,453
Other income and gains HAn A R 5 29,289 9,725
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (44,219) (50,578)
Administrative expenses TERR X (178,301) (133,925)
Other expenses HbRx (12,892) (7,983)
Impairment losses on property, W - BERFEARER
plant and equipment and BAERMEEE
intangible assets 13 (14,046) (16,166)
Impairment loss on investment in R E RARRIRE
an associate BIEE B 15 (758)
Finance costs B 6 (33,028) (15,885)
Share of loss of an associate A — B A RBE 15 (110) (119)
Exchange losses, net P& H B8 F 58 (4,971) (18,788)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRRBE A 25 A 7 59,600 334,734
Income tax expense PR B X 10 (14,407) (80,502)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 45,193 254,232
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HfttZHEW=
Other comprehensive income that may AIgE R EZ BRI EH o
be reclassified to profit or loss in T ?ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬁlm
subsequent periods (net of tax): (F0BRFHIE) -
Exchange differences on translation — #E SN XS H) & i, = 58
of foreign operations 4,466 24,302
Other comprehensive income that will REZ ARG IS EHHF
not be reclassified to profit or loss EE@NEMEEE
in subsequent periods (net of tax): (MBRFE) :
Equity investments designated ERARBEFEAHEZE
at fair value through other aﬁ')\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%&n(ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) BEAEAHEESH T AEM
2EWE]) 2 RERE 1,454 (5,844)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SEBRERAEMAEEEER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE_ZE-_=—F+_A=1+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E_=F —ZE-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR® T AREET T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SREMt2mEUE @ HIRHIE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 5,920 18,458
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZHEWHAE
FOR THE YEAR 51,113 272,690
Profit attributable to: THIATEMEGEH
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEFEPN 29,061 242,035
Non-controlling interests JEIERR MRS 16,132 12,197
45,193 254,232
Total comprehensive income THATEGEZAEKEREE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZZ =N 34,981 260,493
Non-controlling interests IR A 16,132 12,197
51,113 272,690
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERESEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EihESRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (expressed in BEARREE (RER
RMB per share) ARBITYIR) 12 0.03 0.24
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

31 December 2023

2 =F+=ZA=+—H

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—B-= —E-—
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H”
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR% T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE REE 13 1,725,269 1,761,973
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 14(a) 89,582 89,806
Investment in an associate R—HEEERARWRE 15 - 868
Equity investments designated BERANEBEFZAEE
at FVOCI STAEM R E G 2 RIERE 16 32,309 30,855
Financial assets at fair value through #E QA EBEEBEESH:TA
profit or loss (“FVPL") B ((RAREBEFEEHR
it ABR 2 EmMEE 22 25,183 37,119
Intangible assets EREE 17 6,850 7,571
Deferred tax assets FRIERIEE = 29 67,449 28,311
Other non-current assets HEMIEREERE 39,530 50,826
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE 1,986,172 2,007,329
CURRENT ASSETS KB EE
Inventories Ea=¢ 18 285,326 272,759
Trade receivables =Y 36N 19 342,512 233,739
Notes receivable R ZE I 20 399,501 421,045
Prepayments and other receivables B 338 & E b fE Y FIB 21 69,279 59,596
Financial assets at FVPL BRAREBEFEEHEEFHTA
BRzeRMEE 22 12,879 4,621
Restricted cash SZREE 23 70,586 7,081
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 23 287,441 189,069
Total current assets MENEEAE 1,467,524 1,187,910
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B o RNFIBRENEE 24 472,614 384,084
Other payables and accruals E M RIE R ERE A 25 277,648 363,347
Contract liabilities EH8E 11,173 4,458
Interest-bearing bank and FHERITREAER
other borrowings 26 277,444 247,094
Income tax payable FERTFRS B 19,347 20,792
Current portion of long-term REMERBBIEREL 5
borrowings 26 21,650 14,693
Other current liabilities EmsaE 27 60,286 =
Total current liabilities BB EEE 1,140,162 1,034,468
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

31 December

2022
+=-A=+—8
Notes RMB’000
k3 ARBT T
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZFE 327,362 153,442
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERREBARE
LIABILITIES 2,313,534 2,160,771
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE
Deferred income WA 28 8,163 10,449
Deferred tax liabilities BT IBAE 29 7,732 11,570
Interest-bearing bank and FERITREAMER
other borrowings 26 18,058 38,793
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 232 =
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREBER 30 224,518 =
Total non-current liabilities FEMBN B ELEE 258,703 60,812
Net assets BEEE 2,054,831 2,099,959
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AELER
of the parent
Share capital RN 31 65,346 65,807
Treasury shares EFRG5 (16,513) (4,467)
Reserves 1 32 1,846,641 1,976,131
1,895,474 2,037,471
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 159,357 62,488
Total equity s EE 2,054,831 2,099,959

Ge Yi
XX
Director

EF

Bai Kun
BE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2023
 E_E-=F+-_A=1+—HIFE

At 1 January 2023 N-F-=%-f-H

Profitfor the year ERigh

Other comprehensive ~ FREH2ENE
income for the year

Total comprehensive ERiENELE

income for the year
Repurchase of own shares  EEEER(
Deregistration of Fid i A
a subsidiary

Disposal of partial HE-FHBAR
interest ina subsiclany™  HHER"

Transfer of reserve upon ~ —EHEATEE
asubsidiary's capital ~ EBEERRE
movement

Dividend distibuted o~ AR FHERMRE
shareholders (ote 17) (i 11)

Deem disposal of partial ~ KEERE-FHE
interest in a subsidiary™  AFSHER™

Transfer to statutory reserve BEZETRE

Appropriation to safety ~ EAR24EES
production fund

Cancellation of own shares  HEERNR

At 31 December 2023 :Z:E¢
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated
reserves of approximately RMB1,846,641,000 and
approximately RMB1,976,131,000 in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively.

In June 2023, Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (“Tsaker Hong Kong”) (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) sold to
several independent investors a total of 3,886,924
shares in Hebei Tsaker New Materials Technology
Company Limited (“Tsaker Technology”) (an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),
representing an aggregate of approximately
6.12% equity interests in Tsaker Technology, at
an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB55,000,000. Pursuant to the share transfer
agreement, in the event that Tsaker Technology
fails to consummate a proposed listing on the
Beijing Stock Exchange by 31 December 2024,
each of the purchasers shall have a repurchase
right to require Tsaker Hong Kong to repurchase
all or part of its respective sale shares in Tsaker
Technology at a pre-determined repurchase price.
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
repurchase rights agreed in the above-mentioned
transactions lead to contractual obligations to deliver
cash or another financial asset to other entities and
accounted for the considerations received from the
independent investors as financial liabilities (note
27). Non-controlling interests were recognised at
the proportionate share of Tsaker Technology’'s net
assets at the transaction date.

In March and April 2023, several independent
investors agreed to inject an aggregate amount
of RMB229,000,000 into Shandong Tsaker New
Materials Co., Ltd. (“Shandong TNM”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, by way
of cash contribution in return for approximately
9.84% equity interests in aggregate in the enlarged
registered capital of Shandong TNM. Pursuant
to the shareholders’ agreements entered into for
the above capital injection transactions, each of
the independent investors (except an employee
shareholding platform established by certain
employees of Shandong TNM and its subsidiary) shall
have repurchase rights to require Shandong TNM
and/or Mr. GE Yi and/or Shandong TNM’s immediate
holding company to repurchase its equity interest in
Shandong TNM at a pre-determined repurchase price
at any time on or after the occurrence of any trigger
events defined in the shareholders’ agreements.
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
repurchase rights agreed in the above-mentioned
transactions lead to contractual obligations to deliver
cash or another financial asset to other entities and
accounted for the considerations received from the
independent investors as financial liabilities (note
30). Non-controlling interests were recognised at the
proportionate share of Shandong TNM Group’s net
assets at the transaction date.

*%

REEDBER

Year ended 31 December 2023
 E - =F+-A=+—HILFE

ZEREBREEIREGEATERARAD AT =_=F
+-A=t+—BR-_T-—F+-A=t—B2&EEHE
#ARH1,846,641,0007C R A A R#1,976,131,0007T ©

RZZTE-—=ZFR A ¥ELB(FBERAF(EER
EE]D (RARANEE2EWBARAZRBLRES
HENEEEIVBRBERGERAR ([EZERHE])
(ARAMEZEIEEZEMNB AR )A £3,886,924 %
o BEREERELN6.12%5E  AREAHDARE
55,000,0007T ° IRIBFMHEE R - W FRHRER
—ZNF+ A=+ BAEILRESER SRS
EH o REFBEENBEEERERESX B EREE
NEBEREERENEZIHRIA S HERD - KRARES
RAELAZRFHEMNDEEERHR RS —HEERRMNE
SHREMERMEENANET BB LIREEWER
REBAERASREE (MiE27) - IFERERZNL 5B
HEE BRI B E FELLHIFER -

RZE-_=F=ZAKNA  EFBUKREERENRESH
ERARAAARANEEEZENBRARILREEF VA
Al ([LEREZREFME]))EEES £ AR 229,000,000
JC + MREUL R BHFM EHE IR KA E A S 5H499.84%
MIREHE - IRIER FHUFER DRI MR EHE - SBULIE
ZE (LWEVEFMHEENBARETEIRUMET
IR AN S D EEN LR R R R ZETAENE
BB 2B 2 BB ERURERITME RS X
KEER /SR EEIMROERERA RS HEEE
BEADBERLUREZETIMEAORE - RAREERA
R SHBENEEEESRHRARS —MEBINREH
Hib & MEENAHNET IR BUREERINRE
AEAESRARE (HEE30) « FIERERIENRZ S B EIE
HLRERFM R SEEEEFE L HIER o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

Year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to owners of the parent

HE_Z--F+-_A=1+—HILFE

BATEEARLE
Fair value
feserve
Safety of equity Non-
Share Treasury Share Capital ~ production ~ Staiutory  nvestments  Translation ~ Retained controlling Total
capital shares  premium 1eserve fund reserve  atFVOCH 1eserve profits Total  interests equty
#ALER
HERE
£HiA
0T
LGV ]
PRER BN,
BE EBRG  ROEE  RER e iEBR  BERE  ENEE  REEH gt FihER  ERgE
RVBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARET  ARMTR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTT  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2022 R-E22£-F-A 66,269 (5.803) 375,070 (5030) 65040 130910 (669) 2658 1203280 1875490 1593 1891426
Proftfor the year Emigd| - - - - - - - - 0% 240 2197 %428
Other comprehensive EMAf2ENE
income for the year - - - - - - (5,844) 24,302 - 18,458 - 18,458
Total comprehensive income £M3ENALE
for the year - - - - - - (5,844) 4302 24203 260,493 12197 27269
Repurchase of own shares  EEEAR( - (6,871) - 5 5 5 5 - - (6,871) - (6,71
Transfer offai value reserve {HER A BEERL
upon the disposal of equity  EEAZM2ANE
investments at FVOCI (RERERER M,
i - - - - - - [57%) - 5,756 - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary HE—FEHEL - - - - - (244) - - 244 - - -
Divdend distibued o HEFERARE
shareholders (Moie 7/)  (HiE11) - - (106076) - - - - - - (106076) (2210)  (108.266)
Deemed disposal o partial B &LE-RIEAT
nterestinaswbsiolary  BHER - - - 4 - - - - - 4% % 51000
Transfer to staiutory resenve BETEFRE - - - - - 5,608 - - (5609 - - -
Appropriation to safety ~ FAR2EEES
production fund - - - - 5129 - - - (5129 - - -
Cancellation of own shares ~ #FEARD (462) 8,297 (7,835) - - 5 - - S - - -
At31 December 2022 WZF==
+ZR=1+-A 65,807 (4467)  261,159* 9,405" 71069"  136,274" (12,189 4983%"  1460578" 2037471 62488 2,099,959

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_—-F+-_A=1+—HItFE

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARET T ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETEFEBRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 35 A% 59,600 334,734
Adjustments for: TS SIEEDFHE -
Finance costs B 75 X AR 6 33,028 15,885
Exchange gains, net bE H a5 58 (502) (2,154)
Interest income FLE2WA 5 (2,911) (613)
Dividend income from equity RAnBEFEBEZEHA
investments at FVOCI and FVPL Hiv2mElas RIZA A EE
TEEHEEH AERZ
P& 2 B B 5 (30) (118)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BERRBEEERN
property, plant and equipment [E518 7 5,060 1,545

Fair value losses of financial assets
at FVPL

Depreciation of property, plant and

BARBEAEAEZEHTA

BazemBEEZ A AREER

518 8,877 18,443
Y - BEREREITE

equipment 13 153,452 100,251
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14(a) 3,885 4,701
Amortisation of intangible assets I E E 17 1,337 1,824
Amortisation of deferred income AT W N 5 (2,286) (10,304)
Share of loss of an associate A —fAEEE A REE 15 110 119
Impairment loss of an associate — A& N al R EE R 15 758 =
Impairment of trade receivables 2 5 W GRIE R E 19 736 1,410
Impairment of other receivables H b fE W SR TERE 6,193 =
Impairment of property, plant and M - WE REERE

equipment 78 14,046 7,163
Impairment of intangible assets EmEERE 17 - 9,003
Write-down of inventories to net FEMBZE] 2R 3E

realisable value 7 19,792 1,969

301,145 483,858

Increase in inventories FEE N (32,359) (13,865)
Increase in trade receivables E ZEIGRIE R e W R R N

and notes receivables (205,418) (91,224)
Decrease in prepayments TE (- 3038 e Ho At E U FRIE

and other receivables Ve 10,476 41,842
Increase in trade payables E 5 FE T 5RIBE 1N 139,454 81,580
Decrease in other payables HAbpE I RIE R FEETE A

and accruals N (98,483) (1,042)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract aHaEEm/ Crd)

liabilities 6,715 (2,027)
Increase in restricted cash ZPRIF &I (7,524) (5,095)
Cash generated from operations RBEANIES 114,006 494,027
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE_ZT-_=F+"-A=t—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARET T AR®ET T
Interest received 2 U F 2 2,911 613
Interest paid EATF A (18,467) (18,656)
Income tax paid ETFTSHR (52,271) (104,487)
Net cash flows from operating e RSMEHReRE
activities 46,179 371,497
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from equity BYIR AR EEFEEEE
investments at FVOCI and FVPL FFAHMEERERIZAR
BEGEAHEZHTTAEE
ZBRIEREZRE 5 30 118
Proceeds from disposal of financial HE&EERAREBETEEHES
assets at FVPL SABRzeMEEMSHKIA 20,529 165,026

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVOCI

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Purchases of equity investments
designated at FVOCI

Prepaid land lease payment
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL

Other cash flows used in investing
activities

HERAABEFEAHEES)

AAHMEERE SREE

FRiS5E - 38,282
BEYWE BELREEE

(72,436) (279,380)
HBERLEAE (616) (310)
HEME - WEREZEIEE
FTiS50A 238 1,775
,ﬁ%,ﬁ ERARBEFEAE
"""""" SFAEMEEKES 2
H%%é%”ﬁ - (7,371)
FE T i E FOE - (7,060)
BERAREBESEEEE
AAERCEMEE (25,730) (196,596)
KETHAAEMBESRE
(55,981) (280)

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #e&REHLER AR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE-Z-_—-F+-_A=1+—HItFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARET T ARBTT
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & /B AR EREF 5 (133,966) (285,236)
CASH FLOWS FROM AEEE TS HE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings #ZiR1TE 2 & E AL E R 33 355,759 414,103
Repurchase of own shares EEAE=REgiigh) (19,663) (6,871)
Repayment of bank loans and other  {EiERITER L M E R
borrowings &5 (338,025) (428,918)
Principal portion of lease liabilities MEBEBEZEREED 33 (548) (449)
Dividend paid BARRE (94,578) (108,286)
Disposal of partial interest in a HE—ERBARRE D R
subsidiary 55,000 -
Deem disposal of partial interest WRARE —FMBARE S
in a subsidiary T 229,000 51,000
Other cash flows used in financing BEEFAHMESRE
activities (1,288) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEBE(FTA)RES
financing activities mEFRE 185,657 (79,421)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBESEEYEMFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 97,870 6,840
Cash and cash equivalents FUHeRBESEED
at beginning of year 23 189,069 180,075
Effect of foreign exchange rate [E RS F R
changes, net 502 2,154
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SAXBRERRSZEY
AT END OF YEAR 23 287,441 189,069
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered address of the
Company is P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place, 103
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1106, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the
following principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of battery materials

o manufacture and sale of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates

o manufacture and sale of pigment intermediates and
new materials

In the opinion of the Directors, the controller of the
Company is Mr. GE Yi.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]
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31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

ARREEMAR

RRARB—RKRHASHSTMAZHEBRA
Al o A Al it ZP.O. Box 472, 2nd
Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman lIslands °
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Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2QARFEEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries FRMEARER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RAATlEZEMBARKGFERIIOT
follows:
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
and principal place registered share  interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HRAY/ 2R/ RIS BRTERR/
£1 RESNREELEHY AR ARAREREAAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
B i
Tsaker Chemical (Hongkong) Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD34,174,000 100 - Investment holding
(Tsaker Hongkong) 2 September 2010
VER(ER)BRLR(VEERE) 3 3417400057 100 - RAER
“E-TENAZH
Tsaker Chemical Group Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB84,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Tsaker Chemical Group) 28 September 2017
PR EEERRAR (VR 25E) hEL ABRH84,0000007 - 100 REZK
“E-tEnAZTNR
Hebei Tsaker New Material Technology Co., Limited ~ Hebei, PRC RMB63,571,427 = 72 Production and sale of chemicals and new
(Tsaker Technology) 23 September 2005 materials
AR EFHHRERABRAR (RERR) e ARH635714277 - 12 (CERRIIHEENHE
“FERENACTER
Tsaker Huayu Chemical Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB370,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Huayu) 7 May 2013
VEERINSARAR (VEER) RETL ARE370,000,0007 - 100 (LEREENHE
ZZ-ZF¥RAtA
Shandong Tsaker New Material Co., Limited Shandong, PRC RMB250,000,000 - 90 Production and sale of battery materials
(Shandong TNM) 20 May 2014
WRREHIHERAR (WRFEHIH) hELR AR 250,000,007 - 90 EbMHEEREE
ZE-ERAZTA
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION Ua

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

ARARAEBER (&)

FRHBARER (F)
ARBEEZMBRRNFBEHIWOT : (&)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
and principal place registered share  interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ER/ R BRTERR/
£R JEEPYES FE-H iR ARERERERAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
Ef i
Tsaker Technology Development (Beiling) Co., Limited  Beijing, PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Technology Development) 17 October 2013
YRR (LR BRAR (FERGHE) hELR ARH40,000,0007 - 100 {tBeks
“2-ZFtATtA
Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Limited Shandong, PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Dongao) 15 March 2004
LRFERRSRRAR (WERA) REILR A&#%200,000,0007 - 100 (EREENEE
“ZIME=ATEA
Tsaker Chemical (Singapore) Private Co., Limited Singapore USD7,500 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Singapore) 8 July 2016
FERLZFMRMABRAR (HEHIR) i3 7500%7T - 100 {t2n$EE
“E-EtANR
Tsaker Huayu Technology (Tianjin) Co., Limited Tianjin, PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Huayu Tianjin) 5 February 2018
PEEZR(R2)HEARLA (WEEERR) hERE AR%20,000,0007 - 100 {t2n#s
ZZ-\¥ZR%A
Hasun Group Limited British Virgin Islands USD10,000 100 - Investment holding
2 November 2017
EERAEE 10,000%7 100 - REBR
ZT+E+-AZH
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION Ua

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

ARARAEBER (&)

FRHBARER (F)
ARBEEZMBRRNFBEHIWOT : (&)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
and principal place registered share  interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HRAY/ 2R/ RIS BRTERR/
£# RASNREELEHY AhRE  ARAREREAAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
EE i
Chuangying Liancheng (Cangzhou) Enterprise Hebei, PRC RMB13,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Management Co., Limited 23 August 2016
(Chuangying Liancheng) HETI ARE13,000,0007 = 100 HEER
BIREH (AN CFERERAR (BI2EH) 2 ENAZT=R
Bright Innovation Global Limited British Virgin Islands USD50,000 - 100 Investment holding
8 September 2021
ABRAES 50,000%7 - 100 REER
“E--§nANR
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB50,000,000 - 90 Production and sale of battery materials
(Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy) 15 April 2022
BNFERRERAT (NF R ) hEL ARH50,000,0007 - 0 EbMHEENEE
“R-CEMATEE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RARKEEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBATER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RABEEZEMBARIKGEESRIIAT (&)

follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
and principal place registered share  interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ER/ R BRTERR/
£R JEEPYES FE-H iR ARERERERAL  TERE
%
Direct  Indirect
E# i
Beijing Chuangying Xinli Enterprise Management Beijing, PRC RMBA51,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) 17 October 2022
(Chuangying Xinli)
IREBEUARERFRAE LR (BRAY) hELR ARH51,000,0007 - 100 REBK
(BlBET)™ ZEZZETRTHA
Tsaker Dongao (Hainan) Technology Co., Limited Hainan, PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Dongao Hainan) 10 January 2023
VERR(BEMERRAR (VERRER)" hESE AR#5,000,0007 - 100 fERHE
ZEZE-A1H
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

*

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law

* Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

*ok ok

Registered as limited partnerships under PRC law

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial assets and
notes receivable which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

RARFEEER (&)

ERMBARER (&)
ARBEEMBARNHERIIMT (&)

EREIN 2 AEEMNBAR - DEERLY
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BHEE
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2.1

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

R ARAFE

Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognise the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’'s financial
statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting

Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single

Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 2 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the Group’s financial statements.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group’s
approach and policy align with the amendments, the
amendments had no impact on the Group's financial
statements.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

B ERRRREZ2E (F)

ERARARENF REETEEMBRE
Rz EE R EHAMT

(a) BRGHEUNFIRZBITERER
BREEZSTRRER  MIFEAE
AR - WERBERMEHRERAEM
BER—HZR  StBRRERNTNUE
BERAeYEBRAMBREANIZME
RERBZSYHHRRMEL AR
- AZEBRREMNBER - &
AU BRELEANEHRREF2H2E
FIELIE ZHB A E R RS
AN BER KRB IRHIFEHI1E
5l e AEEERMBIHMARM E2KE
BEEETHEREN - RFETHAE
B HEHRAE - RK2 TR
B EEMTZE -

(b) BESHEAESHKZIEIREES
M EEHESTRREEZEANR
Al o GEHEFTHEE BTFESETH
RAXMPERE s EEESHE - %Z
BRI BEEB AL A MM
Al { A ET = HlT R A B - AR
SEMNFERBREZZET 8
ZEETTHASEN Y B RER W ES
@,



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these
transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the
Group has determined the temporary differences
arising from right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately, which have been reflected in the
reconciliation disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements. However, they did not have any
material impact on the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances
qualified for offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 /International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes, including the disclosure of current tax
related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and
the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted
or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively.
Since the Group did not fall within the scope of the
Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did not
have any impact to the Group.

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these
revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)" 4

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”)" *

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022

Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as
an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not
impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
early application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. The
amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information, quantitative information as at
the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other case,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale,
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

it is accounted for in

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments, certain
financial assets and notes receivable at fair value at the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

R ARAFE
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased.
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

If such an indication exists, the
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

()
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Machinery and equipment 9% to 19%
Office equipment 18% to 32%
Motor vehicles 23% to 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Technological know-how

Purchased technological know-how is stated at cost less
any impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Office premises and apartments
for employees

13 to 50 years
2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low

value.

Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to profit or loss.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded
in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into

account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject

to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
leases liabilities.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

EXEFEE(E)

EFRH

ARAHANEBERNEA RGNS BE
TA(BEFBRM)RAAR S BRER
AEE  HE  BOTREHEAEEARSGHK

BTAMS  #H#ARBEaNERWERE
18
FE

TR Ty R (B B B R P BT
5USE - RAERIET AT - 18 BN
EGRAG  ABEEENE  EESNR
Hfb % L PIBSE - AR BB TR (At
2418 (LI £ 11 TR0 JR A8 6 PR B
RIS -

RERAEEEY

MBMRAKRTFNRERREEFBNERRER
Be RRITERARATRER EiR A2 MBE
Red—KRR=EARNIHNERS RN
i HEEZEHNAREME I ERTT
RS HRER & AGE AR o

AR eRERME  RelREeFEY
BEBEFRE  RITREUAREXEEREZRE
HIFF > BHBREEREAEEMBERAS
EREEENE BB ZRITEX



2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain environmental technology equipment for general
repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted
by the Group are initially recognised based on past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate. The warranty-related
cost is revised annually.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

Sale of industrial products, materials and scrap

Revenue from the sale of industrial products, materials and
scrap is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the industrial products, materials and scrap.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Pension scheme

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland
are members of the state-sponsored pension scheme
operated by the Chinese Mainland government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate has been applied to the expenditure on the individual
assets.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the Notes
11 to the financial statements. Interim dividends are
simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’'s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. The
functional currency of the Company is US dollars. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance

consideration.

The functional currencies of certain entities within the
Group are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. Unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during the year, in which case,
the exchange rate prevailing on the dates of transactions

are used.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a
foreign operation,
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

the cumulative amount in the reserve

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Management’s estimation is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with tax planning strategies (Note
29).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and prepayments and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables and other receivables. The provision
rates are based on ageing for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables and prepayments and other receivables
is disclosed in Note 19 and Note 21 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Property, plant and equipment — recoverable amount

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. If any such indication exists,
an estimate of the recoverable amount is performed and
an impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating group
of assets is measured at the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset.

Value in use is generally determined as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows of those expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form
and its eventual disposal. Present values are determined
using a risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate appropriate to
the risks inherent in the asset. Future cash flow estimates
are based on expected production and sales volumes,
selling prices (considering current and historical prices,
price trends and related factors) and operating costs. This
policy requires management to make these estimates and
assumptions which are subject to risk and uncertainty;
hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances
will alter these projections, which may impact on the
recoverable amount of the assets. In such circumstances,
part of or the entire carrying value of the assets may be
impaired and the impairment would be charged against
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Property, plant and equipment — estimated useful lives
and residual values

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and, therefore, in
depreciation/amortisation expense in future periods.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has three
(2022: four) reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the battery materials segment engages in the
manufacture and sale of battery materials;

(b) the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment produces dye intermediate products for
use in the production of dye related products and
products for use in the production of agricultural
chemicals; and

(c) the pigment intermediates and new materials
segment produces pigment intermediate products
for the use in the production of pigments and
monomer for production of new material products.

Besides the above three operating segments, the Group
had another operating segment named “others” in 2022
and years before. The “others” segment comprises
principally the Group’s environmental technology
consultancy services which engages in environmental
protection. With no revenue generated from this segment
since 2022, the Group has ceased to report it as a
separate operating segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated mainly based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and
other unallocated expenses of the Company and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

The measurement of segment assets and liabilities is the
same as that of the total assets and total liabilities for the
consolidated statement of financial position, excluding
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities, as these assets
and liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements
g EL

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REIWER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-E-_=F+_A=+—HILEE

Segment revenue (Note 5): AR (HeEs) -

Revenues from external customers RSP 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Intersegment sales PHREE - 10,730 - 10,730
Total segment revenue ar e 498,646 1,200,598 376,960 2,076,204
Reconcilation H%

Elimination of intersegment sales ARRBEN (10,730)
Revenue e 2,065,474
Segment results AH%EE (180,149) 175,482 101,831 97,164
Including: A

Interest income g 1,766 533 2,629 4,928
Finance costs B (18,542) (14,151) (1,663) (34,356)
Reconcilation 4%

Interest income** FBBA (2,017)
Finance costs™ A 1,328
Elimination of intersegment restlts AHEEELH (2,794)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses TEREMAAEER (34,081)
Profit before tax Biaad 59,600
Segment assets APEE 1,652,186 1,604,179 459,843 3,716,208
Reconciliation HE

Elimination of intersegment receivables ol e (492,485)
Corporate and other unallocated assets TERAMRAREE 231,613
Elimination of inventories due to unrealised gains ~ RASEMEMHEEE (1,640)
Total assets BENE 3,453,696
Segment liabilities AREE 1,235,407 467,583 111,972 1,814,962
Reconciliation HE

Elimination of intersegment payables o AN (492,485)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities tEREMRARER 76,388
Total liabilities AEBE 1,398,865
Other segment information EthAHEN

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss RERRERNEESE 31,508 8,040 1,219 40,767
Depreciation and amortisation* nEREH 78,246 59,009 19,076 156,331
Capital expenditure™ BART™ 64,409 57,886 46,494 168,789
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
—=#+-A=+-~

4. REFHER(E)

BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE

Dye and
agricultural Pigment
Battery chemical intermediates Total
materials intermediates  and new materials segments
o IHREE EHnRE
iith 2R Riftth A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue (Nofe 3): APl (Hs)
Revenues from external customers RENBRPRMGE 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2122318
Intersegment sales AHREE = 14,075 = 14,075
Total segment revenue APEYE 689,512 1,086,315 360,566 2,136,393
Reconcilation 4%
Elimination of intersegment sales ARRHENH (14,075)
Revenue e 2,122,318
Segment results AP%E 185,505 99,209 89,367 374,081
Inclucing: B
Interest income HEHA 2 163 193 378
Finance cost BHRAA (1.940) (20,840) (2,493) (25,273)
Reconcillation 4%
Interest income HEHA 235
Finance costs™* BB 9,388
Realisation of intersegment results AIREEER 159
Corporate and other unallocated expenses m%&ﬁmﬂi EER (49,129)
Profit before tax byl 334,734
Segment assets b3 1,523,322 1,592,421 371,803 3,487,552
Reconcilation 4%
Elimination of intersegment receivables AHEEATEYE (585,103)
Corporate and other unallocated assets EERAMAD VRAE 291,636
Realisation of inventories due to unrealised gains ~ RAEEUEMEREE 1,154
Total assets BEBE 3,195,239
Segment liabilities por:=t 990,207 572,924 90,726 1,653,857
Reconciliation f
Elimination of intersegment payables AREEM B (585,103)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ¢%&Hﬁﬁ AR 26,526
Total liabiliies BEAE 1,095,280
Other segment information RtpEs
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss RESARINAERE 16,519 2,348 678 19,545
Depreciation and amortisation* EREE 23,602 62422 17517 103,541
Capital expenditure™ BRRT 300,349 86,585 82,210 469,144
* Partial depreciation and amortisation of the Group are * REBHEDINERBINDBEELE
included in corporate and other unallocated expense. REMADBRBERA -
> Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, *x BABLBIEREYYE  BEREE -
plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use BB E N E AREEE o
assets.
o Interest income and finance costs under reconciliation *xx FEIE T F B A KB TSR A B E D
include interest income and finance costs from ER1ZEFN R D ERER 5 &I F) B UL A R BE 7%
corporate and unallocated parts with segments. AR o
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Notes to Financial Statements

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023

2 =F+=ZA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFFER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information i 32 & R
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) KEHISBEFHWK S
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Chinese Mainland EiEipN 1,697,131 1,720,796
India ENfE 125,031 126,928
Indonesia EE i 53,294 42 540
Brazil il 40,426 51,154
Germany == 39,624 46,915
Spain Pisb i 28,873 31,830
Taiwan, China PR A E 26,500 26,846
United States EH 20,231 42196
Japan SN 16,664 20,373
Turkiye THHE 10,269 4,617
Pakistan EEEMA 3,077 1,800
The Netherlands RTR8 - 1,140
Other countries/regions HER, bR 4,354 5,183
Total Revenue FER N 2,065,474 2,122,318
The revenue information above is based on the L EER DREREFPAEMER
locations of the customers. 8o
The Group’s non-current assets are substantially REBHIERDEERRBD AR
located in Chinese Mainland. B A BE o
Information about major customers FTEEFER

In 2023, revenue of approximately RMB228,274,000 was
derived from sales from the dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates segment to a single customer.

In 2022, revenue of approximately RMB269,438,000 was
derived from sales from the battery materials segment to a
single customer.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]

RZZEZ=F  HAR228,274,0007TH)
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 was all revenue from contracts with
customers.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

5. W& - At ARKE

AEEHE_ZT_=FK-_FT-_—F+—_HA
=+ —HEFENBSEHAREERTPEIAL
Z AN o

REREFIT L 2SR RE
(a) BRHFKkEEH

BE-Z-_=F+-A=+—HLHF
B

Segments L

Types of goods or services ENSRBEY

Sale of goods HEEY 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Total feks] 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Geographical markets HBETS

Chinese Mainland FEIAR 498,646 974,173 224,312 1,697,131
India HE - 12,493 112,538 125,031
Indonesia HERASD - 53,294 - 53,294
Brazil i - 40,426 - 40,426
Germany 28 - 39,624 - 39,624
Spain bl - 28,873 - 28,873
Taiwan, China TE A E - 26,494 6 26,500
United States e - - 20,231 20,231
Japan B - - 16,664 16,664
Tirkiye 1HHE - 10,269 - 10,269
Pakistan EEHNE = 3,033 44 3,077
Other countries/regions B/ R - 1,189 3,165 4,354
Total At 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Timing of revenue recognition s ERRE

Goods transferred at a point in time REERHER ED 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Total feks] 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

5. W& HftARKE (&)

REEEZFT L 2EHNKE (&)
(a) BBRFRzER (F)
BE-Z-_—_f+-A=+—HLHF

E
Dye and Pigment
agricultural  intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials  intermediates materials Total
ARRES Pl
EHiH  tEnhERE RHHH CH
Segments 28 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFL AREFT ARETTL ARETFT
Types of goods or services ENRREER
Sale of goods HEEM 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2,122,318
Total ek 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2,122,318
Geographical markets BB
Chinese Mainland AR 689,512 835,874 195,410 1,720,796
India Bl - 27,621 99,307 126,928
Brazil i} - 51,154 - 51,154
Germany ZE - 46,915 = 46,915
Indonesia HERAR - 42,540 - 42,540
United States X - = 42,196 42,196
Spain by - 31,830 - 31,830
Taiwan, China HERE - 26,346 = 26,846
Japan B - - 20,373 20,373
Turkiye 1EH - 4,617 = 4,617
Pakistan BN = 1,325 475 1,800
The Netherlands GiFy - - 1,140 1,140
Other countries/regions EER/ e = 3518 1,665 5,183
Total At 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2,122,318
Timing of revenue recognition WRERRE
Goods transferred at a point in time RERBHEZ &N 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2,122,318
Total k] 689,512 1,072,240 360,566 2,122,318
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning

of the reporting period:

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

Wz - HMKAR WK ()

REEEFITLZENNKE (&)

B TR ()

TEMIIARE B WS
T RERNREENANERE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ET T
Revenue recognised that FFARE YIS HBER
was included in contract B iR ¢
liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods SHEEW 4,048 5,687
Total AEt 4,048 5,687
(b) RBHEE

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:

Sale of goods, including chemical intermediates,

battery materials

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the industrial products and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery,
except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally

required.

FEASEBRANETOER B
™

HEEY (BEELERTPRE - T
H#)
BHEARSNIXERERT X
fF—RRALZH#EI0EI0H BH » B
RPN AESEBEEARAMNR
9|\ °
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements
g EL

31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

5. Wi - At AR KE (&)

Other income and gains Ht g A R iz
2022
-z
RMB’000
ARBT T
Bank interest income ERITFBULA 2,911 613
Dividend income from equity RARBEFEEHEEEHTA
investments at FVOCI and Hitp 2w 2 RIERE K
financial assets at FVPL BARBEFEBEEZEHTA
BazemEEREWKA 30 118
Fair value losses, net: NAEEEEFHE
Financial assets at FVPL RAnBEFEREEE
FFABRZEMEE (8,877) (18,443)
Government grants* BT Bh* 32,772 15,266
Others Efth 2,453 12,171
Total other income and gains HEMRA R EEE 29,289 9,725
* For the year ended 31 December 2023, government * BHE_TZ-_=—F+_A=+—HL*F

grants amounting to approximately RMB32,772,000
(2022: approximately RMB15,266,000) were recognised
as income for the year necessary to compensate the
costs and facilitate the Group’s development. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to
the grants.
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B BSfHEIAAR32,772,0007T
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Notes to Financial Statements
% e

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 6. Bt % B 2R
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: ARSI
2022
—F-—
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Interest on bank loans and other RITE R R HEAMERFE AR
borrowings and other Hin3pmenBE2FE
non-current liability 28,837 15,389
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE 33 25
Other finance costs B B TS AR 4,158 3,994
Total interest expense on financial WIRARBEFERE
liabilities not at fair value through gErt \BEaNemas
profit or loss FEMT 25 33,028 19,408
Less: Interest capitalised o BAREFE - (3,523)
Total = 33,028 15,885
No interest expense was capitalised for the year ended BE_T_=FT-_A=tHLFERE
31 December 2023 (the weighted average interest rate AEMERZ (BE=ZF__F+=A=+
of capitalization for the year ended 31 December 2022: —BUEFEERNMOIEFHFR :5.44%)

5.44%).
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BR B AT 72 A

AEBHBRBADER T EMER S (GEA)AT

(crediting): BIEBW
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR TR ARBTT
Cost of inventories sold EEFSHKA 1,746,838 1,553,865
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE
equipment 13 153,452 100,251
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEETNE 14(a) 3,885 4,701
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 17 1,337 1,824
Research and development costs IR 39,460 25,495
Lease payments not included Tt AHEBGETEN
in the measurement of lease liabilities ~ FA&R 14(c) 916 2,485
Auditor’s remuneration 2 B4R 3 A 2,250 2,100
Employee benefit expense EERAAZ
(excluding directors’ and chief (TEEEER
executive’s remuneration): FEBITRABREFH)
Wages, salaries and welfare TE - #HekEH 160,393 149,844
Pension and other social insurances ** iR & K& E it &Rk 46,959 39,500
Total CE 207,352 189,344
Exchange losses, net P& 5 18558 4,971 18,788
Dividend income from equity RAnBEFEEHEES
investments at FVOCI and FFAEMEZEWE
financial assets at FVPL IR E RIZA R (EBE
FTEBHEHABEY
TREEZRBWA 5 (30) (118)
Impairment loss of an investment in R—EBEARNKRE
an associate REEE 75} 758 =
Impairment losses on property, Yz BERZEREEE
plant and equipment 13 14,046 7,163
Impairment losses on intangible assets EF & ERIERIE 17 = 9,003
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE « BEREZHER
plant and equipment * R 518 5,060 1,545
Impairment of trade receivables * B 5 W SRIERE" 19 736 1,410
Impairment of other receivables * b e W SR IB BB 6,193 =
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRZE SR FE
realisable value *** 19,792 1,969
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Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023

—=F+=ZH=1+—H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 7. BRBIADER ()
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR TR ARBT T
Fair value losses on financial RAnBEEFERR
assets at FVPL BEETABRE ISR
BEEAREBEEBSE 5 8,877 18,443
Share of loss of an associate o —ME & A REE 75} 110 119
Bank interest income HRITFIEUA 5 (2,911) (613)
Proceeds from sale of items B B SRR B P A
produced while testing machinery 15 B WIHE TSR
and equipment - (17,307)
Direct cost of sales of items R B8 M BRI P AR
produced while testing machinery T8 B M EEHER AR
and equipment - 12,261

*%

These losses and expenses were recorded as other
expenses to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no forfeited contributions that may be used
by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions. No forfeited contributions were
also available at 31 December 2023 and 2022 for the
Group to reduce contribution payables in future years,
if applicable.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
included in Cost of inventories sold above and “Cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

and other comprehensive income.

**

ZEEBRMRAX B AR M BERE
FEABR S

AR AT 1 AR SR EAE R = A A RRRIR
BHIKFERKER - HEZTZ
=FRZTE__F+-RA=+—8"
7N 55 B30 A AT P VR HUR AR 2R F AR AR
SEF B ORI R (@A) °

FEMREN2RFESTHALLD

EFEHERAL T ARSBRERE
fEmE KR [IHEMA AT -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Notes to Financial Statements

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

B RS AR Y AL

31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

EENEH

RAFEERBETRA - BERRKIE
383(1)(a) * (b) * (c)R(NER AR (BKEE
ENBEER)ROIE 2R EMBELEEH
PRSI -

Group
REE
2022
T
RMB’000
AREET T
Fees B 1,008 820
Other emoluments: Ee
Salaries, allowances and e EUEREVEF
benefits in kind 4,694 3,757
Performance related bonuses* KIBIEAT* 569 544
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 314 313
Subtotal NEE 5,577 4,614
Total &5t 6,585 5,434
o Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * AARETESAERREAEER

payments which are determined as a percentage of the

profit after tax of the Group.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
g S EL R

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

8. HEBNFM(#E)
(a) BIUFHTES

ERENBIERTESZ WERT
mF -

2022

—_EF_—
RMB’000
AR®ET T
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung* ] R AR S A 200 202
Mr. Zhu Lin KREE 200 200
Mr. Yu Miao FHE 200 200
Ms. Zhang Feiyan* SRA 2 8 =
Total A& 608 602
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER - WEENBIIIERITESH

independent non-executive directors during the year
(2022: Nil).

* Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung resigned as
independent non-executive director on 15
December 2023 and Ms. Zhang Feiyan was
appointed as independent non-executive
directors on the same date.

EMe (= ——F : &) -

* AR EFER - -_=F+=
A+HBETBIIERNTE
£ MEMRFELZTRIRR B
ZERBUIENTES °
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2023
=+ HA=1—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EENEFM(E)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITESRIHITES
directors

2023 ZE-=%

Executive directors: Y2
Mr. Ge Yi XREE
Mr. Bai Kun HERE
Ms. Zhang Nan KL
Subtotal NG

Non-executive director; FHTES
Mr. Pan De Yuan EERLE
Mr. Fontaine Alain Vincent Fontaine Alain Vincent

ki

Subtotal a5y

Total At
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEWNEM (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HBITESRIFTESR(E)
directors (continued)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 28
ik REWEN RREL RUSHERR ait
2022 “BoCF RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETE  ARETR ARETR  ARMTR  AR¥TR

Executive directors: BES:
Mr. Ge Yi XREE - 2,465 250 114 2,829
Mr. Bai Kun AELE - 888 261 85 1,234
Ms. Zhang Nan Rt = 404 33 114 551
Subtotal dSi) = 3,757 544 313 4614
Non-executive director; FHTES:
Mr. Pan De Yuan BERLE 16 = = = 16
Mr. Fontaine Alain Vincent Fontaine Alain Vincent
ik 202 - = - 202
Subtotal et 218 S = = 218
Total fit 218 3,757 544 313 4,832
There was no arrangement under which a director REA - WEREEFHEXRERET
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during AIFM T (T = =F &) o

the year (2022: Nil).

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to, or REAN  AEEVEMARABESRK
receivable by, the directors or the five highest paid AR B o BN A = S A5 Bk 1 S LA
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining SEBMAREB N IMALREH
the Group nor as compensation for loss of office W REISBEN 2 HE(ZE ==
during the year (2022: Nil). Fm) e
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Notes to Financial Statements

The five highest paid employees during the year included

two directors (2022: two directors),

details of the

B RS AR Y AL

31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

TEREHHESR

REALBERSFMEEREMBES (=
T__F MBER) UHARFEERHN

remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2022 BRT=R(ZF__F: =ZR)maFMEE
three) highest paid employees who are not directors of the REANNFIFELT
Company are as follows:
2022
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Salaries, allowances and e EZEREDER
benefits in kind 1,742 1,672
Performance related bonuses FRIRTEAL 1,184 1,011
Pension scheme contributions RREBEHEIHE 187 210
Total a5t 3,113 2,893

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HHNFATHENFESTHESFHHERN
ABIE

Number of employees

EEAH
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR#1,000,0007T = 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,001TE
AR #1,500,0007C 3 1
Total A& 3 3
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10.

INCOME TAX

Cayman Islands

Under the current income tax laws of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is not subject to tax on any income or capital
gain.

Hong Kong

Under the current income tax laws of Hong Kong,
companies are subject to Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5%
on assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong. One subsidiary of the Group is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022:
16.5%).

Singapore

Under the current income tax laws of Singapore,
companies are subject to Singapore profits tax at 17.0% on
assessable profits arising in or derived from Singapore.

Chinese Mainland

The Company’s subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland are
subject to income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified as
follows:

(a) Tsaker Technology, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, is subject to corporate income tax
at the rate of 15% from 2022 to 2024, after being
assessed as a high and new technology enterprise.

(b) Hainan Yangshuo Technology Co., Limited*,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is
qualified as a small-scale enterprise and is subject
to the applicable enterprise income tax rate of 20%.

A subsidiary which was deregistered during the
reporting period.

Notes to Financial Statements

10.

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

Fri&®

MEHS

REASHENRITAEHE  AREHBA
SEMBASE RS HRTHE

&8

BIEBRBRITAABEE - ARARERTABE
AR E B BM R EFIIEZ16.5% KT X
BMBEEFEY - XEE—FNB IR AT
SHMAHETAERERS - ZWB AN
® 2,000,000 70 (ZZE = =4 : 2,000,000
BIL)ERFEFMIAE 25%(—F - — 4 :
8.25% ) MIBEL BB - i8R T & AR AN g A1 A
16.5%(Z T = =4 : 16.5% )T R 4F o

0

RIEFT I IRITATS L - RRIABREF M
WEASREF ML ERTEMIE17.0%
BB SR BN DN RIS R

SE PN
AR R R B A e T BB X B R R 25 % HO B K
BMNFISEL - AT R BREERID -

(a) ARFEFZEMERRFERKER
EREMRMEE a2 -_—F%
TR MER15% TR R AT EM
B/ -

(b) ARFAZEMBAREEFEMNEE

RABEANRAELRER &R

MBI ER20% ©

* RERNTHEOMB AR -
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10.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Chinese Mainland (continued)

(c) Tsaker Dongao (Hainan), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, is established in the Hainan
Free Trade Post and is subject to the applicable
enterprise income tax rate of 15%.

Under the prevailing PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and the relevant regulations, any dividends paid by the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries from their earnings derived
after 1 January 2008 to the Company’s Hong Kong
subsidiary are subject to a 5% or 10% PRC dividend
withholding tax, depending on the applicability of the
Sino-Hong Kong tax treaty. For the Group, the historical
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on retained earnings distributable by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

10. FBH (&)

B KRE (F)

(c) ARAZEMBRAAXERR(EmM)
RIUNBEABEE  R15%NERB
THMDEMRER

RIBBRITHFRACEMSREREBEER
RZZENF—A—HB%  ARQEIZFHKN
BRARMAAR ZBBHEBARFMES 2T
MEEABFITEZRETEHNS5%H10%
(R T AR YR E R EABIERME) K+ E
RETEIR - HAKEm S @ BABARE
B5% - At AEERE_EENF—A—
HEHZERNTERIZHBATELEZE
FEEOA FOR 2 RBEMAEENG 2
EF X

2023 2022

—E-= —F-_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T

Current — Chinese Mainland BIVER — AR B oK B

Charge for the year FAZMH 51,613 70,725
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE (463) (2,858)
Current — Elsewhere BNER — HAthib 75 6,233 1,383
Deferred (note 29) EIE (M13E29) (42,976) 11,252
Total tax charge for the year FABIESZ LB 14,407 80,502

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]



10.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Chinese Mainland (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for Chinese Mainland, in
which the majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are

Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

10. FBH (&)
B KB ()

RABBEAE (KRR KB HERRAE
b )ETE R 5T E RO BR B BT A E A A R
P EBIRBRB R E BB H R

domiciled, to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as ™
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Profit before tax B 354 A& A 59,600 334,734
Tax at the statutory income BEEFBHME(25%):THEE
tax rate (25%) BiIE 14,900 83,684
Tax effects of different tax rates HEZHENUBLE (146) (143)
Effect of preferential income tax rates HARGETHEBEARIMNESR
applicable to certain subsidiaries et ¥ 2 (11,106) (8,221)
Non-deductible expenses OGIE: 155 2,366 12,462
Income not subject to tax BERB A (1,592) (2,601)
Additional deduction of research and KA R E ERREE TR
development costs and
qualified assets (8,152) (10,017)
Adjustments in respect of current A REEERE ) BN EA R IE 1 5 5
tax of previous periods (463) (2,858)
Temporary differences (including KGR TR M= (BERE
tax losses) not recognised E5i8) 15,150 6,408
Withholding tax TEFHE 5,253 1,788
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B @ E AR B E B (1,803) =
Total income tax expense sk %8 14,407 80,502

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#HK &

267



268

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023

—=Ft+-A=t—H
11. DIVIDENDS 11. KA
2023 2022
TED=F —T-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥T R ARBEFTT
Interim dividend approved and paid of #t# & {895 ik 8 &A%
RMBO0.029 per ordinary share i Hﬁ)\Eﬁ”@0.0%ﬁ:
(2022: RMB0.036) (==
AR#0.0367T) (a) 29,365 36,689
Final dividend proposed after the end WBE KRB EHIEE 2K
of the reporting period of HREEREBRARE
RMB0.038 per ordinary share 0.038T(=F ==
(2022: RMBO.059) AR®0.0597) (b) 38,479 60,129
67,844 96,818

(a) On 18 August 2023, the Board declared an interim
dividend of RMB0.029 per ordinary share (the
“Interim Dividend”) (six months ended 30 June
2022: RMB0.036 per ordinary share), amounting
to total of approximately RMB29,443,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2022: approximately
RMB36,689,000). The total amount of the Interim
Dividend was calculated based on the issued and
fully paid shares of the Company as at 30 June
2023. If taken the subsequent cancellation after 30
June 2023 of 2,664,000 shares into consideration,
the total amount of the Interim Dividend amounted
to approximately RMB29,365,000.

(b) The Directors recommend a final dividend of
RMBO0.038 (2022: RMB0.059) per ordinary share
in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023, amounting to a total of approximately
RMB38,479,000 (2022: approximately
RMB60,129,000). The proposed dividend was
not recognised as a liability as at the end of the
reporting period, since it is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend
proposed amount was calculated based on the
issued and fully paid shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2023. If taken the subsequent
cancellation of approximately 16,922,000 shares
after 31 December 2023 into consideration, the total
amount of final dividend amounted to approximately
RMB37,836,000.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #e&REHLER AR

RZE-_=ZFN\A+N\R EFg
ERFHEEEREBRARKE
0.029T([HFHIKRE]) (BHE=Z=
—HEXA=ZTHIEAEARA : ERE
BIRARO0.0367T)  BEHAA
R¥29,443,000 0 (22 ==
FRAA=ZFTHLERNEA: HARKE
36,689, oooﬁ) EPHHH“M'%EME
BAARIEE-_ZE-_=F,"A=+H
E’JE?‘ﬂ%&EH%ﬁ#M/Eﬁ fis 5T &
ZEZ=FRNA=TRZERETH
f92,664,000 %% (0 - RHIRR B 4858
#4975 AR #29 365,0007T °

HEZZT-_=F+=-—A=+—HLF
B EEERREREREERY
BIRAR®0.038 T (T - =

AR®0.0597T)  BEHNABARE
38,479,000 (ZZE=_=F : HAR
#60,129,0007T) ° AR EHRSA
BARARBREREERRBFAE £
HOEBRFAIMEE - RPN RERR
BREAE R APRESEIR
BARRBEZE-Z-_=F+=-HA=+
—HAMBEBETHERRMESD o M
ARZEZ=F+ZA=+—H2Z%
BE14 5L 854916,922,000 A% 1D - RER
& B4z 4 A AR ¥ 37,836,000 °



12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,010,136,000 (2022:
1,019,073,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

12. BRREEREREEANELERE
F
BRERRFDIENS AR L BB BT
EABMEFRZNRFEANDEITEBRM
19 81,010,136,0001 (= FE ==
1,019,073,000% )51

BE-_Z_=FR-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—
BILEFE AEETEABEHEYECD
BITEBR -

SIREA R D EA N TR

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-_—

Earnings B2
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary AR BAREZSIE B AL

equity holders of the parent (RMB'000)  “FREH (ARETT) 29,061 242,035
Shares BRHOEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERRFNEA

shares in issue during the year used BT E AR INE T

in the basic earnings per share (Fh)

calculation ('000) 1,010,136 1,019,073
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2023
—F=F1T-A=1+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥% - BERRE

At31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023:  RZZEZF+-A=+-HRK
“R=f-A-R:
Cost WA
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Zif T ERHE

Net carrying amount BHEE

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated RZE-=%-f-H"

depreciation and impairment B ZHAERRE
Additions WE
Disposals e
Depreciation provided during the year FRRENNE
Impairment A
Transfers 2R

At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated ~ R=E-=F+-A=t+-H"

depreciation and impairment NBRZHNERRE
At 31 December 2023: RZTZ=F+-A=1-R:
Cost A

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 2 ERA(E

Net carrying amount BE3E
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment in 2023

As at 31 December 2023, since certain construction
in progress of the Mononitrotoluene separation and
crystallization process test project (the “Test Project”)
would be no longer used, a full impairment provision
of approximately RMB1,610,000 was made based on
the carrying amount. Besides, certain equipment of
Iron Phosphate and the Sodium Methoxide workshop
(a workshop of the Pigment intermediate) would be no
longer used, impairment provisions of approximately
RMB11,774,000 and approximately RMB662,000 was made
against their carrying amounts, respectively.

Notes to Financial Statements

13.

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

M BERRE(E)

—EC=FZREEMN
RZTE_=FE+_A=+—H AR —WE
RROBZESIEHARERS ([HABRES ]
CEHOERIRBETIBEER  DARE
1,610,000 2 BEHURERE I EREEE
YEH o BN - BEERE P EM B (EERF
MEER) cEsTREBE/TEER AR
#611,774,0007C R H A R¥662,0007T 2 &
FURERE DR ERERABEED -
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023

—=#+=A=+-H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Machinery
and Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BT BRREE VA REd EETR Bit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETn AREFT  ARETR
At 1 January 2022: RZEZZ§-F-H:
Cost KA 560,585 884,647 16,931 4,754 592,725 2,059,642
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 2T ERA(E (152,847)  (427,995) (14.912) (2,988) (6,615)  (605,357)
Net carrying amount FRFE 407,738 456,652 2,019 1,766 586,110 1,454,285
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated W-E-—%-f-R"
depreciation and impairment R ZaHERAE 407,738 456,652 2,019 1766 586,110 1,454,285
Additions AE 4,053 9,027 1,843 2,739 400,760 418,422
Disposals e (366) (2,928) (15) (1) - (3,320)
Depreciation provided during the year FRRENTE (28,945) (67,213) (3,179) (914) - (100,251)
Impairment BE - - = = (7,163) (7,163)
Transfers a1 482,743 440,816 = = (923,559) =
At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated ~ W=Z==F+-A=+—-H"
depreciation and impairment B ZHTERAE 865,223 836,354 668 3,580 56,148 1761,973
At 31 December 2022; RZEZZE+ZA=+-H:
Cost KA 1,044,462 1,305,447 18,596 7211 69,926 2445702
Accumulated depreciation and impairment & E RAIE (179.239)  (469,093) (17,928) (3,691) (13,778)  (683,729)
Net carrying amount REFE 865,223 836,354 668 3,580 56,148 1,761,973
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment in 2022

As at 31 December 2022, certain equipment of the Test
Project were no longer used. An impairment provision of
approximately RMB487,000 was made based on fair values
less costs to sell. The fair value was derived from market

Notes to Financial Statements

13.

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

M BERRE(E)

—ECCFZEEF

RZEBE-—_F+-A=+—8 AHBEEZ
ETREBTEER - HH AR 487,0007T
ZREBEBEDLER AL EBERDEKAE
e ARBEDREME®RE R-2T=-_—

quotations. The fair values less costs to sell, carrying F+-—A=+—0  DABEBEERAN -
amount and impairment provision as at 31 December 2022 BEEE R ERE T
are as follows:
Recoverable Carrying Impairment
amounts amounts provision
A4 B¢ 58 fRmEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFT ARBFT
Certain equipment of the ABEE G TRE
Test Project 3,343 3,830 487

As at 31 December 2022, since the equipment of the
sulfonation workshop (a workshop of the battery materials
segment) were no longer used, an impairment provision
of approximately RMB6,676,000 was made against their
carrying amount.

RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—8H ' ARE{LE
M (B ERRNER)NREETBE
B OAR¥6,676,0007T 28 E B # T E
REREEEDL -
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14.

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

LEASES 14. #HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the AN £2 B PR AT VR ) — R I A5 SR A 18 3 £ £ E
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 20 to 50 MELH - MHA20E50F - BIEZSL
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the HHEMGRR - NEEEFEE S NEMK
terms of these land leases. The Group has lease contracts H e RAEEHEBERANELEECMAMERSE
for various items of office premises and apartments for IRBHHEAHN - WAMERETIAEDN
employees used in its operations. The leases of office HHB2EIF - —RM T - AEETAAA
premises and apartments for employees have lease terms SEUMATHEZERSHBEEE -
of 2 to 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) EFAEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use AEEGHEEENREOAERFASE
assets and the movements during the year are as AR ¢
follows:
Office
premises
and
apartments
Leasehold for
land employees Total
MRMER
HELiH BEINE =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETFTT AREFT ARBEFTT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_F—H—H 86,834 613 87,447
Addition PN 7,060 - 7,060
Depreciation charge TEMXZ (4,256) (445) (4,701)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZTE-——F+=A4
and 1 January 2023 =tT—HK
—E-=F—A—H 89,638 168 89,806
Addition nNE = 3,661 3,661
Depreciation charge TEMX (3,102) (783) (3,885)
As at 31 December 2023 R-TB-=4F
+=-A=+—H 86,536 3,046 89,582
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14.

Notes to Financial Statements

LEASES (CONTINUED) 14.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

PA RS RAR MR

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

HE#E)

FEBEREEA (F)

(b) HEERE
HEAGENEEERFRNZSHNT :

2022
—_F-—
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—BZERAEE 178 627
New leases HEE 1,061 =
Accretion of interest recognised B R BB IE
during the year 33 25
Payments (BN (581) (474)
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ A=+—HZKHAE 691 178
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BNEAEE 7> 459 178
Non-current portion FERNERES 5 232 =

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

(c) REmFEZNEEHEFBENT -

2022
T
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEARENE 33 25
Depreciation charge of FREEERERS
right-of-use assets 3,885 4,701
Expense relating to short-term B HMERENR X
leases 916 2,485
Total amount recognised B R IBERE
in profit or loss 4,834 7,211
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15. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Notes to Financial Statements
g EL

31 December 2023

2 =F+=ZA=+—H

15. R—EBRERATAZRE

2022
-2
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Share of net assets PEEEFE - 868
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BENTIHISEIB T ¢
Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest

Particulars of

registration and

attributable

Name shares held business to the Group  Principal activity
BN AEED
I AV =S P A #EhE s
=y F¥s D =18 SESSup AN FEEK
Shanghai Biaoshang Unlisted shares  Shanghai 33% Provision of technical
Information Technology services in the field of
Co., Ltd. information technology
LERRESMRBERAR I LmEH +E TS BRI SR M R AT AR 75

The Group’s shareholding in the associate, Shanghai
Biaoshang Information Technology Co., Ltd, is held through
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The following table illustrates the financial information of
the Group’s associate:

AEBBEBANRZENBARFABRER
A LIRS B RH AR A R M A HE -

Ll E R BN AR E RS M RER T RA
RN

TREFAEEBLERRNPHEER

2022

RMB’000

ARBTT

Share of the associate’s loss for the year ~ D {REt &N RIFEREE (110) (119)
Share of the associate’s total SMEHE N T EE RGBT

comprehensive income (110) (119)

Impairment of Investment in associates BN T 2R ERRE (758) =
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEERE & QAR ZHE LA

investment in the associate BREE - 868

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A



16.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FVOCI

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R R BT EE

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

EEZAAEBEFEEHZBTAH

fhEERFEZRERE
2022
—=E_—
RMB’000
ARETIT
Equity investments designated at FVOCI: #EE A AL BETER
HEBi ALMEEKEZ
ERRE
Unquoted equity investments, RAnBEFEZERE
at fair value IR E 32,309 30,855
Total CH 32,309 30,855

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

In 2023, the Group recognised a gain of approximately
RMB1,454,000 in other comprehensive income in relation
to the fair value change of equity investments designated
at FVOCI (2022: a loss of approximately RMB5,844,000).

AEER R LRBREREENEE L ERA

Al
X

B MBRERETTHBLEERARAAE

R-ZBZ=F KAEEREBECEIAE
EfEEHEH A AL M2EKEZ RIER
BRAREBEZHREM2EKEERIKZED
ARBE1,454,000C (2= —4F : BFEHA
R#5,844,0007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements
g% ey

31 December 2023
—=F#+-A=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREEE

At 1 January 2022: R-ZZE--f%—-H—A8:

Cost (DN 3,590 19,494 23,084

Accumulated amortisation SRt (1,111) (4,654) (5,765)

Net carrying amount REFE 2,479 14,840 17,319
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of RZEZZF—A—B2lAE -

accumulated amortisation Mk 25+ 88 2,479 14,840 17,319
Additions NE 310 - 310
Amortisation provided during the year 4 X # $4 %5 (362) (1,462) (1,824)
Impairment during the year FARE - (9,003) (9,003)
Exchange realignment b 5 - 769 769
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H 2,427 5,144 7,571
At 31 December 2022 R-B--£+=-B=t+—-H

Cost (DN 3,900 20,554 24,454

Accumulated depreciation and ZEMELRE

impairment (1,473) (15,410) (16,883)

Net carrying amount RESE 2,427 5,144 7,571
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of RZZ_=F—-A—HZHK"

accumulated amortisation Bk Rt oA 2,427 5,144 7,571
Additions NE 616 - 616
Amortisation provided during the year — FER#HE & (535) (802) (1,337)
At 31 December 2023 W_E-_=F+-A=+—H 2,508 4,342 6,850
At 31 December 2023: R-E-=F+=ZA=+—-8:

Cost B AR 4,516 20,554 25,070

Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERRE

impairment (2,008) (16,212) (18,220)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,508 4,342 6,850
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18.

19.

Notes to Financial Statements
% e

31 December 2023

INVENTORIES 18.
2022
— T
RMB’000
AREET T
Raw materials R 35,808 46,381
Work in progress ERm 56,700 55,195
Finished goods RUAK T 192,818 171,183
Total AEf 285,326 272,759
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EZREWNE
2022
RMB’000
AREETTT
Trade receivables B 5 rEE 350,952 241,443
Impairment A (8,440) (7,704)
Net carrying amount BREEE 342,512 233,739

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one to three months
for domestic customers and overseas customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over certain of its outstanding
receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivables balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

BEEP kBT FRBARMNRI - K
SEEEEFPNIERZHAREER - 3LE
AMBINEPNE  EEM-—KRAR—E2=(E
A BUEFPHERKEELR - AKEN
SKEHE T i R W B0 RO R LR TR R 4 B R BR

7.

BHERESRERETEHEMN - ERNATX
it RARENE 5 B KFRESBIANED
R%EF  AEBYESAEEEHER - &
SEIW AR E B 5 B WA AR R R TR
HRAEMRSEELR - 85 BKHIES
TEHE o
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19.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8¢

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The subsidiaries of the Company have pledged trade
receivables of approximately RMB114,378,000 to secure a
bank loan amounted to RMB57,580,000.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR Y AL

31 December 2023
—=F#+-A=+—H

EZEYWRIEA (&)

AKARAMKMBAREEHFRHNARE
114,378,000 LM B S EW K IEAER AR
#57,580,000THIERTTE X °

SFHRNE 5 EUGRIAN IRk DT
(%E@ SRHYKINREBREE T

2022

RMB’OOO

ARBET T

Within 1 month —@mARN 272,758 163,099

1 month to 2 months —@EAZ=mM[EA 41,383 33,379

2 months to 3 months MEAZ=MEA 17,059 7,391

3 months to 4 months —{EA=m{EA 2,077 16,147

Over 4 months PE{E A A E 9,235 13,723

Total ) 342,512 233,739
The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of trade B S RBGERERBRENSZSH T

receivables is as follows:

2022

RMB’OOO

ARBET T

At the beginning of year REY] 7,704 6,294

Impairment provided (note 7) BEHRRE (A5 7) 736 1,410

At end of year RER 8,440 7,704

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if the Group recognises that recovery of the
amount is remote.

BERRARDA

AEBNEHRE BT RABEEEETR
BOH - WA EEHEEEE - ZtERBR
HRENEER EERERNRE B8R
BOEBBEEER - 2 AR ROR R &
HIEBANEERAISEER - —KRME - FHA
E@ﬁﬁ?ﬂdﬂ&@%KIEZ%@EWEJJQTM%E%
FEWFRIE



19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group applies the simplified approach to the provision
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit loss on
trade receivables, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

Expected credit loss rate HHEEEEE
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #BREE(ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TEHMEEEIE (ARKETT)

Notes to Financial Statements

0.12%
339,714
405

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

ESBWRIEA (&)

AEBER BBV BEREEANFIRRENTE
HMEEBEBRRERMBCTE - ZEAF
B ESEEREARBEMAEHEEE
B R BESREFENRAEEESE
AEBEZRARGEERREBRERKEES
FEWKIB DA o

ERASERABBRERTENE S EEK
ENEERBREMERIIAT

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+-—H

4.11% 8.35% 100.00% =
925 2,527 7,786 350,952
38 211 7,786 8,440

As at 31 December 2022

RZE-_=_F+=-A=+—H

Between Between

Within 1and2 2and3 Over 3
1 year years years years Total
—FF MEE
—FR K3 =F Z=FBLE &5t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.08% 2.32% 4.55% 100.00% =
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  A2BREE (AR TIT) 222 408 9,105 2,728 7,202 241,443
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) TEHMEEBIE (ARKETT) 167 211 124 7,202 7,704
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20.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable of the Group are bank acceptance
notes and are usually settled within six months from their
respective dates of issue. None of the notes receivable as
at the end of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
was past due or impaired.

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised:
The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted
by banks in Chinese Mainland (the “Endorsed Notes”)
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
RMB223,828,000 and RMB291,610,000 as at 31 December
2023 and 2022, respectively, to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Notes and the associated other
payables. Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did
not retain any rights to the use of the Endorsed Notes,
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed
Notes to any other third parties. None of the Endorsed
Notes settled during the year have been recoursed as at
the end of the year.

R ARAFE

Notes to Financial Statements

20.

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—=F+=ZH=1+—H

FER R &

IEIWWW%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%#'ﬁ%ﬁ
REZEBRTAPENBARNEE - REE
T =FRZFZF+ZA=+—HLE
FEERE - SERKRERAIRE -

AEIEBNEBZSREE - AXNER
ETHREANEZENFIE - AEE AR
HEBEES Fﬁ¢lﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%mﬁ%
ER(EERR)) R-B_=FR_%—
“HFET A=t HANAREEINASHA

[R#223,828,0007T & A R#291,610,000
E(FjbiJ) EERR AKBEEE LR
BRBRLO®R ETEEERSEERENE
HREER - ELt $%l##ﬁ£%§$ﬁ%
2REEEMMIBEMENTIE BEE
$%§ﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%%%?f%&ﬁ%
A BREE BFIEFEEEETEM

HME=71 - RER ERFRAEENE
ERBHER -



20.

NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised: The
Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted by
banks in Chinese Mainland (the “Derecognised Notes”) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with aggregate carrying amounts
of approximately RMB126,155,000 and RMB325,965,000
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
Derecognised Notes have a maturity from one to six
months at the end of the respective reporting periods.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Notes have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Notes. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Notes and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes are not
significant.

Since the business model of notes receivables with similar
credit exposures with the Derecognised Notes is both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, the
Group classifies and measures notes receivables with
similar credit exposures with the Derecognised Notes at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair
value of notes receivable approximated to their carrying
amount largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. No fair value changes were recorded for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 for notes
receivable.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the dates
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively.

Notes to Financial Statements

20.

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
—=F+=ZH=1+—H

EWRE (&)

RIBRANEBRZSREE : AXNER
ETHEBNESEMNKE  XEEME
AHERSES $%¢lﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%m
BUREE ((REREREE])  RZT==
FR B F+ A=+ —HHNRER
BER R AL ARE126,155,000 TR AR
325,965,0007C ° MR ERRIEN & G H
KRBT —ZNMEAZE - RIBEFBEEEE
FERENRTEHNBRT @ BRERZRE
MIFEAERNEBAERE([FEEE]) -
BEERA $%laiéﬁ%m%ﬁwmﬁ

BB AE D E b R ER - Bt - NEERR
ﬁ&ﬁm\ﬁ*’%}ﬁ@ﬁ/uﬁ?%ﬁm B%E{E&*HF%TT
JENFRIE - REBERBRERAZBENHER

IrBEZERGERZENRBIRESR
EEANGABEBRRSREREE -85
RE AEEARERERZENRFESTY
DREBEITTERK -

HRERRERERAGEUNERARRE
WEBNEBERX AR AFE LIRS LR
ERERLE  MAKEYHALEMBRER
EREUNEARR 2 EWEBUAAREE
FFEREEHARMEZAKEETIER
%%°f%%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@@ﬁ

CRABELTHRESIABRESRM
E°ﬁ TR =FRITIFF A=
+—HILFE  TRESEKEBEHALE
B -

BE-_T - =FR-ZT-__F+=-A=+—
BIEFE  AEBUENEEZERERZE
HEHAREMIER - RZMEFERRTHB
BROMERRIFERTELNER
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
g EL

31 December 2023

2 =F+=ZA=+—H

21. FENRBEREAMEWRKE

2022

— T
RMB’000
ARBT T
Advances to suppliers 4 T ER B ER 36,826 42518

Deductible value-added tax and prepaid B HURIEER M TN D ETEH

corporate income tax 22,111 12,732
Other receivables H b fE W GRIR 16,535 4,346
75,472 59,596
Impairment allowance B (6,193) -
Total ast 69,279 59,596

Except for the impairment provided for certain other
receivables which indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full, no
impairment allowance is provided for other receivables for
which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Deductible value-added tax and prepaid corporate income
tax are to be deducted in the following year. Advances
to suppliers and other receivables are unsecured and
interest-free.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A

BRE TRRASE AR ETEEECRER
BHTENEMBRIIN - B ERHERBIAK
EERERI EEREE N E M EUKKIE - X
EEHERERME -

AORHIEEN RBNEEAEREN T —F
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22.

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BZEAAREBEITEBEHSBE;T ABREZ
PROFIT OR LOSS TREE
2022
Notes RMB’000
k2 ARBET T
Financial assets at FVPL — current: 2 AR BEEBEZE:TA
BRcemEE—RE :
Listed equity investments ERERE (a) 7,879 4,621
Wealth management products B Em (b) 5,000 =
Subtotal NEE 12,879 4,621
Financial assets at FVPL BARBEAEEEEFHHA
— non-current; BRze&mEE—ERD :
Unlisted investments ELETIRE (c) 25,183 37,119
Total A&t 38,062 41,740

(a)

The listed equity investments were classified as FVPL
as they were held for trading.

The wealth management products were issued by
banks in Chinese Mainland. The Directors of the
Company consider that they are investments with cash
flows not solely payments of their principal and interest
and recorded them as financial asset at FVPL.

The unlisted investment is an investment in beneficial
rights from shares of a private equity fund. The
Directors of the Company consider it as an investment
with cash flows not solely payments of its principal and
interest and recorded it as financial asset at FVPL.

(a) LEiRBERERIBAEAREBEE
BEEHt ARG ZoREE  RAR
HISeEE R -

(b) BEMEMBTEKRERTET - ARQF
BEERLARAERRBSRETRAEX
NASRMEBHRE - TARBERAR
EBEELEEHF AERZERE
7= o

(c) LMRAEA/AVMEREEDRMWEE
B —IERE - ARRIEZH LRKRE
BRASRETARINAS RIS
RE  WARRBRAA(BEFEERE
P ABHEZEREE -
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23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

RERRESEVURZRAS

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-—F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Vo3 AR®T ARBTT

Cash and bank balances & MIRIT4 S 358,027 196,150

Less: Restricted cash — current B ZPRIE e — BNE] (a) (70,586) (7,081)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 287,441 189,069

Denominated in RMB AAREEGHE 258,691 173,604

Denominated in other currencies  AH Mt E®EHE 28,750 15,465

Cash and cash equivalents HeRAEEEY 287,441 189,069
Note: Hizt -

(a) As at 31 December 2023, restricted cash mainly (a) RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H0 " ZRRA

represented guarantee deposits for the issued notes STEALRTEEEMNFIENRES

payable.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted
bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the cash and cash equivalents and the restricted bank
deposits approximate to their fair values.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]

ARBTEEBRLAKEMES - AW - RiR
RERENCIMNEERIGD]) RCHEE - EER
NEEERE)  AEEAEBERELEINE
EBZRITBARELBREMERE - RITH
SREFHBRITEFRNEZZBHN RS - R
TREBEZRABRTERADERREEEER
W T BN RCENRT - RERREFED
AR ZBRHIRITEFROREEEL AR EER

et

= o



24.

25.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
% e

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

24, EZERNREREMNRE

BERREZRNFALBNREZER
i (RIREZ BB E)#IN T -

A&
pyaN
k< 77

IS
e

2022

—EF -
RMB’000
ARBET T
Within 1 month —@AR 245,178 255,671
1 month to 2 months — @A =m1EA 56,558 44,232
2 months to 3 months MEAZE=EA 34,573 22,527
Over 3 months =@AE 136,305 61,654
Total A& 472,614 384,084

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 30 to 90 days.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ESRMNFIEATE » WiBEIZ30HE0
BERERAEE -

25. HihENSFERESER

2022
—F-—

Notes RMB’000
k=3 ARBT T

Accrued salaries, wages and Bt e  TEREF
benefits 27,389 35,546
Payables under the endorsement B ETE N B FKIE 20 223,828 291,610
Current portion of lease liabilities A& & &M ENEAE D 14(b) 459 178
Other payables H th FE - 58 25,972 36,013
Total a5t 277,648 363,347

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment.

N EFBRDEER - Tt REEEERED
MR o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR Y AL

31 December 2023

—F=%t-A=1+—H
INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. FTESBITREMER
BORROWINGS
2022
Effective
Interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
R
FI% (%) HEA ARETR
Short-term bkt
Bank loans - secured ROTEHR-HEM 2.80-4.50 2024 212,193  3.20-6.80 2023 196,568
Bank loans - unsecured BIEF - 2R 3.70-5.00 2024 65,251 4.50-5.80 2023 50,526
Total At 277,444 247,094
Long-term =3
Bank loans - secured ROER-HER - - - 5.00 2025 10,000
Bank loans - unsecured RITER - BER - - - 500720 2023-2025 4,900
Other borrowings -secured HipEs-HEM 7.65-9.22  2024-2026 39,708  8.32-9.22  2023-2025 38,586
Total At 39,708 53,486
Less: current portion of long-term B : REBTREM
bank and other borrowings BRI S (21,650) (14,693)
18,058 38,793
Total bank and other borrowings BOREMEREHE 317,152 300,580
Analysed into: W
Bank loans repayable: ARA TR EEEN
BITER:
Within one year —&R 277,444 247 584
In the second year F-F - 10,490
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FREREF
(AEERRE) - 3,920
Subtotal Nt 277,444 261,994
Other borrowings repayable: BARATEHEEEN
Efofga
Within one year —FR 21,650 14,203
In the second year g£-F 12,332 15,288
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FFERE
(BIEERME) 5,726 9,095
Subtotal Nt 39,708 38,586
Total a5 317,152 300,580

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A



26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

The Group had unutilised banking facilities of
approximately RMB177,498,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: approximately RMB110,653,000).

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 December 2023 were
secured by:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

mortgages over certain of the Group’'s
property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB138,038,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: approximately
RMB30,255,000);

mortgages over certain of the Group's
right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB32,153,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: approximately RMB3,572,000);

mortgages over certain of the Group’s
trade receivables of approximately
RMB114,378,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: approximately RMB36,972,000).

All the outstanding interest — bearing bank and other
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

26.

Notes to Financial Statements

(a)

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

st ERITREMER (E)

AEEBRZEZ=F+ZRA=+—
AZABARTRENAEARYE
177,498,000t (ZE==F : HHA
R#110,653,0007T) °

AEBR=-_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—8
ZHETFEHBRITREAMMERKIA TS
TEEHE R -

(1) rEEBR-_ZE-_=F+=-A
T+ HEREAENAARE
138,038,000t 2 & T2
BEREHE(ZEZZF - 4
AR #30,255,0007T)

(i) AEEBR=ZZT==F+=A
T HEREEHNAARE
32,153,000c 2 & T{FE A #E
BE(ZZEZZF : HARK
3,572,0007T) :

(i) AEER-_ZT=_=F+=-A
T HEREENAARE
114,378,000tz & TE ZE
WHRB(ZZEZZF : HAR
#36,972,0007T) °

A SR (R 0 5B BRAT IR EL A fE RN
ARHEHHE -
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27. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

PA RS RAR MR

31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

27. HivRBAEE

Considerations received from

FhER Y H 6 B B X R AL AE Y

2022
—m— —

— e

RMB’000
ARBTT

independent investors for partial BB IR EE 2 RE

disposal of the equity interests in a

subsidiary* 57,489 -
Others A 2,797 -
Total il 60,286 -

As disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity, considerations received from independent
investors for partial disposal of the equity interests
in Tsaker Technology, an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, with repurchase rights
given to these independent investors were accounted
for and disclosed as current financial liabilities.

28. DEFERRED INCOME

WA EREHRMKE s
EARRBEEIFZEMBRRR TN
RSB IREE 2R EERG
THEBUKREEZORBENRDE
B AES BRI EE o

28. EEWA

Government grants

BT Bh

2022
—— —

=

RMB’000
ARETT

8,163 10,449

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A



29.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdictions,
are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Notes to Financial Statements

29.

PA RS RAR MR

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

LB R

FRAEEHMEHEEMBENEZSBER (T
ZRFE—MBEERNKENEF)OT

ERLPTSHEE -

At1 January 2022 i S
-A-A - 1,575 8,296 5,120 1,402 620 14962 1,717 - - 33692
Deferred tax credited/ ERiARE/
(charged) to profitor loss ([ EHHR)
during the year LERHE 449 337 (306) (2,662) (567) 1,248 (3,500) 187 - - (4214
Gross deferred tax assets at W=SZZF
31 December 2022and 1~ tZA=1-H
January 2023 Rz%=z%
—f-BMEL
HEEEST 449 1,912 7,990 2,458 835 1,868 11,462 2,504 - - 20478
Deferred tax credited/ EREARE/
(charged) to profitor loss (B /& RHIE)
during the yeer JERRE MB 1656 284 () (67 (1139) IS0 @1 18 18 43t
Gross deferred tax assets  M-F-=%
at 31 December 2023 TZA=t-Ak
EliBaELE 4,932 3,568 10,874 1,935 157 729 49,011 37 18 1628 73429

The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising from
entities operating in Chinese Mainland of approximately
RMB77,569,000 (2022: RMB32,956,000) that will expire
in two to five years, for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as it is considered not probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised by the Group.

REBRPERPEL S 2 BEEE S ZRER
TRIBEEHARK77,569,000 (- —
F : AR¥32,956,0007T) (BRMEAFRA
JEim)  BARRERBOEFIELFE - WK
RZEEERRAECHEELEE RAAHR
BAREKTEH 7 T EREUEF AT AEE R
SEFEANRDARIBEBIBREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. EEBIE ()
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFIBEAE

At 1 January 2022 RZE-—%—A—H - 5,699 - = 5,699

Deferred tax charged to profitor loss R ERBEAINKRE
during the year ERERIE - 509 - 6,529 7,038

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 RZZE-=F+-f
December 2022 and 1 January 2023 =t+—HAR=-ZT-=%F
—A—AREEHE

BEBE
Deferred tax charged to profitor loss  AFERBEAINKRE
during the year BRI
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 RZE-_=F+_A
December 2023 —t+—BHELHE
BfEHE

292 TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & 8RR AR AT



29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,

(i)

a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Chinese
Mainland. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Chinese Mainland and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributable
by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland. As at 31 December 2023, the subsidiaries
of the Company located in Chinese Mainland
had retained profits of the RMB1,355,476,000.
Based on management’s estimation of profits to
be distributed in foreseeable future, dividends of
RMB105,000,000 will be distributed from Chinese
Mainland to overseas holding companies in the
foreseeable future. Therefore, deferred tax liability
of RMB5,250,000 was recognised for the retained
profits generated from subsidiaries located in
Chinese Mainland. Management expects that except
for the aforementioned dividends, the remaining
retained profits will be used for the subsidiaries’
continuing reinvestment.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

29. EEEBIE(E)
R B O R -

(i)

e NG R AvaE N S = ST B
EREEERMRE - HE10%H
MEMTEN - ZHEEE_ZTZEN
F—A—HABER WEAR-ZEZT
tFEF+_A=F—BHENBF - f{F
Bl AFEEIN IR EEFEAEERE
FEI BB HE - A HARENS%
RTEIRE - Bt - NEEBEFER
B K BzE o 2 B B B R R FTEE AE B & 7
MoK ERBITHRKENENE
BeRZT_=F+=-A=+—8H"
/NSl NalEipN 3 o NS Fe
REBEF AR 355,476,0007T °
RIRE TR EH 0] BARKG T 2 IKE R
FIEEEr - REIAREMMEAGER
BERKREBREIMEBRBIREAR
#105,000,000 TTHI AR & » AL+ ¥
RAURFBRREZNBARELEZR
BuMERATELEMSHEBEARYE
5,250,000 T - BIEETEH - B il
BN - B TRER & g R IERT B A
RIRIFEREZR -

AR R A EL R BROK A AR B R E B ] PR AT
HIER -
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Notes to Financial Statements
g EL

31 December 2023

2 =F+=ZA=+—H

29. EERIE (&)

RERIH  ETECHRAEERAGBREN
MBRRAKREE - UTRAKEFBEIREN
AT

EEBIBAE

2022
RMB’000
AREET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B SRR R IERA
the consolidated statement of financial — iEIERIIBE & F5E
position 67,449 28,311
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R A B SR T R HEREY
the consolidated statement of financial  iEEFIE & & F4E
position 7,732 11,570
30. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 30. HikEARBES
2022
—FT_—
RMB’000
ARBET T
Considerations received from BB ARBILIREERN
independent investors as capital REER/TE
injection in a subsidiary* 220,001 -
Others i 4,517 =
Total ast 224,518 -
Z As disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes @ IR AR EERFTIRE  BUWE L

in Equity, considerations received from independent
investors by way of cash contribution to Shandong
TNM, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, with repurchase rights given to these
independent investors and liabilities recognised for
purchasing other non-current assets in installment were
accounted for as non-current financial liabilities.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A
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31.

SHARE CAPITAL

The movements in share capital of the Company are as

Notes to Financial Statements

31. BXK

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

ARRRARBHIIMT

follows:
Issued
Number of share capital
shares  Share capital equivalent of
KROEE BAR Z2E2BITRA
Shares UsD RMB’000
i) 7 AR®T T
Authorised: ERE ¢
As at 31 December 2022 at RZE_=F+=A
USDO0.01 each =+—H ' 8K0.01%ET 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
As at 31 December 2023 at R-_Z-_=%+—-A
USDO0.01 each =—+—B8 ' #0.01%7T 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRETE
At 1 January 2022 at USD0.01 R=ZE=-_—F—HF—QH -
each Fh%0.0137T 1,026,255,000 10,262,550 66,269
Share cancelled EEEEldm) (7,122,500) (71,225) (462)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 RZZE_—F+=—RA=+—H
January 2023 at USD0.01 —T-=F—HF—8"
each FH0.013ETT 1,019,132,500 10,191,325 65,807
Shares cancelled 2 sE AR (D (6,535,000) (65,350) (461)
As at 31 December 2023 at R-_E-_=%+—-A
USDO0.01 each =+—H8 ' #0.01%7T 1,012,597,500 10,125,975 65,346

Note:

The Company repurchased 18,549,500 and 5,966,000 of its
shares in 2023 and 2022, respectively, on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for considerations of approximately
RMB19,663,000 and approximately RMB6,871,000,
respectively. 6,535,000 shares were cancelled during the year

ended 31 December 2023.

At -

RZB_=FR_FT__%F  KXAADH
NWREHARE19,663,000t RHARE
6,871,000 TR EBHAERSBR AR H A
o] E 18,549,500 % % 5,966,000 & f& 7 °
6,535,000k ERBE_ZT_=F+_-_HA=
+T—RIEFEFEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 FE#HK &

295



296

32.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles of
association of the companies now comprising the Group,
before distributing the net profit of each year, companies of
the Group registered in the PRC are required to set aside
10% of their statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year’s losses as determined under relevant PRC
accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
fund. When the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, the statutory surplus reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of each entity’s share
capital after such issuance.

Safety production fund

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety of
the PRC, the Group is required to set aside an amount to
a safety production fund at certain percentages (Periods
before 21 November 2022: less than RMB10 million:
4.50%:; from RMB10 million to RMB100 million: 2.25%;
from RMB100 million to RMB1 billion: 0.55%; greater than
RMB1 billion: 0.20%. Periods after 21 November 2022: less
than RMB10 million: 4.5%; from RMB10 million to RMB100
million: 2.25%; from RMB100 million to RMB1 billion:
0.55%; greater than RMB1 billion: 0.2%) of the previous
year's operating revenue. The fund can be used for
improvement of safety, and is not available for distribution
to shareholders. The balance of the safety production fund
in equity represents the safety fund that was set aside but
not yet used.
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Notes to Financial Statements

32.

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

FBEFENRHESRR

EEEE

RIE R BER R AN S EIRRE N AR 2848
ERRME  BESIRAFA  AEEEFE
e A R AR AR IR AR BE R B & R
FTETHEFERE  BEFEETMANE
10%BEETBBREERES - EZXRFEENE
BEEERAIBRANS0%E - S RA]ARIE
REEEETEE - AT BHHEESTH
PIEE A FREIB S EITALR AT - %%
TRBHEES VAT VBB ERITEZE
BBRRANHY25% ©

RELEES

BEPEVBILREREEEESEER
REGHETER  AEEFREEEOL
HE—FEZRERZBEE —TFTLB (=%
—ZF+—A-+—HAREM  AR10
BETTAT 1450%  ARE1I0EBETEA
R¥100BE8TT :2.25% * AR100B6 8
TTEAREE10MEIT 1 0.55% + ARBE101ETT
AE :0.20%: —FE=-——_F+—A=+—H
BEHME : ARB10BETAT 14.5%
ARBEI0OBETEARBIOOBEE T ¢
2.25% ° ARB100BEBTEARKEI10E
JC 1 0.55% © ARMBA0EITTAL :0.2%)&
TREERES BRELTEEESTARKES
EEZEEHETATBEREBREETHIR
BaPHR THZE2EEESEERLERR
FANEZ2ES -



32.

33.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Capital reserve

Share capital of the Group’s subsidiaries before the
incorporation of the Company is recorded as capital
reserve.

Capital reserve also included the difference between the
consideration paid by the Company for the acquisition of
subsidiaries pursuant to the Reorganisation and the net
assets of the subsidiaries being acquired at the time of the
Reorganisation.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

Notes to Financial Statements

32.

33.

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

(&)
EXfEE

7R B P B 2 Rl AR A A) R B SZ A 2 B AR
TINFRIIEE AN -

EXRFENREARARDRESAER KB E
X RSSO AR(E B0 B AR B A B B B R )
MEEFEZHNER

REREREBRME

(a) BMEFBRELNAEEDH

activities
2023
—EB-=HF
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%F
—H—H 38,793 261,787 178

New Lease HHEE - - 1,061
Changes from financing cash BIEBR & REEE

flows (19,085) 36,819 (548)
Interest expense FERAX = 1,779 33
Interest paid classified as DERKERERE

operating cash flows ZEHE - - (33)
Non-cash repayment of other HAbEFKNIFE S

borrows E& - (22,940) -
Non-cash additions of other — HAbEKNIFE S

borrows nNE 20,000 - -
Reclassification between TEBNEA R FERNER 2

current and non-current MEHHHE

other portions (21,650) 21,650 -
At 31 December 2023 W-ZT-—=F+—A4

=+—H 18,058 299,095 691
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31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

33. HFERETRERME(E)

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) BMEZBHFELENEESRSH(EF)
activities (continued)
Interest- Interest-
bearing bank bearing bank
and other and other
borrowings borrowings Lease
2022 (non-current) (current) liabilities
FFERITR FFERITR
HAbERK HAbE R
—ZT—— (EBNER) (BnER) HEBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETTT AREFT ARBETTT
At 1 January 2022 RZEZ_F
—H—H 13,622 302,109 627
Changes from financing cash BERESREEH)
flows 39,864 (54,679) (449)
Interest expense FEMZ = 752 25
Interest paid classified as NERAKERSRE
operating cash flows ZBERFE = = (25)
Exchange realignment b H A% - 1,294 =
Non-cash repayment of other ~ HAbEZREIER S
borrows B8 = (2,382) =
Reclassification between FERNEA & 3E BN HA 2
current and non-current Eoibak |
other portions (14,693) 14,693 -
At 31 December 2022 RN-ZT——
—_A=+—H 38,793 261,787 178
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% e

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. SZAHLERERMT(ZE)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HENR SR LR
The total cash outflow for leases included in the AR eRERcHER RN EE
statement of cash flows is as follows: mr
2022
—F——
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Within operating activities KEEBN 949 25
Within financing activities BE RSN 548 449
1,497 474
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. HAREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities R-_E-_=ZF+_A=+—8B AEHEIE
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). EMERKABBE(ZT - —F : &) -
35. COMMITMENTS 35. E&iE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the REBERRERRHERFEEEH AT
end of the reporting period:
2022
2=
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B AR B4 -
Plant and machinery W2s MR 6,382 93,098
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Notes to Financial Statements

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related parties
during the year:

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—=F+=ZH=1+—H

BB L5

(a)

Bz a M mREMA DA
RHON - ANEE G NF N E R
TATRS

2023 2022
—E-=F “T-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Purchases of products and services: BEEMIRS
Hua Ge Real Estate Development Co. ERFHEREERAR 1,706 1,900
Dezhou Wugu Food Technology Co., Ltd.* @MAAR MR REHRAR AR 482 420
Cangzhou Aomu Agricultural BNRREEERARAA
Development Co., Ltd.* 750 271
Cangzhou Wugu Food Technology BINAARMRMEHEARAE
Co., Ltd.* 111 68
Total At 3,049 2,659
Notes: Htat -
(i) The purchases from the related parties were (i) KRB RE T 2 ERETIRE D ERE RIK
made according to the published prices and e -
conditions.

(i) These related parties are all entities controlled
by close family members of the de facto
controller of the Group.

The related party transactions above
also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #e&REHLER AR
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31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BAEMAEXRZ (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Outstanding balances with a related party: (b) KBRS A58k
2022
T
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Trade payables: E S EMNFIE
Cangzhou Aomu Agricultural BNRBEEERBR AR
Development Co., Ltd. - 200
(c)  Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) ZAEBEFEEEASNHG :
Group:
2022
-2
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Compensation paid to key MEEEEABINOME
management personnel (Note 8)  (K1:£8) 5,577 4,614
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31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERESWEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHeRmITARSRENRNEREESSIW
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as T
follows:
2023 —E-=HF

Financial assets

SREE
Trade receivables B HRNFE - - 342,512 342,512
Notes receivable e - 68,276 331,225 399,501
Financial assets included in prepayments s AT FUE R E iR UZ0R
and other receivables LEBEE - - 10,342 10,342
Restricted cash TREE - - 70,586 70,586
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY - - 287,441 287,441
Financial assets at FVPL - current ROABESEEAEHT A BR
LERBE-T 12,879 - - 12,879
Financial assets at FVPL - non-current ROABEHEEAZDT A BR
LEREE-FRY 25,183 - - 25,183
Equity investments designated at FVOCI BERAABESEAESHHA
At 2Ebs 2 RIERE - 32,309 - 32,309
Financial assets included in other SARMERBEENSREE
non-current assets - - 11,507 11,507
Total ) 38,062 100,585 1,053,613 1,192,260
2023 —E-=

Financial liabilities

SREE
Trade and bills payables B 5 BN IEREN R 472,614
Financial liabilities included in other payables s AHMEMNZIBEREFEENSRHAE

and accruals 250,259
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTEERITRHMERK 317,152
Other current liabilities HEibmeatE 60,286
Other non-current liabilities HEibIERSBEE 224,518
Total A5t 1,324,829
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Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERESIMNEMIA(E)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial %i&i(ﬁﬁﬂlﬂﬁé‘%i&%,ﬁﬂ%ﬂ@EEETE%JZ&IJZZD
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as (&)
follows: (continued)
2022 —E-
Financial Financial Financial
assets assets at assets at
at FVPL FVOCI  amortised cost Total
RAAEEE
BARBEE BHEHHA
BHEHHA HE2EbE  REENATR
BR/GRAE LERAE LEREE At
Financial assets RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

TREE

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT

Trade receivables BN - = 233,739 233,739
Notes receivable e - 79,873 341,172 421,045
Financial assets included in STABRFEREMEYE
prepayments and other receivables LEREE = = 4,346 4,346
Restricted cash XBREE - - 7,081 7,081
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSZEY - - 189,069 189,069
Financial assets at FVPL - current EAnEEFEAEEYH B
LEREE-RD 4,621 - - 4,621
Financial assets at FVPL - non-current ROABEHEEAZDH A BR
LERBE-FND 37,119 - - 37,119
Equity investments designated at FVOC EERALBETE AAEHHA
Efp 2 Ee 2 RERE - 30,855 - 30,855
Financial assets included in TARMIERSEEN S REE
other non-current assets = = 12,318 12,318
Total CH 41,740 110,728 787,725 940,193
2022 —E-
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
TR SR AN B BR
ZEHERE
Financial liabilities RMB’000
cEas ARBT T
Trade and bills payables BHRNRBERENEE 384,084
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAEMENFIEREFIBEENESHREAE
and accruals 327,801
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERTTREAER 300,580
Total I 1,012,465
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e., unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e., observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
financial instruments of the Group carried at fair
value were equity investments designated at FVOCI,
financial assets at FVPL and notes receivable. These
instruments fall into Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy described above.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]
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ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

38. ERMIBRCZAABERAABESER

BRARBEFENEREERER

RABEER

PRI s PR R E A2
ENERMTARAEE BDBERE
B G EEREAIR A4 EEE
EIREN=ZBAABEER &K
B 2R TMEEDEMREBNE AR
BHNABREERERE  BEAR
BEEMEEDENER

. FEBRMGE: EEREE
R \BE (EREESE
ERFTE R RE R TS HRE

HEREFENAAEE

. F_BARME: FRE_ER
AR (BIREZDE
RBEEAREREATAER
WARBENHBERARER)
SFENAREE - TAEBEREH
ABEB T EEREBUS T 5 E
EH B ABUIR

. F-EBARME : EFRERTH
BROA\BEAENRAEE

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—HBK=E
ZZE+ZA=+—8 AEBER
ABEIERZEBIAEAETEAR
EETEBEEHT AHLMEEmEKE
RWRERE - RAREBEBEF=EEEE
it A Bm e mEERBRERE -
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

38.

PA RS RAR MR

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

EMIAZAABERDABEER
E (&)

(a)

BAABEMFENEREERGE
(%)

AREEER (E)

Financial assets: TREE:
Notes receivable EWZE (i) 68,276 - 68,276 -
Financial assets at FVPL - current BALBENBER

B ABRY

cREE-RY (i 12,879 7,879 - 5,000
Financial assets at FVPL - non-current &A% BEERE

BYABRY

SREE-FRY (i) 25,183 - - 25,183
Unquoted equity investments EREALBEHER

designated at FVOCI EBYHARMRR

bz BRERERE (W) 32,309 - - Ll

Total CH 138,647 7,879 68,276 62,492
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2023
—F=%t-A=1+—H

38. ERMIBRCZAABERAABESER

HE (&)

(a) BAIABEFENSRMEERAESR
(&)
AREEER (E)

Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2022 categorised into
RIBZZEt-A=+t-RzArBEHENEA

Quoted prices

in active Significant Significant

Fair value at markets for observable  unobservable
31 December identical assets inputs inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
W-B-—% HREE BAABE EATUEE

tZAZ+-RB RERMmSZHE BARE BABE
ZAREE (B-ER)  (B2ER)  (B=ER)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETL ~ ARETR = ARETR

Financial assets: SRAE:
Notes receivable EhEE 0] 79,873 = 79,873 =
Financial assets at FYPL - current AR EE2HE

BEHABRY

SREE-RY (i 4,621 4,621 = =
Financial assets at FVPL - non-current &A% EE:IEAE

BE A \BR L

TREE-FRY (il 37,119 - = 37,119
Unquoted equity investments EERLABETER

designated at FVOCI EREHALMZE

Wz 2 BRERERE (iv) 30,855 - - 30,855

Total At 152,468 4,621 79,873 67,974
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The Group estimated the fair value of notes
receivable with discounted cash flows at a
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of the
drawee of notes at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair value of listed equity investments at
FVPL categorised as level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy are based on quoted market prices.
The fair value of wealth management products
categorised as level 3 are determined based on
the discounted cash flow model.

The fair value of financial assets at FVPL-
non-current, has been estimated using a
market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and
calculates an appropriate price multiple,
such as price to sales (“P/S”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The
multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise
value of the comparable company by an
sales measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
and size differences between the comparable
companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple is
applied to the corresponding sales measure of
the unlisted equity investments to measure the
fair value.

Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

38. ERMIBRCZAABERAABESER
HE (&)
BAABEMFENEREERGE

(a)

(&)

AAEEER (&)

EE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AEBERHERRARREE
S S B B0 BR 3R R A RS
BASREBMAEREZEHR
RfEME -

RARBEERPIBERE—
BRMEAARBEFEEEE
Bt ABEZ EHRERES
ARBEREERAABER
BRAEEHF AL MBEEKS
ZERERERENAABE
TIATISHMERELE - R
E-ERNETEMNDAE
BETRERBRRSREEE
REE o

BARBEFERHLESHTA
BREZIENDEREEZLRA
EBE BRELFHTERED
BERINEFZRR - I
BB E R T 5 & fh E Bl
o MEEREEREESE -
R EREEBARETEL
RETRAR (AEHE)LHE
H—ESENEREH  ©W
PR 38 5 & 7] & H s B B T
BE - UEETELBRQAR
Ao EHRBBTELBRQA
WEEBERAGENHE
g XZBBERRBRELAS
FEBER AR IER B I AR
BERERRZ TIUARR - B
BEERANELTEREERE
MiEHEEE U EHEA
REE-
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

Notes to Financial Statements
B R R M =E

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

38. ERMIBRCZAABERAABESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) FE (&)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at (a) BAAREEFENSREERERE
fair value (continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEER (&)
Notes: (continued) et - (&
(iiiy  (continued) (iii) (%)
Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair
technique input Range value to the input
EXFTEE
fh{ET & BWARIE #E AAEEHRABENHRE
Valuation Median P/S 9.5 10% increase/decrease in multiple
multiples would result in increase/decrease
) ) in fair value by approximately
.
A BESER EREE ST B 9.5 EEULI, R 10%BEH R BEE
o 0/ B 49 AR 2,646,000 7T
Discount for lack 25% 10% increase/decrease in multiple
of marketability would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by approximately
RMB882,000
Rz misnalt 25% fEEIEM, WA 10%KERA R EER
wE D/ HEIK AR #882,0007T

(iv)

The Group estimated the fair value of unquoted
equity investments designated at FVOCI using
different techniques based on each investment’s
features.

The fair value of unquoted equity investments
in a real estate fund designated at FVOCI was
determined using the market approach based
on recent transaction price.

The fair values of another two unquoted
equity investments have been estimated using
market-based valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate price multiple, such as price
to sales (“P/S”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]
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Wasz EBEREREZ DA
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HHpmAEREREREZA
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF  38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes: (continued)

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

ERIAZARBERAABEER
HE (&)

(a)

BRAARBEFENESREERES

(%
AAEEER (&)
Hrat - (&)

(iv)  (continued) (iv)  (#&)
Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair
technique input Range value to the input
EXFTEE
fh{ET % PN ¢ #E AAEEHBABBNSRE
Valuation Median P/S 7.9,1.7 10% increase/decrease in multiple
multiples would result in increase/decrease
Unquoted equity in fair value by approximately
investments RMB180,000
designated at HERE T 7.91.7 FEEM/HA10%EERA R BES
FVOCI i/ m A 4 AR 180,0007T
BERARBEE Discount for lack  43%,38% 10% increase/decrease in multiple
BEEZHA of marketability would result in decrease/increase
Hih2mEz 2 in fair value by approximately
BERERERE RMB117,000

BE B AN
L

43%,38%

EHIE I, WA 10% B EH A A EBEM
L /1B AR EE117,0007T

The discount for lack of marketability
represents the amounts of premiums and
discounts determined by the group that market
participants would take into account when

pricing the investments.

RZmSRBENEEAEE
EENRERTESE  m5
2EEFHREETEERFSK
HAZRS -
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31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF  38.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

ERIAZAARBERAABEER
HE (&)
AREEERECAE

310

(b) Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (b)

Financial liabilities: SREE
Other non-current liabilities EiIERBAE 246,431 - 246,431 -
Total At 246,431 - 246,431 -
Fair value measurements using
HEWUTREBN AR EEE
Quoted
prices in active Significant Significant
Fair value at markets for observable unobservable
31 December identical assets inputs inputs
2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
i HEREE EXABR BERTAHE
TZA=+—B REBRTSZRE BARE BAHR
ZRREE (B—E#) (B=ER) (B=ZER)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARBTT ARETT
Financial liabilities: LREE:
Interest-bearing bank and other &t BSRITREMIE
borrowings - non-current H—IEmE 39,602 = 39,602 =

(c) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank loans and other borrowings, other financial liabilities
and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and notes receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all sales and purchase transactions
were denominated in RMB and United States dollars.
Management has assessed the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk, by using a sensitivity analysis on the change
in the foreign exchange rate of the United States dollar, to
which the Group is mainly exposed during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the United States dollar with
all other variables held constant, the profit for the year
would have been approximately RMB13,259,000 (2022:
RMB2,364,400) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains arising from translations of United
States dollar-denominated trade receivables and trade
payables, as well as cash and cash equivalents.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with related parties and recognised
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Notes to Financial Statements

39.

SRR MIEE

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

MR EERERBER

AEENTIESHTABERTER A
B HibeRBBENNRS RIRITHER -
ZECRTANTEERDRAKENES
BEEET - AKERASEEMCEREER
BfE - PINERRE XK LENE HEUK
AR EREEARE SRR

REAEESBIANTISARBIINER
s FERBRRADEASAR - EREEH
RpEEESERROBE - REREML
mF -

SR

ETBEEBERZIYUARERETIIE -
ERECBRATAZTINEEXRZS (KK
BREE-S_=FR-FE-_F+=A=
T—BEFETZAEBRLBERR) NBERE
AT A S EEERAINE R

RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H HMAR%
HETLHAE FES%  MAEEAMmE

RETE  FREMNERD EINHA
R¥13,259,000 L (ZTE=_—_F : AR¥
2,364,40070) ' WHEERBEUETTAE
NESERUFERESENREURRS R
e EEMEEMINEEE,UESATE -

FERRE

AEEEEBARTRBEEZNE =T
5 o MRAKENBE - RERAEERR
ETRZNEP  VABBEERERRF -
AN AEEFEERRKEHRNBER - M
AEBNERRERY AERX -
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Notes to Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2023

PA RS RAR MR

31 December 2023
2 =F+=ZA=+—H

PEREREBEEREE(E)

RS AR K F KRR

TRIIFERAEECEERR (EZ2ERB
EHHER  EEMENBANHBZRAK
B NNAGHRIN 2 EEERREREER
RBARRTZA=+—BZFRERS
#r

R-B-=F+-A=+—HzZH&=RAE

Trade receivables* & 5 e sioE* - - - 350,952 350,952
Financial assets included FTATER RIE R E I

in prepayments and other RIBEZGRAE

receivables

- Normal —E%¥ 16,535 - - - 16,535
Financial assets included in STARMIEREEE

other non-current assets TRHEE 11,507 - - - 11,507
Restricted cash SRIBE 70,586 = = — 70,586
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 287,441 = = = 287,441
Total At 386,069 - - 350,952 737,021
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2022

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
—E-=F+=-A=+—H

39. UHEMREEBZRRIEK(A)

BEREBRERER (&)
R-B-_—_F+-A=t+—HzZz&=RE

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
EHEE
18 ZHREHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—IEER EFEER F=FEER SRz &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables* B 5 e WGRIE - = = 241,443 241,443
Financial assets included FABMNREREMERK
in prepayments and other FBZCREE
receivables
- Normal =R 4,346 = = = 4,346
Financial assets included in FARMIERBEEL S
other non-current assets MEE 12,318 - - - 12,318
Restricted cash XBRRE 7,081 = = = 7,081
Cash and cash equivalents RekR2EEY 189,069 - - - 189,069
Total &t 212,814 - - 241,443 454,257
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * RAEEFEAGEAELRENE SHE

simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the

financial statements.

WHIEmE - BEBEER 2 AR R
EHRARMEIONEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BHEEMEEBEEEREEK(£Z)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk RBELEAR

The management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient REBCEBSEAS R INESRESZE
cash and cash equivalents and the Group has available @Y AREEEBEIHEAELERE
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit EHEAEANES @ AR HARE -

facilities to meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at NEES R E BN RS RN EE R
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual (BIEDITHEREEMNZSZMNT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and other BRI REET

borrowings* - 219,325 86,793 13,165 5,751 325,034
Lease liabilities HEAE - - - 234 - 234
Trade payables BHENNIE 472,614 - - - - 472,614
Other payables and accruals HiEAFEREER 249,999 = 260 = = 250,259
Other current liabilities Hipngat - - 65,102 - = 65,102
Other non-current liabilities BRI AE - - - - 279442 279,442
Total =i 722,613 219,325 152,155 13,399 285,193 1,392,685
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B RS ER R M

31 December 2023
R =F+ZHA=1+—H

39. HEERAREEEERBEK(Z)

REBESEE(F)

As at 31 December 2022
RZBZZF+-A=1-A

On  Less than 6o 12 Over
demand 6 months months 110 2 years 2 years Total
NMIRE
REX  SRAEA TR —EEME  WENUE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:
Interest-bearing bank and other SERTRAMER
borrowings* - 194,139 76,037 27,880 13,563 311,619
Trade payables B SR 384,084 = = = = 384,084
Other payables and accruals EthEMFERENEA 327,801 - - - - 327,801
Total At 711,885 194,139 76,037 27,880 13,563 1,023,504

*

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings include the
principal and the related interests payable.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

* SRRRITREMERBEAS MAARE
NHE -

ErER
AEEEARNEENTIZABEARERNEELE
WIFERLE  THRITAENEAR L RUAF
HEBRBERARREENES -

AEBERBEEMRANES REBEENR
BUEEREEARBERELRE - RER
HFBEEARRE  AEETHEN FERR
BB S - MBRRREEARBEITHR - RNE
B3 S ST SN SR M B AR B SRATIR » R
FR-BEEEANBR BRIGBEAEE
) o
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39.

40.

Notes to Financial Statements

ISR MIEE

31 December 2023
—EZ=F+ZHA=1+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  39. HEEKREZEBEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital management (continued) BAREE (2)
The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing ratio at RNREBH LR S EEBBH RESERE
a healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. BARKE AL EER - AEBERMNT
The principal strategies adopted by the Group include, BERAEERNEREERLEEL EEEL
without limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements RGBS IR N R BN « B
and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when AEHRETREESEKFIUR FRIEES
they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available ZRRETE (WMEB)  URERAEEES
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and AENEWEARALTHEER - EEAGBHR
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has HEMT
a reasonable level of capital to support its business. The
gearing ratios were as follows:
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—EC=F —E=-=
t=A=+—H +=-A=+—A~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBFT
Total debt (E L GEE] 317,152 300,580
Total equity = BE 2,054,831 2,099,959
Gearing ratio BEERBEX 15.43% 14.31%
Total debt comprises interest-bearing bank and other RIS ABEET S RITREMMEF -
borrowings.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. HEHREBE

On 18 March 2024, the Directors recommended a final
dividend of RMB0.038 per ordinary share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2023 and the proposal is subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the 2023
annual general meeting as set out in note 11.

As of the date of this Report, except for the above event,
the Group had no other significant events after the
reporting period that are required to be disclosed.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥& #eEiREHE BR A 7]
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41.

Notes to Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  41.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

PA RS RAR MR

31 December 2023
- =F+=ZA=+—H

KRB BARR T

ARRRHwEHROA BN RAAEER S

31 December

2022
=T
+tZA=t—H
RMB’000
ARBET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary "E—FERB AT 80,303 80,303
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 80,303 80,303
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JE U B BB A R R IE 176,585 290,984
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 1,724 418
Total current assets mEEELE 178,309 291,402
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAb T RIB R FEET B A 7,020 12,025
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 171,289 279,377
Net assets BEFE 251,592 359,680
EQUITY R
Share capital A& s 65,346 65,807
Treasury shares EFRG5 (16,513) (4,467)
Reserves fHE 202,759 298,340
Total equity S EE 251,592 359,680
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41.

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

41.

—F
—=

31 December 2023

—=F+=-HA=+—8H

AT BRRE (F)

ARTRBELDT ¢

At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—H—H 375,069 41,027 (29,771) 386,325
Profit for the year REEHH - = (2,480) (2,480)
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEBHELZE

foreign operations - 28,406 - 28,406
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2ERSEE = 28,406 (2,480) 25,926
Dividend distributed to shareholders EHIRTFREAE (106,076) - - (106,076)
Cancellation of own shares FHEBRH (7,835) = = (7,835)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R=-ZE-—#+=-A=1+—H

F_ZE-_=%—H—H 261,158 69,433 (32,251) 298,340

Profit for the year REFZ A - - (2,598) (2,598)
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEBHELZ

foreign operations - 3,438 - 3,438
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2EWSEE - 3,438 (2,598) 840
Dividend distributed to shareholders B2k FREABE (89,265) - - (89,265)
Cancellation of own shares HHEERR (7,156) - - (7,156)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=#+-A=+—-B 164,737 72,871 (34,849) 202,759
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  42. #tEMERE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2024.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & s RERHZBR A A
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[BRRBFAE]
“AGM”

[#EEE=F24A ]
“Articles of Association”

[B%ZBEg]
“Audit Committee”

[EFeg
“Board”

[BPDA]
“BPDA”

ML 32Af ]
“BSE”

[Cavalli]
“Cavalli”

[RMF ZiEEE

“Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy’

[RARSHIHRMIK TR
“Company”, “our”, “our Company”,
we”, “us” or “Tsaker New Energy”

INGIECSUTN
“Companies Ordinance”

Definitions

B=

AARR_ZE_MERAA T+ RARTHRRBFARE
the annual general meeting of our Company to be held on 16 May
2024

RATHABERMA (ETEEET)
the articles of association of our Company (as amended from time to
time)

EEeERLES

audit committee of the Board

Exg

the board of Directors

R POREE B/ - AEEEFM BB TR EE
3,3, 4,4 -biphenyltetracarboxylic dianhydride, which is used as a
monomer that produces new material polyimides

TR RESFZ SR
Beijing Stock Exchange in the PRC

Cavalli Enterprises Inc. * RZE——F = A+ —HBERBR S
B BRAR > BEMOBITES TR TRAHXNELER2ERER
Cavalli Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability on 11 March 2011, wholly-owned by Mr.
GE Yi, our executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

BINKERBEBERAR  RZZE__FNA+RABREFBEEKIHD
RAIRARAREEZEMBAR  IWLREZFHMHAMBRF - piEREM
FEIHERERAT]

Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy Co., Ltd.* CEMEEIBEERRAT),
a company established under the laws of the PRC on 15 April 2022,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and a subsidiary
of Shandong TNM, formerly known as Cangzhou Tsaker New Energy
Co., Ltd.* (BIMNFEEFEIRERAR])

MEMERMEARLAR  — KR ZE-—EHFT+AZ+ILBERRE/HST
MR B R AT

Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 29 October 2014

R EDIE 6228 ARG
the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong
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[DATA]
“DATA’

[ T3 F 2%
“Deed of Non-competition”

[DIPS]
‘DIPS”

==
“Directors”
[DMAS |

‘DMAS”

[DMSS ]
‘DMSS”

[DSDE |
“DSD Acid”

[AEE &R
“Group”

Definitions

B=

25— ZHAHE —1,4— XL - A{EENEERER A H g
2,5-Dianilinoterephthalic acid, which is used as an intermediate of
quinacridone pigments

AABEX LA RCavallis] ZAMAZT—AF A+ BN THFLE
the deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2015 entered into
between our Company, Mr. GE and Cavalli

TEM_RRE AREEDPPERRER
diisopropyl succinate, which is used for the production of DPP
pigments and plastic

RRARES

the directors of the Company

BT —B—FE - ARNEERMEGER - BE - HtRMAFINE
dimethyl acetylsuccinate, which is used for the production of food
yellow pigments, agricultural chemicals, and other food additives

TR T B 98 AR EEEN RN R RS
dimethyl succinylosuccinate, which is used for the production of
quinacridone pigments and photosensitive polymer

4,4 — ZREZKIG —2,2— ZWEEE - BERKE - g a B RAE R
B E S

4 4’-Diaminostilbene-2,2’-disulfonic acid, which is used as an
intermediate of dyes, fluorescent whitening agents and pesticides

AR RAREH B QA
our Company and our subsidiaries from time to time
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[AdEER ]

“Hebei Industrial Investment”

[FREH

“herbicides”

[Tk A

“HK$” or “HKD” or “Hong Kong
dollars” or “HK dollars”

[&E ]
“Hong Kong”

[ 6

“intermediates”

[1SO14001:2015
“1SO14001:2015”

[1S09001 |
“I1SO9001”

[ ]
“Listing”

[ s el
“Listing Rules”

[MNT |
‘MNT"

[Zs<p Al
“Model Code”

[RREE K KITE]
“Mr. GE Yi" or “Mr. GE’

[—HERX]
“mononitrotoluene”

[NEEQ]
“NEEQ”

Definitions

e

AIEERBMERERT L (BRERE)  —FKRPEKRINEREBEE
Hebei Industrial Investment Strategically New Industry Development
Centre (Limited Partnership)* Gt EREFTEEHEP L (BREE)),
a limited partnership established in the PRC

PR FOB S D ) 2 SRAE ) A R A (L B2 BT

a chemical agent used to kill or inhibit the growth of unwanted plants

EBEEEERET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

PEEEFRITEHR
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

EREEREMIEZERBNRMEHELED
chemicals that are used as raw materials to produce other chemical
products

RIZ-nFROOBERFEEABRRERERFE
International Organization for Standardization standard for
environmental management systems as enacted in 2015

B RE L EBR R  FE  4£E  ZEAKREITENEERIEMBEM
NEEEEERER

quality management systems model published by International
Organization for Standardization for quality assurance in design,
development, production, installation and servicing

R AR B A2 PTE MR 7T
listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

B PrEE 7 TR Al
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

S-HARARNMWEEFRER  BERFEDHE  BEDBRBLREHKER
hER

3-nitrotoluene or meta-nitrotoluene, which is used as agricultural
chemical intermediates, pharmaceutical intermediates, and dye and
pigment intermediates

ETARAIMTERCI (LLATAMIEET) Frsk [ EMBEITAEFETES R HHE
#<rAl]

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” as set out in Appendix C3 (previously Appendix 10) to the
Listing Rules

B AV BARERRE 2 — (ERRELEWHRA) TEF - TRRTHL
=
GE Yi (X7X), one of our controlling shareholders (as defined in

the Listing Rules), an executive Director, our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

PNT » ONT &2 MNT
PNT, ONT and MNT

2P/ PNEERDEERG
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
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Definitions

B=

Bz 3= il EXTRFEES

“Nomination Committee” nomination committee of the Board

[ONT 15 O-HEREMMEERE  BERETHEEMNEREME - LHERER -
“ONT” BEEPEEE - AR KRBT EES

2-nitrotoluene or ortho-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw materials
for intermediates for agricultural chemicals, in particular herbicides,
pharmaceutical intermediates, dye and pigment intermediates, etc.

[OT] ] PR - ONTH T HER  TERERE(LEERED) FHE
‘oT” ortho-toluidine, a downstream product of ONT, primarily applied as

an intermediate for agricultural chemicals, especially herbicides

[PNT] i A—- THERRSEHHEERE  BEAHPHERERTBEBORME - 8
“PNT” FEDSDEA
4-nitrotoluene or para-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw materials
for dye intermediates and pigment intermediates, including DSD Acid

[H B | sk [ A B A P | Ei PEARKENE  ERARENS  BRIEXEZEAE  TRATERESR
“PRC” or “China” or “Mainland China” 7S PBURPIRF R TER & A

the People’s Republic of China, which, for the purpose of this report
only, excludes Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC and Taiwan, unless otherwise indicated

[ AR A E i AABEHAZE—RF A AAZT=ANBRHAE
“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated 23 June 2015
[FEEE ] i EEgFNEES

“Remuneration Committee” remuneration committee of the Board

[R5 HA ] st [l RA4F i TR = -A-HAREET-_=F+-A=1+—HHHA
“Reporting Period” or “Review Year” the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023
[ANE#] | HEUEEEB AR

“RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
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[EEe ]

“SFC”

[ 77 R BRG]
“SFO”

[ AN 7T |
“SGD”

[URERFMH
“Shandong TNM”

[UREEFTHEE

“Shandong TNM Group”

[ ]
“Share(s)”

[ %R
“Shareholder(s)”

[ Bst <2 FfT |
“Stock Exchange”

[T |

“tonnes”

Definitions

B=

EEEFLPEEHERZES

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

EEEDIEST1 BE(EH REFE KRG
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong

FTONOE TE B R b3 T

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

IWRFEMRMEHERAR R —NERR -+ HRBERBUEEK I
RARARBEEIFZENB AR AIBAYEIE (RE) ARAA]
Shandong Tsaker New Materials Co., Ltd.* (ILULREEFMEAERA
Al), a company established under the laws of the PRC on 20 May
2014 and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company,
formerly known as Tsaker Chemical (Dongying) Co., Ltd.* (¥&({LE
(RE)VERRF)

IR F R H M R E B A
Shandong TNM and its subsidiaries

ARFZ B
the share(s) of the Company

EN/NS LSS

the shareholder(s) of the Company

BEEMARXSAARRNT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

NI
metric tonnes
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[F 2R E ]
“Tsaker Dongao”

[REEE]
“Tsaker Hong Kong”

[RHEERE ]
“Tsaker Huayu”

[ % 2% b3 |

“Tsaker Singapore”

[FER%]

“Tsaker Technology’

[%7t]

“US$” or “US Dollar” or “USD”

*

*

Egasz vl

For identification purpose only

Definitions

B=

WREERBCEFRETAR  R-ZTZNFE=A+HBREPBEER
B ARLARATNEZEEEWE AR

Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Ltd.* (IUBE¥RER (L EH
[RE{TLA7A]), a company established under the laws of the PRC on 15
March 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

KRB (BB)ERAT  RZE—TFNAZAEEBEMALHBR
RAWAARBEEZEMB AT

Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (¥EI/ILE(FE)ERA
Al), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
2 September 2010 and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

HRERICEBBRAR  RZE—=FRALARBFBRIEZRINADF
RARRMEZEZEMB AR - AIEBANIEEECERNHBR AR

Tsaker Huayu Chemical Co., Ltd.* (¥ RZERL({LEHFRAE]), a company
established under the laws of the PRC on 7 May 2013 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company, formerly known as Hebei

Tsaker Chemical Co., Ltd.* (it EL 2R D ER A F])

FECZ CGhnE) LABRAR - RZZT—"FH AN\ BEIF N
YHBRAREARNABIEEEZENB AR

Tsaker Chemical (Singapore) Private Co., Limited (%Z{LE(FNK)
FLABIRRAF]), a company incorporated in Singapore with limited
liability on 8 July 2016 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

LR BRFVRREROERAG  RZEERFNAAZ T =HREFRE
ERKHARIRAAREEIFZEMBAR - AIHARE(ZE (AN A
R A A

Hebei Tsaker New Materials Technology Company Limited* (Ja/4b%
BRI BR AR, a company established under the laws
of the PRC on 23 September 2005 and an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, formerly known as Tsaker Chemical
(Cangzhou) Co., Ltd.* (X E(LE(AIN)BRAR)

EBVEEEHET
United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America
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